CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Notice of a meeting of
Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee

Wednesday, 22 September 2021
6.00 pm
Council Chamber - Municipal Offices

Membership

Councillors: Guy Maughfling (Chair), David Willingham (Vice-Chair), Matt Babbage,

Flo Clucas, John Payne, Richard Pineger and Jo Stafford

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the

meeting
Agenda
1. APOLOGIES
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (Pages
14 July 2021 3-6)
4, PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS
These must be received no later than 12 noon on the fourth
working day before the date of the meeting
5. BUSINESS GRANT SCHEMES (Pages
Jayne Gilpin, Head of Revenues and Benefits 7-12)
6. GRANT THORNTON AUDIT FINDINGS FOR (Pages
CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 13- 50)
Grant Thornton
7. DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 (Pages
Report of the Section 151 Officer 51 -
182)
8. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (Pages
Lucy Cater, Assistant Director (South West Audit 183 -
Partnership) 210)
9. COUNTER FRAUD UPDATE (Pages




Emma Cathcart, Counter Fraud Unit Manager 211 -
216)
10. USE OF THE INTERNET AND SOCIAL MEDIA IN (Pages
INVESTIGATIONS AND ENFORCEMENT 217 -
Emma Cathcart, Counter Fraud Unit Manager 226)
1. WORK PROGRAMME (Pages
227 -
228)
12. ANY OTHER ITEM THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES TO
BE URGENT AND REQUIRES A DECISION
13. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

12 January 2022

Contact Officer: Democratic Services, 01242 264130
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk



mailto:democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 3
Page 3

Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee

Wednesday, 14th July, 2021
6.00 - 7.20 pm

Attendees

Councillors: Guy Maughfling (Chair), David Willingham (Vice-Chair),
Flo Clucas, John Payne and Paul McCloskey (Reserve)

Also in attendance: | Barrie Morris, Paul Jones, Darren Knight, Lucy Cater, Jaina
Mistry, Beth Cordingley and Judy Hibbert

Minutes

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies had been received from Councillor Pineger and Councillor
McCloskey attended as substitute. Apologies also received from Councillors
Stafford and Babbage.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2021 be
approved and signed as a correct record.

4, PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS
There were no public and member questions.

5. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 2020/21
Lucy Cater, Assistant Director, SWAP internal audit services, introduced the
Annual Internal Audit Opinion 2020/21 report and appendices and invited
guestions from members. The first appendix, the Internal Audit Opinion
2020/21, summarised the work of the internal audit team and gives an overall
opinion of the effectiveness of the organisation’s governance, risk management
and internal control environment. Reliance is also placed on work undertaken
by the counter-fraud unit and ICT team. Based on the work undertaken over
the year an assurance opinion of ‘low substantial’ was offered. This supports
the Council’'s Annual Governance Statement. Appendix 2 reports on the audits
concluded since the last meeting of this committee.

The following responses were given to Member questions:

e The Assistant Director would report back via email on whether
ransomware is covered or whether it will come in to scope in due
course.

o All Members will be updated on the Council’s approach to its exposure
to ransomware in order to raise awareness.

-1-
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 22 September 2021.



Page 4

¢ Members were assured that the audit team undertakes testing as part of
its work, for example looking at a number of planning applications. Any
suggestion of fraud is referred to the counter-fraud team who undertake
an investigation. Likewise if the counter-fraud team identifies a control
weakness as part of an investigation this will be referred to the audit
team.

e The audits of ‘Publica Transformation benefits realisation programme’
and ‘Delivery of services by Publica’ had been removed from the work
plan to allow SWAP to support the Council during the pandemic; these
audits have now been planned for 2021/22.

INFORMING THE AUDIT RISK ASSESSMENT FOR CHELTENHAM
BOROUGH COUNCIL 20/21

Paul Jones, Executive Director Finance and Assets, presented the Audit Risk
Assessment 2020/21. The purpose of the report is to contribute to the effective
two way communications between the Council’s external auditors Grant
Thornton and this committee. In terms of the risk assessment there are five
areas (General Enquiries of Management, Fraud, Laws and Regulations,
Related Parties and Accounting Estimates) on the checklist which has been
completed by a number of officers.

The following responses were given to Member questions and comments:

e Language will be modified and updated to recognise the true extent of the
risk as whilst the responses were understood, they required more context
for the general audience.

o External auditors receive the report once approved by the committee and
this informs the audit procedures undertaken.

INFORMATION REQUESTS ANNUAL REPORT

Judy Hibbert, Customer and Support Services Manager, and Beth Cordingley,
Customer Relations and Information Officer, presented the report and
highlighted the following:

e 610 requests of information had been received, of which 89% were dealt
with within the statutory deadline of 20 working days.

e There is an internal review process where people aren’t happy with the
process; only 16 requests for internal review were received. There were no
cases referred to the Information Commissioner.

e The Council’s information officer is now a fully qualified FOI practitioner
which will help to boost the Council’s performance

¢ In future this report will be brought to the committee annually.

The following responses were given to Member questions:

o Repeat requesters are difficult to deal with and would be dealt with on a
case by case basis. There were none over the period.

e There are new processes in place to improve performance and ensure
deadlines are met. Assurances were made by the Executive Director of
People and Change, that performance will be significantly improved over the
next year.

-2-

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 22 September 2021.



Page 5

Applying the correct exemptions is a particular focus because of the
associated inherent risk. Now in-house expertise, capability and capacity
has been significantly strengthened this will ensure that exemptions are
applied correctly and appropriately.

ICO recognises unprecedented challenges that all staff were facing during
the pandemic and that resulted in a number of delays in information
requests as staff were dealing with other pressing matters

If themes of FOI requests are picked up, we can publish information on the
council’s website to reduce further potential requests for information.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Ann Wolstencroft, Governance Manager, introduced the report which
highlighted what has been done differently this year as a result of the pandemic,
particularly:

Communications and decision making, most particularly the quick set up of
open and regular communications

Quick decision making by ELT and Cabinet which enabled services to
continue to be delivered with minimum disruption and enable the set up of
activities such as the Hub

Working in partnership with Publica to manage the fast rollout of laptops to
enable working from home and online meetings

Collaborative and effective team working with colleagues and partners.

The challenge of responding to the needs of residents, the community and
business required innovation, partnership and bravery. A number of
national awards have been received for our pandemic response.

SWAP audit has done a review of the year and how we dealt with the
pandemic

A mini peer review was undertaken by the LGA to look at recovery work,
which was positive.

Members added the following comments:

Whole community response to the challenges presented by the pandemic is
acknowledged

Council role recognised in coordinating agencies and the community to
meet the needs of individuals, families and businesses, regardless of size,
quickly and sensitively

Recovery strategy completed and approved by Council whilst still tackling
the problems presented by the pandemic; this foresight is to be
commended.

The Executive Director People and Change stressed that the Council made
huge efforts to respond and this was done in a well governed and well managed
way. The plan for recovery is critical as it informs our response and the
allocation of resources. It was also worth noting that Cheltenham was one of
the first councils to publish the recovery strategy.

RESOLVED THAT the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement be approved.

-3-

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 22 September 2021.



10.

11.

12.

Page 6

REVIEW OF DRAFT ACCOUNTING POLICIES JULY 2021

Paul Jones, Executive Director of Finance and Assets, introduced the report.
There are no material changes to accounting policies in 2020/21. Given the
impact of the pandemic, a number of proposed changes have been deferred by
12 months. These will come back to the committee for formal approval by the
end of September.

The following responses were given to Member questions:

e Regarding accrual of annual leave, the government changed legislation to
enable additional leave to be carried over. The accrual of annual leave
does not have a financial impact on the Council.

RESOLVED to note the report.

WORK PROGRAMME
It was requested that adding a review of databases and data sources to a future
work plan be considered.

It was also confirmed that the statement of accounts would be brought to the
ACG in September.

ANY OTHER ITEM THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND
REQUIRES A DECISION
None

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
22 September 2021

Guy Maughfling
Chairman

-4 -

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 22 September 2021.



Agenda Iltem 5
Page 7

Cheltenham Borough Council
Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee
22 September 2021
Business Grant Schemes

Accountable member Councillor Peter Jeffries, Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets

Accountable officer Jayne Gilpin, Head of Revenues and Benefits

Ward(s) affected All

Key/Significant No

Decision

Executive summary To provide members with a report on the administration of the Covid-

19 Business Grant Schemes

Recommendations The Committee notes this report

Page 1 of 6 Last updated 09 September 2021



Page 8

Financial implications

As detailed in the report
Contact officer: Paul Jones

paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154

Legal implications

None directly arising from the report

Contact officer: legalservices@onelegal.org.uk 01684 272012

HR implications
(including learning and
organisational
development)

There are none associated with this report

Contact officer: Julie McCarthy
julie.mccarthy@publicagroup.uk Tel no: 01242 264355

Key risks

None arising from this reports

Corporate and
community plan
Implications

There are none associated with this report

None

Environmental and
climate change
implications

None

Property/Asset
Implications

There is nothing in this report which impacts on Council properties
Contact officer: Gemma Bell, 01242 264124

gemma.bell@cheltenham.gov.uk

Page 2 of 6 Last updated 09 September 2021



mailto:legalservices@onelegal.org.uk

1.

11

1.2

13

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Page 9

Introduction

The Government launched the first business grant schemes in March 2020 as part of its
support measures when the first national lockdown due to the Coronavirus pandemic
was announced.

The Revenues and Benefits “business Grants Team” has been responsible for delivery of
the grants. Between March 2020 and July 2021 the team administered 13 separate grant
schemes paying a total 10,501 grants worth £48.4 million to eligible businesses.

The table below shows the number of grants and total amount paid for each of the 13
schemes

Grant Scheme Number paid Amount Paid £
Small business grants (March-August 2020) 1,354 13,540,000
Retail hospitality & leisure grants (March-August 20) 475 9,490,000
Local Restrictions Grant - Closed Businesses November Lockdown 977 1,718,060
Wet Led Pubs Christmas Support Payment 53 53,000
Local Restrictions Grant - Open Businesses Tiers 2 & 3 824 422,572
Local Restrictions Grant - Closed Businesses Tiers 2 & 3 412 157,290
Local Restrictions Grant - Closed Businesses Tier 4 964 301,733
Local Restrictions Grant - Closed Businesses Jan-Feb 21 lockdown 967 2,539,089
Local Restrictions Grant - Closed Businesses Feb-Mar 21 lockdown 971 2,675,533
Closed Business lockdown top up payment Jan 21 968 5,083,000
Restart Grants Apr - Jul 21 921 7,291,384
Discretionary Grant Scheme June -July 2020 191 1,150,000
Additional Restrictions Grant (Discretionary) 5 rounds Nov 20- Jul 21 1,420 3,955,322
Total grants paid 10,501 48,409,649

Administration of Grants

The first phase of grants was announced by the Government in March 2020 along with
other Covid-19 support measures. The grants were directed at small businesses and
businesses in the non-essential retail, hospitality and leisure sectors.

The normal Revenues and Benefits work streams were immediately re-prioritised or
suspended so that resources could be directed to implement Covid-19 support to
businesses and residents.

Although we recognised the urgency required in getting the grants to businesses as
quickly as possible strict processes needed to be followed to ensure payment only went
to bona fide eligible businesses. As the initial schemes were for business ratepayers it
was possible to identify the majority of businesses likely to be eligible for the grant. An
application form along with verification and payment processes were quickly put in place
and agreed with colleagues in Finance, Publica and Counter Fraud Unit.

The second phase of business grants was launched as the second lockdown was
announced for November 2020 and continued through the tier restrictions, third lockdown
from January to March 2021 and to help businesses re-opening in April 2021

The multiple schemes in phase two were in respect of periods that restrictions were in
place with subsequent grant payments being made as restrictions were changed or
extended. The processes adopted for the first phase of grants were revised and specific
business grant software linked to the business rates system was purchased from Civica

Page 3 of 6 Last updated 09 September 2021




2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

Page 10

so that the application process and recording of applications could be automated. It also
assisted with the weekly and monthly reporting to BEIS of all grants paid.

The guidance documents issued by the Department of Business, Energy and Industrial
Strategy (BEIS) for each scheme, were followed diligently by the team. In all cases,
before a payment was made, thorough checks were made to verify businesses
credentials and eligibility for the relevant scheme. These included checks against
business rate records, bank account details, companies house, with landlords and in
some cases Visits to properties. Careful reconciliation was undertaken before each pay
run was authorised and a master spreadsheet maintained to ensure accurate reporting to
BEIS.

In addition to two phases of Government mandated schemes the Council has
administered a discretionary scheme in June 2020 and five separate rounds of the
Additional Restrictions Grant Scheme between November 2020 and July 2021. Over
3,300 grants totalling £5.1milion have been paid in respect of discretionary schemes.

Although the Government gave some direction the Council was able to design the
discretionary schemes to target support at businesses important to Cheltenham’s
economy, particularly the hospitality sector. The team’s knowledge of local businesses,
along with input from the Cabinet, the MP’s office, Cheltenham BID and GFirst LEP
enabled each scheme to be designhed and open for applications quickly. Due to the
thinking put into the initial design of the scheme, we were able to add or remove
categories in each round so that support went to those businesses most impacted at the
time each round was live. The majority of businesses supported by the scheme have
successfully re-opened which demonstrates the success of the targeted approach.

Administering the grant schemes has been a significant amount of work in very
challenging circumstances. New systems, processes and procedures have been set up
in a matter of days and changed quickly to account for variations to rules, grant amounts
and the rapid introduction of new schemes. The team has been under considerable
pressure due to the speed and scale of the operation but also from businesses
desperate to secure immediate payment, dealing with challenges from those businesses
not eligible and businesses using fraudulent methods to try and secure grant payments.
Staff constantly worked long hours and at weekends to ensure each scheme was
introduced promptly and payments made to businesses as quickly as possible.

The prompt response when the first announcement was made resulted in Cheltenham
being one of the first Councils in the country to start paying grants to businesses in
March 2020. Punchline published an article applauding Cheltenham’s work in distributing
grants, referring to the positive comments received from the business community.
Cheltenham was also shortlisted as a finalist in the CCLA/Room151 Impact Awards for
its response to Covid-19 including administration of the business grants.

Nationally there has been a significant amount of fraudulent activity linked to the
business grant schemes. Two companies that targeted Councils with fraudulent grant
applications have recently been wound up in the High Court due to their actions. One of
the companies did attempt to acquire a grant in Cheltenham. Due to the administration of
grants being undertaken by a small but very experienced and knowledgeable team with a
high level of verification it was unsuccessful. The Executive Director Finance and Assets
made the decision early in the process not to publish grant payments under the
transparency code. This prevented fraudsters from being able to identify businesses that
had not received a grant but might be eligible and then submitting fraudulent
applications. A total of twelve grants were paid incorrectly or due to false or fraudulent
applications. One was repaid by the bank and eleven invoices have been issued to
recover grant payments. Of the eleven, nine were repaid quickly and the Counter Fraud
Unit are taking action to recover the two that have not been repaid.

Page 4 of 6 Last updated 09 September 2021



Page 11

2.12 Although the business grants team undertook the majority of the administration of grants
it has been a “Team Cheltenham” effort. Members assisted with checking business
premises and making businesses in their wards aware of the grants. Finance have
helped manage the funding received and approved the multitude of payment runs. The
Communications team made numerous press releases and social media posts for each
scheme. The Executive Director Finance and Assets provided constant support and
guidance. The team was also supported by our partners in the Counter Fraud Unit,
Publica, and Internal audit.

Report author Contact officer:  Jayne Gilpin, Head of Revenues and
Benefits Jayne.gilpin@cheltenham.gov.uk,

01242 264323

Appendices

Background information | None

Page 5 of 6 Last updated 09 September 2021



Page 6 of 6

Last updated 09 September 2021

2T obed



This version of the report is a draft. Its contents and
subject matter remain under review and its contents may
change and be expanded as part of the finalisation of

o GrantThornton the report

The Audit Findings for
Cheltenham Borough Council

Year ended 31 March 2021

Cheltenham Borough Council
22 September 2021

¢T obed

9 wal| epuaby



Commercial in confidence

Contents

Section Page The contents of this report relate only to the
o . matters which have come to our attention,
1. Headlines 3 which we believe need to be reported to you
2. Financial statements 5 as part of our audit planning process. It is
not a comprehensive record of all the
3. Value for money arrangements 23

relevant matters, which may be subject to
L. Independence and ethics 25 change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Council or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Barrie Morris Appendices report has been prepared solely for your T
Key Audit Part . benefit and should not be quoted in whole

ey Audit Fartner A. Action plan 28 in part without our prior written consent. W, Q
Barrie.Morris@uk.gt.com B. Follow up of prior year recommendations 29 do not accept any responsibility for any lo:

occasioned to any third party acting, or

C. Audit adjustments 30 refraining from acting on the basis of the =
Jade Brockett D. Fees 34 content of this report, as this report was
. . . not prepared for, nor intended for, any
Assistant Manager E. Audit Opinion 35 other purpose.
Jade.Brockett@uk.gt.com F. Audit letter in respect of delayed VFM work 36

Ellie Nicholls
. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
In—Chorge Auditor partnership registered in England and Wales:
Ellie.M.Nicholls@uk.gt.com This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the  No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting process, as ~ Square, London, EC2A 1AG. Allist of members is

required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260. Its contents has been discussed with ~ 2vailable from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
management. by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2



1. Headlines

This table summarises the
key findings and other
matters arising from the
statutory audit of
Cheltenham Borough
Council (‘the Council’) and
the preparation of the group
and Council's financial
statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 for
those charged with
governance.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Financial Statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs)
and the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit
Practice ('the Code'), we are required to report

whether, in our opinion:

* the group and Council's financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the group and Council and the group and

Council’s income and expenditure for the
year; and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with '
the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local

authority accounting and prepared in
accordance with the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014

We are also required to report whether other

information published together with the audited

financial statements (including the Annual

Governance Statement (AGS) and Narrative Report,

is materially inconsistent with the financial

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Our audit work was completed on remotely during July-September. Our findings are
summarised on pages 5 to 22. We have identified one adjustment to the financial
statements that had no overall financial impact on the Council’s Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix C. We
have also raised recommendations for management as a result of our audit work in
Appendix A. Our follow up of recommendations from the prior year’s audit are
detailed in Appendix B.

Our work is substantially complete, subject to the following outstanding matters:

evidence to support sample testing in the following areas: fees & charges; and
assets under construction.

* responses from managementin the follow areas: consolidation adjustments; PPE
revaluation table; and EFA.

* responses from the valuer to resolve queries in relation to investment property,
surplus asset and other land and building valuation

* Engagementlead of review of outstanding areas

GT abed

* receiptand review of the Pension Fund Auditor assurances;

* completion of group audit procedures, being the review of component auditor
work papers;

receipt of management representation letter; and
* review of the final set of financial statements.
We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial

statements, is consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and the financial
statements we have audited.

Our anticipated audit report opinion will be unqualified including an Emphasis of
Matter paragraph highlighting PPE valuation material uncertainty disclosures.




Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

Value for Money (VFM) arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit We have not yet completed all of our VFM work and so are not in a position to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report. An audit
Practice ('the Code'), we are required to consider whether letter explaining the reasons for the delay is attached in the Appendix F to this report. We expect to issue our Auditor’s Annual
the Council has put in place proper arrangements to Report by 30 December 2021. This is in line with the National Audit Office's revised deadline, which requires the Auditor's

secure economy, efficiency and effectivenessin its use of Annual Report to be issued no more than three months after the date of the opinion on the financial statements.
resources. Auditors are now required to report in more

detail on the Council's overall arrangements, as well as

key recommendations on any significant weaknessesin

arrangements identified during the audit.

Auditors are required to report their commentary on the
Council's arrangements under the following specified
criteria:

- Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness;
- Financial sustainability; and

- Governance

o
Q
Statutory duties Q

)
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) We expect to certify the completion of the audit upon the completion of our work on the Council's VFM arrangements, whick =
also requires us to: will be reported in our Annual Audi tor’s report in December 2021. o

* reportto you if we have applied any of the additional
powers and duties ascribed to us under the Act; and

* to certify the closure of the audit.

Significant Matters We did not encounter any significant difficulties or identify any significant matters arising during our audit. See page 3 for
the matters which we have been unable to conclude our findings on as at the date of this report.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. [N



2. Financial Statements

Overview of the scope of our audit Audit approach

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising
from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of
those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on
Auditing (UK] 260 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the
Code’). Its contents has been discussed with management.
As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
and the Code, which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have
been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged
with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

Acknowledgements

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the group’s business and is risk based,
and in particular included:

* An evaluation of the group’s internal controls
environment, including its IT systems and controls;

* Anevaluation of the components of the group based on
a measure of materiality considering each as a
percentage of the group’s gross revenue expenditure to
assess the significance of the component and to
determine the planned audit response. From this
evaluation we determined that specified audit
procedures for Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited and
Gloucestershire Airport were required, which were
completed by Bishop Fleming LLP and Hazlewoods LLP
respectively; and

* Substantive testing on significant transactions and
material account balances, including the procedures
outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

Commercial in confidence

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial
statements and subject to outstanding queries being
resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit, Compliance and Governance
Committee meeting on 22 September 2021, as detailed in
Appendix E. These outstanding items have been detailed in
full on page 3.

/T obed

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff. As highlighted on page 6 of our Audit Plan presented to the
Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee on 21 April 2021, the impact of the pandemic has meant that both your finance team and our audit team faced audit challenges again this
year, in particular conducting the audit remotely, including accessing your financial systems, video calling, using alternative procedures to verify assets, verifying the completeness and
accuracy of information produced by the entity. This resulted in us having to carry out additional audit procedures to gain sufficient audit assurance in respect of our auditor’s opinion on

the financial statements.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements

Group Amount (£) Council Amount (£)

Materiality for the financial statements 1,635,000 1,566,000
Performance materiality 1,226,000 1,175,000
Our approach to materiality
o Trivial matters 82,000 78,000
The concept of materiality is
fundamental to the preparation of the Materiality for senior officer N/A 10,000

financial statements and the audit
process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and
adherence to acceptable accounting
practice and applicable law.

remuneration

Materiality levels remain the same as
reported in our audit plan on 6 April
2021

We detail in the table our
determination of materiality for
Cheltenham Borough Council

8T abed

‘.ni;olc..,... \
n'c.‘m.':" .‘.M-
. u**‘—

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK] as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Management override of controls We have:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the * evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals

risk of management over-ride of controls is presentin all entities. * analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals

We therefore identified management override of control, in particular
journals, management estimates and transactions outside the course

of business as a significant risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement. ¢ gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied by management and

considered their reasonableness

* identified and tested unusual journals made during the year and the accounts production stage for
appropriateness and corroboration

Our testing identified 17 journals that had a blank description, these were selected for testing as this is a weakness in
key control. The results of the testing can be broken down into four reasons as to why the journals had blank
descriptions:

6T abed

¢ 12 cases were as a result of due to a system upload error, specifically in relation to Child Voucher Scheme. Where
the template uploaded has not carried over to the ledger correctly;

* 1journal which was a processing error where balance of £0.00 has been journaled to the R9974 account code
therefore blank description expected in error

* linstance where a journal was corrupted due to issues with the ‘Batch Input File’ spreadsheet the Council use to
upload journals to the system. This was fully reversed out.

¢ 3 cases which relate to a rounding error that been corrected by Agresso. The system will automatically allocate
any differences to account code E9991which is the error suspense, values were for £0.01in all 3 cases.

It was identified that one journal poster did not have appropriate user access
We have gained sufficient assurance over these items in our detailed testing.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of management override of controls.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 7



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of Land and Buildings, Council Dwellings,
Investment Properties and Surplus Assets

The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a rolling five-
yearly basis. This valuation represents a significant estimate
by management in the financial statements due to the size of
the numbers involved (E13 million) and the sensitivity of this
estimate to changes in key assumptions. Additionally,
management will need to ensure the carrying value in the
Authority and group financial statements is not materially
different from the current value or the fair value (for surplus
assets) at the financial statements date, where a rolling
programme is used. The Authority also has investment
properties and surplus assets which must be valued annually
at 31 March.

We therefore identified valuation of land and buildings,
including council dwellings, investment properties and
surplus assets, as a significant risk.

We have performed the following work in relation to this risk:

* evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to the
valuation experts and the scope of their work;

* evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;
* written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuations were carried out;

* challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding, the Council’s valuer’s report and the assumptions that underpin the valuation;

* tested, on a sample basis, revaluations made during the year to ensure they have been input correctly into the Council’s
asset register; and

* as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, management’s expert reported the valuations on the basis of material valuation
uncertainty. We reviewed the valuations in line with market trends, and challenged any valuations that were not in line
with trends. U

Management have ensured that all investment properties and surplus assets were revalued as at 31 March 2021 following th @
recommendation issued in the prior year audit. We are also satisfied that the other land and building assets not revalued dc ¢
not create the risk of material misstatement. N

Management’s expert has disclosed a material uncertainty with regards to the valuations of land, buildings, dwellings, o
investment properties and surplus assets and we have undertaken additional work as a result of this, as set out above. This
will resultin the audit report including an emphasis of matter, highlighting this material uncertainty.

See ‘key judgments and estimates’ from page 13 for further details on the findings of this significant risk.

Our audit work in this area is still ongoing as we review the responses to outstanding queries in relation to valuations.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Income from Fees, Charges and Other Service Income There are no changes to our assessment reported in the audit plan in relation to streams for which the risk of revenue
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that recognition has been rebutted.

revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognitionof  In relation to Fees, Charges and Other Service Income, we have:

revenue. .

evaluated the group’s accounting policy for recognition of income from Fees, Charges and Other Service Income for
For Cheltenham Borough Council, we have concluded that the appropriateness;

greatest risk of material misstatement relates to Fees, Charges
and Other Service Income. We have therefore identified the
occurrence and accuracy of ‘Fees, Charges and Other Service
Income’ as a significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement, and a key
audit matter. We have identified that £2,474k of grant income has been recognised as fees, charges and other service income in error. The
revenue has beenincluded in the ledger as one transaction being the ‘MHCLG Loss of Income Compensation Grant’. This
covers the reduction in income Council’s experienced due to the government-imposed lockdowns due to outbreaks of Covid

19. As this is in relation to one transaction posted to the incorrect account code and does not suggest a weakness in revenue
recognition controls. This is presentation within the income and expenditure by nature note and management have agreed (9
to adjust for this so as the balances are correctly stated in this note. (9]

gained an understanding of the Authority's system for accounting for income from Fees, Charges and Other Service
Income and evaluate the design of the associated controls; and

* agreed, on a sample basis, amounts recognised as income from Fees, Charges and Other Service Income in the financial
statements to supporting documents.

We have rebutted this presumed risk for the other revenue
streams of the group and Authority because:

* otherincome streams are primarily derived from grants or
formula based income from central government and tax

payers; and/or
Otherwise, our audit work has not identified any issues in respect the recognition of Fees, Charges and Other Servic B

. . . .
opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very Income.

limited.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 9



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Valuation of the pension fund net liability We have performed the following work in relation to this risk:

The Authority's pension fund net liability, as reflectedin its
balance sheet as the net defined benefit liability, represents
a significant estimate in the financial statements and group
accounts. * evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the
scope of the actuary’s work;

+ updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the Council’s
pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant
estimate due to the size of the numbersinvolved (E5Y4 million + assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Council’s pension fund
in the Authority’s balance sheet) and the sensitivity of the valuation;

estimate to changes in key assumptions. * assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to the actuary to estimate the

liability;
The methods applied in the calculation of the IAS 19 estimates
are routine and commonly applied by all actuarial firmsin line
with the requirements set out in the Code of practice for local
government accounting (the applicable financial reporting

tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial
statements with the actuarial report from the actuary; and

undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of the

framework). We have therefore concluded that there is not a consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within the report (@)

significant risk of material misstatement in the IAS 19 estimate @

due to the methods and models used in their calculation. In 2019-20, the Council commissioned a revised IAS19 report to evaluate the impact of the McCloud judgment. The impactin N
2019-20 was £105k which was not material, hence remained unadjusted. The Council has accounted for this in 2020-21 by

The source data used by the actuaries to produce the IAS 19 restating the comparatives, it is our view that this £105k should be accounted for as a past service cost in the current year.

estimates is provided by administering authorities and

. . . . Management have a d to amend th ntation of this disclosure to be in line with o oposed treatment..
employers. We do not consider this to be a significant risk as geme ve agreedtoame e presentation of this disclosure to be in line with our prop r

this is easily verifiable. We are awaiting assurances from the auditor of Gloucestershire Pension Fund as to the controls surrounding the validity
and accuracy of membership data; contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund; and the
The actuarial assumptions used are the responsibility of the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

entity but should be set on the advice given by the actuary. A gee ‘key judgments and estimates’ from page 13 for further details on the findings of this significant risk.
small change in the key assumptions (discount rate, inflation

rate, salary increase and life expectancy) can have a
significantimpact on the estimated IAS 19 liability. In particular
the discount and inflation rates, where our consulting actuary
has indicated that a 0.1% change in these two assumptions
would have approximately 2% effecton the liability. We have
therefore concluded that there is a significant risk of material
misstatement in the IAS 19 estimate due to the assumptions
used in their calculation. With regard to these assumptions we
have therefore identified valuation of the Authority’s pension
fund net liability as a significant risk.

Our audit work in this area is complete subject to the receipt and review of the Pension Fund Auditor’s assurances,
based on the work completed we have not identified any issues in respect of the valuation of the pension fund net

liability. We will require the pension fund auditor to clarify if there is a material uncertainty in relation to property
funds as there was in the prior year as a result of Covid-19.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 10



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Key findings
arising from the group audit

Component Componen  Findings Group audit impact
t auditor
Cheltenham Bishop An unqualified audit opinion of Cheltenham Audit procedures undertaken:
Borough Homes Fleming LLP Borough Homes Limited was issued by Bishop ¢ made contact with the component auditors and provided them with group audit instructions
Limited Fleming LLP on 25 August 2021. No significant confirming the specific audit procedures to be undertaken for Group assurance purposes;

issues were identified. * communicated regularly with the component auditors, with the component auditors’ audit plans

No instructions had beenissued to the and findings reports for the group entities being shared with the Group audit team; and
Componentin respect of a group reporting
package nor for the conversion adjustments for
the financial reporting framework and selected
accounting policies applicable to the Group Our review of the component auditor’s working papers is outstanding as at the date of this
Financial Statements. The Component Financiall report

Information therefore comprises solely of the

statutory financial statements of the Component

for the year ended 31 March 2021, with conversion

adjustments undertaken by Group.

* reviewed management’s consolidation workings to ensure the correct amounts had been
consolidated and that the eliminations were appropriate.

ez abed

Gloucestershire Hazlewoods  An unqualified audit opinion of Gloucestershire  Audit procedures undertaken:

Airport Limited LLP Airport Limited was issued by Hazlewoods LLPon ¢+ made contact with the component auditors and provided them with group audit instructions
3 September 2021. No significant issues were confirming the specific audit procedures to be undertaken for Group assurance purposes;
identified.

* communicated regularly with the component auditors, with the component auditors’ audit plans
No instructions had been issued to the and findings reports for the group entities being shared with the Group audit team; and
Componentin respect of a group reporting
package nor for the conversion adjustments for
the financial reporting framework and selected
accounting policies applicable to the Group Our review of the component auditor’s working papers is outstanding as at the date of this
Financial Statements. The Component Financiall report

Information therefore comprises solely of the

statutory financial statements of the Component

for the year ended 31 March 2021, with conversion

adjustments undertaken by Group.

* reviewed management’s consolidation workings to ensure the correct amounts had been
consolidated and that the eliminations were appropriate.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - new issues and

risks

Issue

Commentary

Auditor view

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP]

* The Council uses borrowing, both long and short term, to
fund its acquisition of non-current assets, including
operational land, property, plant and equipment and
investment properties. As at 31 March 2021 the total levels
of borrowings for the Council stood at £174.1m, which was
a reduction on the prior year borrowings of £11.3m from
£185.8m.

* To reflect that the benefit of these assets will be realised
over a number of years, the cost associated with the
funding of these asset purchases is also spread over a
number of years and this is known as the Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP). To ensure that the level of MRP
attributed to each financial year is appropriate, the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) has produced guidance, which was most
recently updated and issued in 2018.

* For the financial year 2020/21, the Council approved on
23 March 2020 the budget to set aside MRP of £2.062m,
which included £171k of voluntary overpayment.

* Giventhe unprecedented challenges presented by the
Covid-19 pandemic, the Executive Director Finance and
Assets (s151 Officer) published a Covid-19 recovery
revised budget 2020-21 which was presented and
approved at Council on 16 November 2020. This proposed
a temporary change to the way that the MRP was to be
funded in the year, with the plan to repeat this in 2021-22
and potentially 2022-23, by utilising capital receipts to
offset the amount charged to revenue within the financial
year. The Council took comfort that this approach was
appropriate as it had been adopted by other Councils in
both the current and previous years, with no additional
clarity or statutory guidance being provided by MHCLG
to determine whether this treatmentis allowable

The permitted use of capital receipts is set out in Regulation
23 of the Local Authorities Capital Finance and Accounting
Regulations. This prescribes a limited number of ways that
capital receipts can be utilised, one of which is ‘to repay the
principal of any amount borrowed’. If capital receipts are
used to repay borrowing this will reduce the total amount
outstanding and therefore the level of MRP that will need to
be charged.

However, in our view, capital receipts cannot be used to
directly offset the amount of MRP charged to revenue.
Therefore, we have determined that the policy approved by
Council, in the current environment with a challenging
financial outlook, has the impact of not being sufficiently
prudent.

There is increasing scrutiny on the level of MRP that Councils
are charging as a result of some high profile cases where
insufficient amounts have been charged by a number of
Councils.

In light of our comments above in respect of the revised MRP
policy, we have considered whether the amount of MRP
charged to revenue in the 2020-21 of £236k by the Council is
‘prudent’ after the capital receipts element is excluded.

The broad aim of ‘prudent’ provision is to require local
authorities to put aside revenue over time to cover their CFR.
In doing so, local authorities should align the period over
which they charge MRP to one that is commensurate with the
period over which their capital expenditure provides benefits.
Guidance presents four options for calculating prudent
provision. Local authorities can use a mix of these options for
debt taken out at different times.

We also note that the Council continued to make the
voluntary overpayments of £171k, meaning that the total
value of overpayments to date is £1.061m.

In addition to considering the amount of MRP
charged, we have also taken into account a
number of other factors, including the Council’s
track record for making prudent MRP charges in
previous years, the fact that the Council has made
voluntary overpaymentsin MRP in previous years,
the overall health of the Council’s finances,
including the level of the General Fund, earmarked
and other usable reserves and its overall debt
position and performance in respect of debt
management.

Taking these wider factors into account, we have
gained sufficient assurance that the Council has
sound financial management processes in place
and that it is not taking actions that would
otherwise indicate that its doesn’t operate in a
prudent way.

vz abed

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - new issues and
risks

This section provides commentary on new issues and risks which were identified during the course of the audit that were not
previously communicated in the Audit Plan and a summary of any significant deficiencies identified during the year.

Issue

Commentary

Auditor view

IFRS 16 implementation

Although the implementation of IFRS 16
has been delayed to 1 April 2022,
audited bodies still need to include
disclosure in their 2020/2021
statements to comply with the
requirement of IAS 8 para 31. As a
minimum, we expected audited bodies
to disclose the title of the standard, the
date of initial application and the
nature of the changes in accounting
policy for leases

The Council's financial statements identify that
IFRS 16 is not anticipated to have a material effect
on the financial statements or balances of the
council since the changes mainly affect the
recognition of leases by lessees and the Council
does not have any material finance or operating
lease liabilities as lessee.

We have reviewed the Council’s assessment and undertaken audit procedures to gain
assurance over the accuracy of this disclosure. We are satisfied that this disclosure is
appropriate.

Gz obed

Recognition and Presentation of Grant
Income

The Council receives a number of
grants and contributions and is
required to follow the requirements set
out in sections 2.3 and 2.6 of the
Code. The main considerations are to
determine whether the Council is
acting as principal/ agent, and if there
are any conditions outstanding (as
distinct from restrictions) that would
determine whether the grant be
recognised as a receipt in advance or
income. The Council also needs to
assess whether grants are specific,
and hence credited to service revenue
accounts, or of a general or capital
nature in which case they are credited
to taxation and non-specific grant
income

We have reconciled the figures between note 16
and note 18, detailing the amount of grant income
the Council has receivedin year.

On a sample basis, we have agreed grant income
to supporting externally generated evidence.
During this testing, we have reviewed the way in
which management have recognised grant income
to agree the treatment applied by the Council as
appropriate.

The creditor balance on the statement on financial
position reflects the year end value of grants
received by the Council on an agency basis and
as such is not to be recognised as income for the
Council.

A variance of £2,747k was identified between notes 16 and 18. This has arisen as a portion
of grant income was included within fees, charges and other service income whereas
should be in govt grants & contributions. This has been reported as an adjusted error.

The council were unable to provide sufficient evidence for one of the sample items as
they were unable to reconcile the brought forward balances dating back a number of
years. This was an isolated error as it related to a previous Grant Received in Advance
(GRIA) that had been released into grant income within the year therefore the total value
of the error was £158k. This has been reported as an unadjusted error.

A similar issues was identified in the grants received in advance balance. The Council
were unable to provide sufficient evidence for one of the sample items as they were
unable to reconcile the brought forward balances dating back a number of years.
Extrapolating the error gave a projected misstatement of £85bk.

The creditor balance has been agreed to be materially accurate based on the testing of
the receipts and payments verified using externally generated evidence.

We are satisfied with the treatment taken by the Council in relation to the
recognition and presentation of grant income following the adjustment noted
above.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - key judgements
and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements inline with the enhanced
requirements for auditors.

Significant estimate = Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment

Property, plant and The Council has engaged an internal valuer as well as an external valuer to We considered the competence, qualifications and

equipment: complete the valuation of assets as at 31 March 2021 on a five yearly cyclical  independence of management’s valuation expert as well as their

Land and Building basis. 96% of these two classes of assets were revalued during 2020/21. relevant terms of reference and valuation report. We did not

valuations - £138m Other land and buildings comprises £75m of specialised assets such as identify any issues.

Surplus assets - schools and libraries, which are required to be valued at depreciated For all assets we identified which were inside and outside of our

£L7m replacement cost (DRC) at year end, reflecting the cost of a modern expectation using Gerald Eve indices to determine a point
equivalent asset necessary to deliver the same service provision. The estimate. This enabled us to assess the reasonableness of o
remainder of other land and buildings (£63m) are not specialised in nature increase/decrease in estimate Q
and are required to be valued at existing use in value (EUV) at year end. On a sample basis, we analysed the method, data and ((%
Surplus assets are all valued at Fair Value in line with IFRS 13. assumptions used by management to derive the accounting N
Management have addressed estimation uncertainty as significant changes estimate. o))
were reviewed by the technical accountant in consultation with the internal We then considered in more detail, management bias in
valuer. determining the estimate and evaluated evidence that
Management have considered the year end value of non-valued assets and cgntrod(ljc(‘;s n.ﬁonor?emeg.t s.oslseds.smegt. Eonmdgred (,]” evm:ljence
the potential valuation change in the assets revalued at 31 March 2021. °© tomz uring td‘e Otfd't’ ine uhlng Otl corro I'?rotwe an
Management’s assessment of assets not revalued has identified no material contra |.ctorg audit evi enee, when eva uating the
change to the properties value appropriateness of accounting estimates.
The total year end valuation of land and buildings was £138m, a net VXe?re SOF'Slf'ed with the adequacy of disclosure of estimate in
decrease of £142m from 2019/20 (E4m). the financial statements.
The total year end valuation of surplus assets was £44m, a net Our.conclusmns are outst.ondlng at the date on this report,
increase/decrease of £42m from 2019/20 (£2m). subject to responses provided by the valuers

Assessment

® [Purple] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

[ J We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
® ([Light Purple] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - key judgements

and estimates

Significant estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Investment property The Council is required to revalue its investment This valuation represents a significant estimate by managementin the financial
valuation - £66m properties at fair value on an annual basis at 31March ~ statements due to the size of the numbers involved and the sensitivity of this
2021. estimate to changes in key assumptions.
The Council has engaged an internal valuer as well as We assessed of management’s experts used and found them to be capable,
an external valuer to complete the valuation of competent and objective
properties as at 31 March 2021, We challenged the appropriateness of the underlying information used to
Significant valuation movements are subjectto determine the estimate. Alongside this, we ensured there is consistency of
management challenge of the valuers. assumptions against peers/industry data.
The total year end valuation of land and buildings was ~ Where movements are significant, we reviewed increase/decrease in estimates for
£66m, a net decrease of £64m from 2019/20 (£4m). reasonableness. o
We are satisfied that the management have adequately disclosed this estimate in Q
the financial statements ((%
Our conclusions are outstanding at the date on this report, subject to N
responses provided by the valuers ~

Property, plant and
equipment:

The Council owns 4,500 dwellings and is required to
revalue these properties in accordance with DCLG’s
Stock Valuation for Resource Accounting guidance. The
guidance requires the use of beacon methodology, in
which a detailed valuation of representative property
types is then applied to similar properties. The Council
has engaged a RICS registered valuer to complete the
valuation of these properties. In the year under review,
the valuation has been on a desktop basis, a full
revaluation was undertaken in the prior year. The year
end valuation of Council Housing was £232m, a net
increase/decrease of £18m from 2019/20 (£214m).

Council Dwellings -
£232m

We considered the competence, qualifications and independence of management’s
valuation expert as well as their relevant terms of reference and valuation report.
We did not identify any issues.

We confirmed that the information used by the valuer was complete and accurate
and the desktop revaluation process were appropriate.

We also confirmed that the valuation approach was consistent with the prior year
and was in accordance with the guidance on stock valuation for resource
accounting.

We challenged the indices used in the valuation process and also corroborated the
valuation of a sample of properties to market data and were satisfied with the
results.

We are satisfied the estimate included by management is materially accurate
and free from bias.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Light purple




Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - key judgements
and estimates

Significant Summary of management’s

estimate approach Audit Comments Assessment
Net pension The Council’s net pension liabilityat ~ We have reviewed the estimate, undertaking tests on the asset and liability elements of the net liability. Light purple
liability — £54m 31 March 2021 is £64m (PY £61m) Using analytical procedures, we have compared actual results with expectations and estimates applied

comprising the Local Government
defined benefit pension scheme
obligations.

The Council uses Hymans Robertson
to provide actuarial valuations of the
Council’s assets and liabilities
derived from this scheme. A full
actuarial valuation is required every
three years.

The latest full actuarial valuation was
completedin 31 March 2019. Given
the significant value of the net
pension fund liability, small changes
in assumptions can result in
significant valuation movements.
There has been a £9m net actuarial
gain/loss during 2020/21.

by the actuary and have concluded that the results are reasonable.

We have reviewed the work of management’s actuary, Hymans Robertson, through the use of an auditor’s
expert, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC). We have undertaken an assessment of actuary’s roll forward
approach, including work to confirm reasonableness of the approach. We also considered the
assumptions applied by the actuary in their 2019/20 IAS 19 pension liability calculation against those
independently assessed by our auditor expert, and the results are set out below.

Assumption Actuary PwC range Assessment
Value

Discount rate 2.00% 1.95% - 2.00%

Pension increase rate 2.85% 2.80%-2.85% v
Salary growth 3.15% 2.80% - 3.85% v
Life expectancy - Males 22.9/219 21.9 - 24.4+ v
currently aged 45 / 65 20.6-23.1

Life expectancy - Females 26.0/24.3 24.8 - 26.4 v
currently aged 45 / 65 23.3-25.0

We have undertaken checks on the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to
determine the estimate in order to determine the reasonableness of increase in the estimate. We have also
ensured adequacy of the disclosure of the estimate in the financial statements.

We are waiting for assurances from the auditor of Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund over the
processes and controls in place at the Pension Fund, including those around member data and the
information provided to the actuary. We have requested confirmation that the pension fund auditor had
undertaken testing of the Pension Fund’s Level 3 investments.

A number of values within the disclosure of note 34 were agreed with management as requiring
adjustment to agree to the actuary report, these did not impact the calculation of the net pension fund
liability.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - key judgements
and estimates

Significant judgement

or estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Grants Income For several grants, the Council is acting as an agent and does  We have: Light purple
Recognltl?n and not recognise grgnt income. The bc1|c1nce. of grgnts ur.u.)old s * Assessedwhether the Council is acting as the principal or agent which

Presentation- £60m shown as a creditor in the statement of financial position.

would determine whether the authority recognises the grant as revenue

in the year under review
There also has grants where the Council is acting as the J

Grants Received in principal and credited the following grants, contributionsand Reviewed the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information

Advanced Presentation-  y5nations to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure used to determine whether there are conditions outstanding (as distinct
£lm Statement from restrictions) that would determine whether the grant be recognised
as a receipt in advance or income
The Council has received a number of grants, contributions * Assessedthe impact for grants received, whether the grant is specific or
and donations that have yet to be recognised as income as non specific grant (or whetherit is a capital grant) - which impacts on
they have conditions attached to them that will require the where the grant is presented in the CIES.

monies or property to be returned to the giver. * Reviewed the adequacy of disclosure of judgement in the financial

statements

Details of findings have been detailed within ‘new issues and risks’ within
this report. Adjustment identified, but this Is presentational and does not
reflect management’s approach being materially incorrect.

We are satisfied with the treatment taken by the Council in relation to
the recognition and presentation of grant income following the
adjustment noted above.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 17



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - key judgements
and estimates

Significant judgement or

estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Minimum Revenue The Council is responsible on an annual basis for determining Due to the uncertaintiesin local government funding brought about the Dark purple
Provision - £236k the amount charged for the repayment of debt known as its Covid-19 pandemic, the Council has taken a temporary course of

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). The basis for the charge is action to reduce the level of MRP charged to revenue in the year by

set out in regulations and statutory guidance. applying capital receipts.

The year end MRP charge was £236k, a net decrease of £1,437k  This, in our view, is contrary to regulations that cover how capital

from 2019/20. receipts can be used.

The Council continued to make the voluntary overpayments of However, in considering the wider factors and overall financial

£171k (£163 in the prior year), meaning that the total value of management of the Council, we are satisfied that, in totality, the

overpayments to date is £1.061m. Council has a prudent approach to MRP, notwithstanding our view that

the charge in respect of the 2020-21 financial year was not.

We therefore recommend that the Council re-considers the MRP policy
for future years to ensure that it complies with the underlying
regulations and guidance and charges a prudent level of MRP to the
revenue account.

Assessment

® [Purple] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

[ J We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® ([Light Purple] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 18



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - other
communication requirements

We set out belOW detO”S Of Issue Commentqrg
other matters which we, as : : :

. . Matters in relation We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee . We have
auditors, are requi red bU to fraud not been made aware of any other incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the
CIUC“tiﬂg standards and the course of our audit procedures.

Code to communicate to Matters in relation As part of our review of senior officer declarations, it was noted that one officeris also a director of Cheltenham
those cha rged with to related parties BID Limited of which the Council has transactions with. These transactions, although not material to the Council
are material to Cheltenham BID Limited and as such require disclosure in the Council’s financial statements.
governance. . o e U
This has been rectified by management in the final accounts. o))
«Q
Matters in relation You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations )
to laws and and we have not identified any incidences from our audit work. w
regulations =
Written A letter of representation has been requested from the Council, including specific representations in respect of the
representations Group, which is outstanding at the date of this report

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 19



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - other
communication requirements

Issue Commentary

Confirmation We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to several counterparties which the Council
requests from hold bank accounts, investments and borrowings with. This permission was granted and the requests were sent, all these
third parties requests were returned with positive confirmation.

We requested management to send letters to those solicitors who worked with the Group during the year. No issues
noted with responses received.

Accounting We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Council's accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial
practices statement disclosures. Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.
We did note one disclosure in relation to estimation uncertainty did not meet the description of such per IAS1, U
management have amended this disclosure so as the presentationis in line with the requirements of IAS 1in the final Q
accounts. (@)
)
Audit evidence Evidence received in the year under review has largely been of a better standard than in the prior year. However, in some W
and instances, there have continued to be some delays in providing sufficient evidence. We recognise that this is an N
explanations/ inevitable result of a change in the finance team at the Council and the respective teams getting to know expectations.
Z'%:'f'?:nt One area of for focus in future years is the debtors and creditors populations for sampling. These were initially provided
ifficulties

with opening balances included, being transaction listings rather than a breakdown of balances the Council owed / was
owing at 31 March 2021. After discussion with officers, the appropriate information was provided that enabled us to
identify a population for sampling. We also experienced some challenges due to the limited availability of the specialist
involved in the valuations of the Council Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) balances, including Investment Properties.
This is an area where we encourage the Council to ensure that there is sufficient capacity is future years, as this is an
area of significant risk and therefore requires a substantial level of audit work.

We would also emphasise that some of the delays can be attributed to the environment where audit of accounts is more
difficult, as the entire audit was conducted remotely. | n addition, as we respond to findings from the Regulator reviews
of our files, some of the expectations for supporting evidence for transactions has also increased.

Notwithstanding the comments above, the overall direction of travel is positive and we commend officers and the
Council for this.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 26



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - other
communication requirements

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are required to “obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about the appropriateness of
management's use of the going
concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the
financial statements and to conclude
whetherthere is a material
uncertainty about the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern” (ISA

(UK) 570).

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Issue

Commentary

Going concern

In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice -
Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The
Financial Reporting Council recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing
standards are applied to an entity in a manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of
financial statements in that sector. Practice Note 10 provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector
entities:

+ the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and
resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for
accounting will apply where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such
cases, a material uncertainty related to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and
standardised approach for the consideration of going concern will often be appropriate for public sector
entities

» for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the servicesit provides is
more likely to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting.
Our consideration of the Council's financial sustainability is addressed by our value for money work, which is
covered elsewhere in this report.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern
basis of accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the
auditor applies the continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting
framework adopted by the Council meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service
approach. In doing so, we have considered and evaluated:

* the nature of the Council and the environmentin which it operates

* the Council's financial reporting framework

* the Council's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern

* management’s going concern assessment.

On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
* o material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

cg abed

21



2. Financial Statements - other
responsibilities under the Code

Issue

Commentary

Other information

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial
statements (Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report) is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Audit procedures are incomplete at the date of this report in respect of these matters

Matters on which

We are required to report on a number of matters by exceptionin a number of areas:

we report by + if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA/SOLACE
exception guidance or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit,
* if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties.
+ where we are not satisfied in respect of arrangements to secure value for money and have reported [a]
significant weakness/es.
Audit procedures are incomplete at the date of this report in respect of these matters
Specified We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts
procedures for (WGA) consolidation pack under WGA group audit instructions.
Whole of
Government Work is not required as the Council does not exceed the threshold.
Accounts

Certification of the
closure of the audit

We intend to delay the certification of the closure of the 2020/21 audit of Cheltenham Borough Council in the
audit report, as detailed in Appendix E, due to incomplete VFM work.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

22



3. Value for Money arrangements

Revised approach to Value for Money
work for 2020/21

On1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a
new Code of Audit Practice which comes into effect from
audit year 2020/21. The Code introduced a revised
approach to the audit of Value for Money. (VFM]

There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s
new approach:

* Anew set of key criteria, covering financial
sustainability, governance and improvementsin
economy, efficiency and effectiveness

* More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the
auditor to produce a commentary on arrangements
across all of the key criteria.

* Auditors undertaking sufficient analysis on the
Council's VFM arrangements to arrive at far more
sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as
key recommendations on any significant weaknesses
in arrangements identified during the audit.

The Code require auditors to consider whether the body
has put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectivenessin its use of
resources. When reporting on these arrangements, the
Code requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under the three specified reporting
criteria.

Our work has yet to be completed on Value for Money
and we anticipate this being reported to the Council by
31 December 2021.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

%

Improving economy, efficiency
and effectiveness

Arrangements for improving the

way the body delivers its services.

This includes arrangements for
understanding costs and
delivering efficiencies and
improving outcomes for service
users.

Financial Sustainability

Arrangements for ensuring the
body can continue to deliver
services. Thisincludes planning
resources to ensure adequate
finances and maintain
sustainable levels of spending
over the medium term (3-6 years)

Potential types of recommendations

Commercial in confidence

Governance

Arrangements for ensuring that
the body makes appropriate
decisions in the right way. This
includes arrangements for budget
setting and management, risk
management, and ensuring the
body makes decisions based on
appropriate information

Gg abed

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on the body’s arrangements to secure

economy, efficiency and effectivenessin its use of resources, which are as follows:

Statutory recommendation
@ Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7] of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses in arrangements to
secure value for money they should make recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the
body. We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

Improvement recommendation

These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the body, but are not
made as a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the body’s arrangements



Commercial in confidence

3. VFM - our procedures and conclusions

We have not yet completed all of our VFEM work and so are not in a position to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report. We expect to
issue our Auditor’s Annual Report by 31 December 2021. This is in line with the National Audit Office's revised deadline, which
requires the Auditor's Annual Report to be issued no more than three months after the date of the opinion on the financial
statements. As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the Council's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We did not identify any risk of
significant weakness within our Audit Plan, but did identify the following two areas of key focus.

Our work on these areas is underway and an update is set out below.

Key areas of focus Work performed to date

Financial Sustainability We have reviewed the Council’s final 2020/21 outturn report against its original and revised plan, which was reported at an
underspend of £395k. We have reviewed various financial performance reports, including in year budget reporting to assess

Medium term financial planning and impact of Covid- arrangements for complete, accurate and timely financial monitoring.

19 on financial planning

Our work in this area is still ongoing and will focus on the robustness of the financial planning going forward, recognising the
current challenges. We will consider the impact of Covid-19 on the Council's current financial position including the impact on
budgeting into the short and medium term.

og¢ abed

Once complete our findings in this area will be reported in our Auditor’s Annual Report. There are no issues emerging which
impact on our account’s opinion.

Financial Sustainability The Council has continued to hold strategic commercial investments within the Cheltenham area to supportits regeneration
agenda and deliver future income streams to ensure that it has a reliable source of other income support its delivery of services.
The extent and nature of local government investments in properties continues to be an area of heightened interest by the
Government and regulators due to the inherent risk in such activities and the impact that could have on the probity of public
funds.

Cheltenham Borough Council has sought to ensure that it manages this risk through robust due diligence of the investment
acquisitions that it makes and ensures that such investments remain within the geographical boundary of the Council.
Ourwork in this area is still ongoing and will focus on the performance of current investments as well as the information provided
to support the decisions made on investments in the year and those that are planned in the near future.

Once complete our findings in this area will be reported in our Auditor’s Annual Report. There are no issues emerging which
impact on our account’s opinion.

The Council’s Commercial Investment Strategy, in light
of emerging national guidance and the Covid-19
pandemic

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

L. Independence and ethics

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant
matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm or
covered persons (including its partners, senior managers, managers). In this context, we
disclose the following to you:

In this context, we disclose the following to you that in May 2020, a member of our wider
public sector assurance team, has taken up a post of employment within Publica Group
(Support) Ltd. This individual’s role is a Deputy Chief Financial Officer to Cotswold District
Council, with further responsibilities as Chief Accountant in Publica Group (Support) Ltd.
This individual does not work on this audit engagement, so we consider that this fact has had
no bearing on our audit judgment or independence. We have safeguarded the perceived
threat to independence by ensuring the member of staff is not involved with the audit, with
assurance from the Chief Financial Officer (Section 161 Officer) that once working at
Publica, the individual will not:

* have access to view or amend the Cheltenham Borough Council ledger
* instruct staff on any transactions with affect the Cheltenham Borough Council accounts
* prepare or have any input into the Financial Statements for Cheltenham Borough Council

* have line management responsibility for any members of staff who are based in
Cheltenham

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the
financial statements.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor
Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix D
Transparency

Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of the
action we have taken over the past year to improve audit quality as well as the results of
internal and external quality inspections. For more details see Transparency report 2020
(grantthornton.co.uk)

)€ abed

25


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2020.pdf

Commercial in confidence

L. Independence and ethics

Audit and non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the group. The following non-audit services were identified, as well as the threats
to our independence and safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats.

Service

Fees £

Threats identified

Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of Housing
Capital receipts grant

5,000

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

Self review (because GT
provides audit services)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
for this work is £3,500 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £69,543 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors
all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

To mitigate against the self review threat , the timing of certification work is done after the audit has completed,
materiality of the amounts involved to our opinion and unlikelihood of material errors arising and the Council
has informed management who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree the accuracy
of our reports on grants.

Certification of Housing
Benefit Claim

19,906

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

Self review (because GT
provides audit services)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
for this work is £19,906 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £59,543 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors
all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

To mitigate against the self review threat, the timing of certification work is done after the audit has completed,
materiality of the amounts involved to our opinion and unlikelihood of material errors arising and the Council
has informed management who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree the accuracy
of our reports on grants.

These services are consistent with the group’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Audit, Compliance and Governance
Committee. None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

8¢ abed

26



Appendices

6E °9bed



Commercial in confidence

A. Action plan - Audit of Financial
Statements

We have identified three recommendations for the group as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our
recommendations with management and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2021/22 audit. The
matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are
of sufficientimportance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

Assessment  Issue and risk Recommendations

Medium It was identified that the total value of heritage assets was not We would as such recommend that management review the coverage on an annual basis to ensure that
covered by the insurance certificate. Insurance cover held is sufficientinsurance cover is held.
£650k less than the value of these assets. Management response
ShOlIJ(dehthe vyholifpc?rtfgllo be damaged or desltroge:,the Council The insurance arrangements and value of the Council’s heritage assets will be reviewed in 2021/22 to
would have insufficientinsurance cover to replace these assets. ensure their value is fully covered.

Medium There were some issues evidencing older balances, this was We would recommend that a review of balances carried forward as at 31 March 2021 is undertaken to
identified in grant testing; particularly where grants are being ensure that management are fully aware of what these balances relate to and investigate where there ‘:U
carried as receipts in advance or released from receiptsin any uncertainty around transactions.
advance during the year. Going forward, it would be beneficial to ensure that sufficient records are kept where balancesare  (Q
We were advised that this has largely been the case where there carried forward into new reporting periods. This will enable information is not lost with staff changes.
have been changes in staffing and |r1formot|on has been lost with Management response g
members of staff leaving the Council. ) ] ) ) )

Therei L th | lati . . There have been a number of changes in the finance team supporting the preparation and audit of the

Iherels GI risk that ?0 ances re Olt'ng to prior Eef'Ods are 2020/21 Statement of Accounts, including three new members of the team who have joined the team since

Incorrectly qu:ﬁf ﬁrwqrd orre :cefc.ns.ed into t j;(ncor.rect February 2021. As part of these changes, the accounting entries and working papers for balances,

reporting period if there is not sufficient record keeping. including grants carried forward and grants received in advance balances, have been reviewed to ensure
that those prepared for 2020/21 have clear, documented notes for the team to follow in future accounting
periods.

Medium Our testing identified 17 journals that had a blank description, We would recommend that all journals are posted with a description, and this is considered as part of the

these were selected for testing as this is a weakness in a key
control.

There is a risk that inappropriate journals could be posted to the
ledger to conceal fraudulent activity.

review process. Further training may be necessary for journal posted to ensure the finance team is aware
of the important of this key control.

Management response

It is not good practice to post journals without a description but accept that 17 journals from a totall
population of 30,140 is a small proportion. The users who have posted the journals without a description
have been identified and the requirement to include a description will be re-iterated. The journal listing will
be reviewed quarterly to identify and resolve any exceptions.

Action required

@ High priority - urgent action should be taken to address the weaknesses identified

® Medium - action should be taken to address the weaknesses identified in a timely manner

Low - action should be taken to move to best practice
© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

28



Commercial in confidence

B. Follow up of prior year
recommendations

Assessment

Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

We identified the
following issues in
the audit of
Cheltenham

Borough Council's
2019/20 financial

TBC

The Budget Strategy (Support) Reserve is part of the
Council’s medium term strategy and was set up in 2015
specifically for the purpose of supporting the budget. The
use of this reserve has been appropriately considered by the
Section 151 Officer and approved by Cabinet and Council.
We have considered the use of reservesin 2019/20 to deliver
financial balance. The Council plan to use £258k of the
Budget Strategy (Support) Reserve in 2020/21. The level of
reserves is sufficient to support the budget for 2020/21 but
beyond this it will have to be replenished.

As detailed in Appendix G, Value for Money work has not been completed in line with
the financial statement audit.

On this basis, we cannot yet comment on the Council’s medium-term strategy.

statements, which
resulted in five

recommendations
being reported in
our 2019/20 Audit
Findings report. We

TBC

The Council’s net budget includes income from investment
properties.

Income from investment properties to the end of March 2021
is secure, however there are some tenancies expiring during
the 2021- 22 financial year which may not be renewed if
home working becomes more common. The Council will have
to continue to closely monitor their investment opportunities
to identify additional savings in this case.

Our testing has identified that tenancies noted as expiring in the 2021- 22 financial
year have been either renewed or are rolling over. o

We have reviewed tenancies that have rolled over or due to expire in the 2022- 2 o
financial year and responses from management are outstanding as to the
continuation of these leases. As such, we are unable to comment at the date of tl

report. I-E

ab

have followed up

X We identified that investment properties worth £1.9m and We are satisfied that all investment properties were revalued as at 31 March 2021 and
on the . )
surplus assets worth £3.75m were not formally valued in that management have made changes to the revaluation programme to ensure that
im p|emeht0tion of 2019-20. The Council has undertaken an exercise which the approach taken is in line with the CIPFA Code.
our demon.strotes their consideration that the carrying value Surplus assets totalling £670k were not revalued in the year under review, this has
. and fglr VOILfe of these assets at 31 March 2020 are not been raised with management. We were advised that the valuer was asked to revalue
recommendations materially different. them all in the instructions however the revaluations were not received. As the totall
and note four are value was not material, management took no further action on this.
still to be v Our testing identified sample evidence and working papers Evidence and working papers received in the year under review has largely been of a
com p|eted, which were not to the required standard. Examples include better standard than in the prior year. Management have responded positively to this
the sample evidence in relation to income and expenditure recommendation and further progress is expected to be made in future years.
and working papers in relation to property, plant and
equipment reconciliations.
v The Council’s componentisation policy has not been The policy in the draft financial statements is unchanged from the prior year, being

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

updated since 2011. This policy was based on 1% of Other
Land and Buildings at that date being £872k, however based
on the 31 March 2020 balances, 1% would be £1.421m

£872k. This was raised with management, the policy was reviewed and updated in
year. The proposed policy was taken to Audit Committee on 14 July 2021.

This has been rectified as an adjustment in the final accounts, showing
componentisation policy being £1.421m

29




C. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report
all non trivial misstatements
to those charged with
governance, whether or not
the accounts have been
adjusted by management.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

Commercial in confidence

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the

year ending 31 March 2021.

Comprehensive Income and

Statement of Financial

Impact on total net

Detail Expenditure Statement £°000 Position £° 000 expenditure £°000

Grant income recognised as fees, charges and There is no impact on the net £ nil £ nil

other service income in error expenditure recorded in the o

Note: impact is not within CIES, but instead Council's Compre.henswe Income Q

income and expenditure by nature: and Expenditure Statement «Q
o D

Dr - Fees, charges and other service income -

£2,474k B

N

Cr - Government grants and contributions -

£2,474 k

Overall impact £nil £ nil £ nil

30



C. Audit Adjustments

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Commercial in confidence

oy abed

Disclosure omission Auditor recommendations Adjusted?
A number of amendments were noted within note 34, the pension liability: The disclosures in respect of the pension liability should reflect the underlying v
* other experience reported as negative instead of positive evidence and supporting information.
* total post-employment benefit charged to CIES reported as 12,537 instead of Management response

9,002 The disclosures were fully updated as detailed here in the final accounts
* infrastructure not included as asset category within ‘Quoted prices not in

active markets’
+ proportion of assets incorrectly calculated (impacting equity investments

and bonds)
Within the housing revenue accounts, two figures were not updated o reflectthe  Financial information should be updated to reflect the position at the year end, 31 v
position of the current year. March 2021.
These were for rent arrears and bad debt provision. Management response

The disclosures were fully updated as detailed here in the final accounts

Recalculating senior officer remuneration identified that the banding disclosed Ensure that the bandings for senior officer’s remuneration are calculated correctly. v
by management was incorrect in one instance. Management response
One officer should have been included within the £66,000 - £59,999 band not The disclosures were fully updated as detailed here in the final accounts
the £60,000 - £64,999 band.
A number of presentational, grammatical and numerical adjustments and Undertake a detailed review of the financial statements to ensure that the quality of v

additions were made to the financial statements to improve the readability and
understandability of disclosures and to ensure that they are in line with the
current International Financial Reporting Standards.

the information is to a high standard.
Management response

The disclosures were fully updated in line with commentary provided in the final
accounts

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

31



Commercial in confidence

C. Audit Adjustments

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Disclosure omission Auditor recommendations Adjusted?
The Movementin Reserves Statement consistency checker tool published by Officers should utilise the MIRS consistency checker tool to ensure that the v
CIPFA identified the following amendments: statement is accurately reported.

Note 34 - Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners Management response

to be changed from £4,983k to £4,853k

Note 25 - Reclassifications from/(to) PPE to be changed from £50k to £12k.
Revaluation gains to be changed from £38k to nil.

The disclosures were fully updated as detailed here in the final accounts

Note 19 - some revaluations gains to be put through the CIES rather than
credited to the revaluation reserve, due to them being identified as reversals of
revaluation losses put through the CIES in previous years, lines impacted:

* Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the RR (OLB and Surplus)

* Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in surplus/deficit on the o
provision of services (OLB and Surplus) o))

+ Assetsreclassified (to)/from held for sale (OLB) %

+ Depreciation written out to the RR (OLB) N

+ Depreciation written out to the surplus/deficit on the provision of services ~
(OLB)

Duplicates were identified within the operating leases schedule to support note We recommend that this is adjusted v

23. Valued should state as follows, original disclosure shown in brackets:
+ Not later than 1year £4,501k (E4,526k)

+ 2-5years £12,163k (12,242k)

*  More than 5 years £111,827 (113,148k)

Management response

The disclosures were fully updated as detailed here in the final accounts

The unadjusted impact of the McCloud judgment 2019-20 was accounted for We recommend that this is adjusted v
this in 2020-21 by restating the comparatives, it is our opinion that £105k should

. . Management response
be accounts for as a past service cost in the current year.

The disclosures were fully updated as detailed here in the final accounts

A disclosure within the detailed cash flow note was missing, this is to show that We recommend that this is adjusted v
the surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the

following items ‘Proceeds from the sale of PPE, investment property and
intangible assets’ that are investing and financing activities The disclosures were fully updated as detailed here in the final accounts

Management response

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 32



C. Audit Adjustments

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Impact of unadjusted misstatements

Commercial in confidence

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the 2020/21 audit which have not been made within the final set of financial
statements. The Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items

recorded within the table below.

Detail

Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
£°000

Statement of Financial
Position £° 000

Revaluation gain on a
investment property
incorrectly allocated on the
CIES

Cr - Financing and Investment
income - £86k

Dr - Surplus or Deficit on
revaluation of non-current
assets - £86k

Impact on total net Reason for
expenditure £°000 not adjusting
On this basis ¢
materialit¢Q
D
N
6]

Projected misstatement:
being brought forward
balances within GRIA the
Council were unable to
evidence

Dr - Grants received in
advance - £85k

On the basis that this is
a projected
misstatement based on
a balance that cannot
be evidenced

Being a brought forward
balance within GRIA released
to the CIES in year the
Council were unable to
evidence

Dr - Grantincome - £1568k

Dr - Grantincome- On the basis that this is
£158k  not a confirmed error,

but a balance that

cannot be evidenced

Overall impact

£158k

£85k

£158k

33



Commercial in confidence

D. Fees

The fees reconcile to the financial

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services. e
statements

Audit fees Proposed fee Final fee
Council Audit 59,643 59,643
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £59,543 £569,543
o
QD
«Q
D
N
(o))
Non-audit fees for other services Proposed fee Final fee
Audit related - Certification of Housing Capital receipts grant 5,000 5,000
Audit related - Certification of Housing Benefits grant 19,906 19,906
Total non-audit fees (excluding VAT) £24,906 £24,906

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 34



Commercial in confidence

E. Audit opinion

Our audit opinion will be circulated separately.

/v abed

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 35



Commercial in confidence

F. Audit letter in respect of delayed VFM
work

Chair of Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee For the purposes of compliance with the 2020 Code, this letter constitutes the
Cheltenham Borough Council required audit letter explaining the reasons for delay.
Municipal Offices
Promenade
Cheltenham
GL50 9SA )

Yours sincerely
22 September

4 I ﬂ

Bawrie Movrisy o
Dear Sir Barrie Morris @
Under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice, for relevant authorities other than local Director g

NHS bodies we are required to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report no later than
30 September or, where this is not possible, issue an audit letter setting out the
reasons for delay.

As a result of the ongoing pandemic, and the impact it has had on both
preparers and auditors of accounts to complete their work as quickly as would
normally be expected, the National Audit Office has updated its guidance to
auditors to allow us to postpone completion of our work on arrangements to
secure value for money and focus our resources firstly on the delivery of our
opinions on the financial statements. This is intended to help ensure as many
as possible could be issued in line with national timetables and legislation.

As a result, we have therefore not yet issued our Auditor’s Annual Report,
including our commentary on arrangements to secure value for money. We
now expect to publish our report no later than 30 December 2021.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 36



° Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

61 abed

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7
Page 51

Cheltenham Borough Council

Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee

22 September 2021
Draft Statement of Accounts 2020/21
Report of the Section 151 Officer

Accountable member
Accountable officer

Accountable scrutiny
committee

Ward(s) affected

Councillor Peter Jeffries, Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets
Gemma Bell, Head of Property, Finance and Assets

Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee

All

Significant Decision

Yes

Executive summary

Recommendations

In line with the Government timeline for publication of Local Authority
Statement of Accounts the final audited accounts for 2020/21 are required to
be published by 30 September 2021.

In line with the same guidance, the draft Statement of Accounts was
published on the Council’s website by the required deadline of 30 July 2021.
Audit work has been undertaken by Grant Thornton through August and
September and the draft ISA 260 Audit Findings Report is included in the
reports pack for this committee.

The purpose of this report is to present the draft Statement of Accounts
2020/21 alongside the audit report for comment and discussion by the
Committee. The audit is still ongoing and the version of the accounts
presented here includes all adjustments agreed with audit at 13 September
2021. Work is still ongoing to complete the audit and present the final set of
accounts and management representation letter in line with the 30
September deadline.

Members of the Committee will recall that Council previously agreed that the
consideration and sign off of the Statement of Accounts is delegated to the
Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee and that no report is made
back to Council unless there are issues arising from the audit.

It is recommended that in order to meet the 30 September deadline
Committee delegate authority to the Chair of the Committee to sign the final
version of the accounts and letter of representation, subject to no significant
issues being identified in the audit between now and then. If this is the case,
the Statement of Accounts will be brought back to the Committee for
consideration. This would require an extension to the 30 September 2021
deadline for publication which would be required to be advertised on the
Council’s website.

It is recommended that:




Page 52

a) The Committee review and in principal approve the draft Statement of
Accounts dated 14 September 2021.

b) The Committee approve the delegation of authority to the Chair of the
Committee to sign the final version of the accounts and management
representation letter, subject to no significant issues being raised by audit.

Financial implications

As included in the Statement of Accounts 2020/21.

Contact officer: gemma.bell@cheltenham.gov.uk

Legal implications

This report adopts relevant guidance issued in the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2003 and 2011.

Contact officer: Sarah Farooqi, Legalservices@onelegal.org.uk

HR implications
(including learning and
organisational
development)

None arising directly from this report.

Contact officer: Julie McCarthy , HR Manager, Publica Group
Limited julie.mccarthy @publicagroup.uk, 01242 264355

Key risks There are no risks arising from this report which need to be brought to the
attention of members.

Corporate and None

community plan

Implications

Environmental and None.

climate change
implications




11

1.2

1.3

11

2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

Page 53

Introduction

The Accounts and Audit Regulations require the council to prepare an annual statement of
accounts by 31 May of each year. The Section 151 Officer must sign and date the draft
statement of accounts, and certify that they present a true and fair view of the financial position of
the council. There should then be a period of public inspection of the accounts. Due to Covid-19,
these regulations were again changed for 2020/21 and the date amended to the 31 July 2021 for
the 2020/21 financial year.

The Regulations then require that the draft accounts be audited and for the audited statement of
accounts to be considered and approved by way of a council committee by 31 July, following the
year end. The Section 151 Officer must re-certify the audited statement of accounts prior to this
meeting. Following approval by the Committee, the statement of accounts is to be signed and
dated by the person presiding at the meeting. Council has delegated authority to the Audit
Committee to review and approve the audited statement of accounts. Due to Covid-19, these
regulations were changed and the date amended to the 31 September 2021 for the 2020/21
financial year.

The Audit Committee review specifically considers whether appropriate accounting policies have
been followed, the conclusion of the audit of the statements, and whether there are any issues
that need to be brought to the attention of the Council. The Committee also considers whether
the Annual Governance Statement fairly reflects the arrangements within the council and whether
the suggested action plan will address any significant governance issues.

The draft ‘Audit Findings’ report from Grant Thornton to this meeting highlights the results of the
audit work undertaken to 14 September 2021.

Background

The draft Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 was signed by the Section 151 Officer on 31 July
2021, with the work completed in accordance with the statutory deadline. The public inspection
period operated from 2 August 2021 to 12 September 2021 and a public notice to that effect was
publicised on the Council’'s website.

From 2010/11 the Statement of Accounts has had to comply with a new code of accounting
practice — the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local authority Accounting (the ‘Code’), which fully
incorporates International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Auditor’s Report

The council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP, are in the process of completing a full
audit of the financial statements and will issue a ‘Report to those charged with governance (ISA
260) for 2020/21’,which is anticipated to give the Statement of Accounts an unqualified audit
opinion in relate to the Council’s Statement of Accounts 2020/21.

Reasons for recommendations

The Council is required to formally approve its audited Statement of Accounts by 30 September
2021. Due to the timing of the Committee, the draft Statement of Accounts have been presented
which incorporate all adjusted changes identified and agreed with Grant Thornton up to 14
September 2021. The Committee are asked therefore to review and consider the draft Statement
of Accounts and approve delegated authority to the Chairman of the Audit Committee to approve
the Statement and sign the Letter of Representation on behalf of the Council by 30 September
2021 once the audit is concluded and a final opinion is issued. This is subject to any significant
changes or issues being identified by audit in the period between 14 September 2021 and 30



Page 54

September 2021. If this is the case, the Statement of Accounts will be brought back to the
Committee for consideration. This would require an extension to the 30 September 2021 deadline
for publication which would be required to be advertised on the Council’s website.

4.2 A copy of the draft Statement of Accounts 2020/21 is attached at Appendix 1 to this report.
Once finalised, signed and approved, the audited statements will be published on the Council’s
website and notice advertised of the completion of the audit.

5. Letter of representation

5.1 As part of the approval process for the Statement of Accounts, the Council is required to provide a
Letter of Representation to the external auditor. This is to confirm or notify any material factors
that could affect the auditor’s view of the accounts since formal closure at 31 March 2021.

5.2 Note 31 outlines contingent liabilities; these are issues that currently exist but had not
materialised by 31 March 2021. As Deputy Section 151 Officer | can confirm there has been no
resolution to date of these matters, nor any other changes that | need to report to the external
auditor

5.3 It is seen as best practice for both the Section 151 Officer and the Chair of the Audit Committee
to sign the Letter of Representation. Again, it is recommended that this is delegated to the Chair
as part of the approval of the Statement of Accounts.

Report author Contact officer: Gemma Bell

gemma.bell@cheltenham.gov.uk

Appendices Appendix A — Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Background 1. Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2020/21

information Accounts

2. Draft Accounting Policies presented to Audit Committee 14 July
2021




Page 55

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH
COUNCIL

DRAFT Statement of Accounts
2020/21



CONTENTS
Page(s)
3-11

12

13

14

15

16

17 - 86
86 — 88
89 -102
103 - 107
107 - 111
112 - 128

Page 56

Our Narrative Report

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Balance Sheet

Movement in Reserves Statement

Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Accounts

The Collection Fund - Income and Expenditure Account and Notes
Group Accounts and Notes

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement and Notes
Glossary of Financial Terms

Annual Governance Statement including Statement on the System of Internal
Financial Control



Page 57

Our Narrative Report

Cheltenham aspires to be a place where everyone thrives — to be one of the UK’s most
‘liveable’ towns, with residents and visitors alike inspired by our culture, food, public spaces,
education and the diversity and quality of accessible experiences.

It is not just Cheltenham Borough Council that feels so passionate about our local area.
The town, which is located between the Cotswold Hills and the Severn Vale has a
population of 117,100 (2017 Office for National Statistics), was voted the place to live in
the South West 2020 by The Sunday Times with its education, culture and connectivity
highlighted amongst its best attributes.

Cheltenham is no stranger to such accolades, having been voted by The Telegraph as the
best place in the UK to raise a family in 2014. However, this latest recognition highlights why
Cheltenham is fast becoming a destination for those wishing to enjoy the relaxation of
countryside living without missing out on the culture of a big city.

In spite of these endorsements, the Council has not rested on their laurels and has a firm
focus on the future, with the town’s famous resident - the UK government’s cyber hub GCHQ
— at the heart of ambitious plans to establish Cheltenham as one of the world’s cyber tech
capitals. Plans for a new campus and cyber-tech community, Cyber Central — a 45 hectare
site at the heart of the 200 hectare Golden Valley development to the west of the town and
adjacent to the GCHQ site - are now accelerating under the leadership of Cheltenham
Borough Council. In 2019, the land on which the site will be developed was bought by the
Council for £37.5m seizing, as they see it, the once-in-a-lifetime opportunity to create a world-
leading cyber-tech hub in Cheltenham, with the associated economic and social benefits this
will bring.

The commitment the Council has to the town has been clearly apparent in the response to the
COVID-19 pandemic which has resulted in a financial year unlike any other. On 23 March
2020, the Prime Minister gave a statement to the nation announcing a set of national
restrictions not seen before in peacetime. Over the last 15 months we have experienced three
national lockdowns, many have lost loved ones and for others life will never be the same
again.

Our Council has been on the front line of the response to the pandemic in Cheltenham paying
grants to businesses, providing support to vulnerable people who are shielding, setting up
community testing facilities and taking on the most challenging contact tracing, all the while
keeping existing services running.

The longer term financial impact of the pandemic on our resources will continue to be closely
monitored and reported throughout 2021/22 and beyond to ensure the Council has robust
arrangements in place to respond to any future impacts on our funding or resources.

Who are Cheltenham Borough Council?

The Council are the decision making body at Cheltenham Borough Council. Local Councillors
are elected by the community to decide how the council should carry out its various activities.
They represent public interest as well as individuals living within the ward in which he or she
has been elected to serve a term of office. They have regular contact with the general public
through council meetings, telephone calls and some Councillors may hold surgeries.
Surgeries provide an opportunity for any ward resident to go and talk to their Councillor face
to face.



Page 58

The council has 40 elected members representing twenty wards within the Cheltenham
Borough. There are also five parish councils within the borough. Elections are held every two
years, when 50% of the seats are offered for re-election. The most recent election was held
in May 2021 after being postponed in 2020 due to the national restrictions in place as a result
of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The political make-up of Cheltenham Borough Council at 31 March 2021 was:

Liberal Democrat Party 29 councillors
Conservative Party 6 councillors
People Against Bureaucracy Party 2 councillors
Councillors Not Aligned to a Political Group | 3 councillors

The Liberal Democrat group therefore had an overall majority of 18 on the Borough Council
for this period.

Supporting the work of councillors is the organisational structure of the council, headed by the
Executive Leadership team, led by the Chief Executive. This position is held by Mr Gareth
Edmundson. During 2020/21 the Executive comprised of the Chief Executive and three
Executive Directors, one of whom is also the statutory section 151 officer, Mr Paul Jones. The
statutory role of monitoring officer / borough solicitor to the council is held by Ms Sara
Freckleton.

Who has overall responsibility at Cheltenham Borough Council?

Cheltenham has adopted the Leader and Cabinet model as its political management structure
arising from the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. The Leader of
the Council has responsibility for the appointment of Members of the Cabinet, the allocation
of Portfolios and the delegation of Executive Functions. Cabinet Members are held to account
by a system of scrutiny which is set out in the Constitution.

In 2020/21, the Cabinet consisted of the Leader, a Deputy Leader and a Cabinet of seven
Members as follows:

Leader of the Council Councillor Rowena Hay (appointed 7
December 2020)
Councillor Steve Jordan (until 7 December
2020)

Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet | Councillor Peter Jefferies
Member Housing

Cabinet Member Finance and Assets Councillor Steve Jordan (from 7 December
2020)
Councillor Rowena Hay (until 7 December
2020)

Cabinet Member Healthy Lifestyles Councillor Flo Clucas

Cabinet Member Cyber and Safety Councillor Andrew McKinlay

Cabinet Member Climate and Communities | Councillor Max Wilkinson

Cabinet Member Economy and | Councillor Victoria Atherstone

Development
Cabinet Member Clean and Green | Councillor Chris Coleman
Environment
Cabinet Member Corporate Services Councillor Alex Hegenbarth




Page 59

When major decisions are to be discussed or made, these are published in the Cabinet's
Forward Plan in so far ahead as they can be anticipated. If these decisions are to be discussed
with council officers at a meeting of the Cabinet, this will generally be open for the public to
attend except where personal or confidential matters are being discussed.

Supporting the work of councillors is the organisational structure of the council, Members of
the council also nominate a Councillor each year to take on the roles of mayor and deputy
mayor.

The Mayor and Deputy Mayor for 2019/20 continued their appointments in 2020/21 as the
annual nominations were cancelled in May 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic restrictions.

Mayor Councillor Roger Whyborn
Deputy Mayor Councillor Sandra Holliday

Full details of all the council’'s committees, including chairs and membership can be found on
the council’s website at www.cheltenham.gov.uk.

Our vision for Cheltenham and ambitions for recovery
Our place vision

Cheltenham is a place that has thrived through centuries of change. It is a place we are proud
of and passionate about, and we are committed to helping it grow and prosper in years to
come.

Covid-19 has tested Cheltenham’s communities and economy over the last twelve months.
As a Council, we have recognised in our Covid-19 Recovery Strategy and Medium Term
Financial Plan that rebuilding the strength of our town will require both innovation, ambition
and a bold vision. To respond to this the Council will need to be agile in the way it responds
and how it works with stakeholders and potential investors.

Our vision for Cheltenham is simply: “We want Cheltenham to be a place where everybody
thrives.” To achieve this vision, the place strategy action plan aims to deliver on the following
outcomes:

e to protect and enhance the built heritage and green spaces that have shaped the
unigue character of the town;

e to create the conditions in which businesses can thrive, innovate and provide good
quality jobs;

e to make the town a world-class cultural and learning centre which is outward-looking
and welcoming to visitors;

¢ to build strong, safe and healthy communities for residents and their families; and

¢ to facilitate the provision of a wide-range of sustainable travel options and to accept
our responsibility to present and future generations to live within environmentally
sustainable limits.

In order that we can lead the economic recovery of our town, we will continue to invest in
Cheltenham for the benefit of Cheltenham both in terms of sustainable Council finances, but
also in terms of the way we invest both commercially and for regeneration.



Our corporate priorities

The 2019-2023 Corporate Plan outlines our strategic priorities for Cheltenham, what we have chosen to focus on and why we think these are

important for our town. The table below outlines our priorities and how we have invested in their achievement over the past twelve months:

Priority One — making
Cheltenham the Cyber
Capital of the UK; a national
first,  which  will deliver
investment in homes, jobs,
infrastructure and enable the
Council to deliver inclusive
growth for our communities.

e At the end of August 2019, we completed the purchase of 112 acres of strategically important land for £37.5m which
forms part of the Cyber Central Golden Valley development.

e InMarch 2020, Cabinet approved a proposal for an investment of up to £1.7m to support the creation of the MX exchange,
a tier 2 growth hub and incubation unit for cyber tech companies which has been delivered through 2020/21 to open in
spring 2022.

¢ In February 2021, approval was granted by Tewksbury Borough Council’s planning committee for the closure of a
runway at Gloucestershire Airport to build a business park and a new access road. The creation of the business park
nearby to the Golden Valley development will create jobs, infrastructure and vital economic links in the area. In order to
fulfil this vision, the Council has committed £7.25m in 2021/22 to provide a loan to the Airport to fund the delivery of this
project.

Priority Two — Continue the
revitalisation of the town
ensuring its  longer-term
viability as a retail and cultural
destination

e We have set aside £1m to invest in our cultural buildings and enhance the arts and leisure offer that the Cheltenham
Trust provides in the town. This will provide opportunities for local artists and support the recovery of the town by
providing destination venues, driving footfall of visitors to the town and increasing community engagement with the
arts.

e We have purchased retail premises to support the ongoing economic development of the town. In 2019/20 investment
of £40.673m was made for the purposes of revitalising the town and this property was valued at £66.438m by 31 March
2021.We have also invested in the revitalisation of the high street, complemented by the flagship concept store
opening for John Lewis, and the redevelopment of the Brewery Quarter.

Priority Three — Achieving a
cleaner and greener
sustainable environment for
residents, businesses and
visitors

e |n 2020/21 approval was granted to recruit two climate change officers to develop and support our response following
the declaration of a climate emergency in 2019. These officers are permanent members of staff tasked with driving
forward our strategy in response to the increasing risks to the environment.

e In January 2020, Cheltenham Borough Council and Vision 21’s Climate Conferences for businesses and community
organisations was held for the first time. A total of 109 participants, two facilitators and eight group leads plus a key Note
address from professor Rebecca Willis spoke about creating a a partnership for Cheltenham that will help Cheltenham
Borough Council and the rest of us to achieve Net Zero by 2030.

o We successfully secured £382k of capital funding from the Government’s Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme which
will be combined with our existing £300k budget to begin the delivery of the Net Zero target.

Priority Four — Increasing
the supply of housing and
investing to build resilient

Our Housing Investment Plan has committed £100m to fund mixed tenure housing in the private rented sector and £80m to
fund affordable housing. The purpose of these investments is to shape sustainable and resilient communities and allow
residents secure homes in which they and their families can thrive.

09 abed



communities
The Council will continue to work with the private sector to utilise redundant assets and vacant land to bring them into a
useful economic purpose to facilitate regeneration and employment creation. In 2020-21, an investment of £1.605m was
provided to CBH in order to support this commitment.

Priority Five — Delivering | Throughout 2020/21 we have invested our own resources as well as utilising Government grant money to support
Services that meet the needs | businesses, communities and residents in Cheltenham through the pandemic. Services delivered include, but are not limited
of our communities to:

e £44.5m of grants distributed to local businesses impacted by the national restrictions;

e Meals on wheels service for older residents;

e Purchasing and re-distributing laptops for children who are remote learning;

¢ Increased flexibility in the planning and licencing restrictions to allow businesses to operate as we exited restrictions;
and

e The distribution of £100k of Community Resilience grants for initiatives to support those in the town most acutely
impacted by the pandemic.

Working with partners

The council puts a strong focus on working together with partners across the Cheltenham family to deliver on these and other joint outcomes for
our residents, communities, staff and service users. Among these are:

¢ Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited — our Arm’s Length Management Organisation responsible for managing our social housing stock
and leading the delivery of housing provision in our town;

e Ubico Limited — a company jointly owned by Cheltenham and six other Local Authorities responsible for delivering environmental services
across Gloucestershire;

¢ The Cheltenham Trust - an independent charitable trust, contracted to supply leisure and cultural related services to Cheltenham Borough
Council via a management agreement;

e The Cheltenham Business Improvement District - delivers a range of projects that benefit businesses in the town centre, including the
High Street, The Promenade, Montpellier and The Brewery Quarter;

¢ One Legal — the shared legal service between Cheltenham, Tewkesbury, Gloucester City and Stroud District Councils;

e Publica Group Limited — a company owned jointly by Cheltenham and three other District councils to provide shared services from a
common platform; and

e South West Audit Partnership — a company operating across the South West region commissioned to provide our internal audit services.

T9 abed



STATEMENT Page 62;NTs 2020/21

Introduction to the financial statements

The purpose of this narrative report is to provide an explanation of the council’s financial performance and
position for 2020/21 and assist in the interpretation of the accounting statements, including the Group
Accounts. The statements should inform readers of the cost of services provided by the council in the year
2020/21 and the council’s assets and liabilities at the year end.

The accounts for the year ending 31 March 2021 have been prepared and published in accordance with
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 (the Code), published
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). This incorporates International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), ensuring the accounts are compliant with these standards. The
following main statements and notes are included:

Statement of Responsibilities for Sets out the respective responsibilities of the council and the Section 151
the Statement of Accounts Officer for the accounts.

Statement of Accounting Policies This explains the basis for the recognition, measurement and disclosure
(note 1 to the notes to the accounts) of transactions and other events in the accounts. It includes the basis of

charges to revenue and the calculation of items in the Balance Sheet.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the cost
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in the year of providing services, in accordance with generally accepted

Statement supported by the Expenditure accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis reconciles

and Funding Analysis note this to the amount chargeable to General Fund and Housing Revenue
Account reserves in the year.

Balance Sheet This summarises the overall financial position of the council at the year
end, showing its assets, liabilities and reserves.

Movement in Reserves Statement This details the movement in the council’s reserves during the year.

Cash Flow Statement This summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from

transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes.

Group Accounts These bring together the accounts of Cheltenham Borough Council,
Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited and the council’s share of the net
assets of Gloucestershire Airport Limited.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) A separate account, required by law, which shows income and
expenditure associated with the provision of council housing.

Collection Fund Reflects the statutory requirement to maintain a separate account
showing transactions in relation to non-domestic (business) rates and
council tax, indicating how the amounts collected are distributed to the
Government, Gloucestershire County Council, Gloucestershire Police
and Crime Commissioner and Cheltenham Borough Council.

Annual Governance Statement This sets out how the council is meeting its obligations and the
improvements it intends to make to its systems of internal control and
corporate governance arrangements.

These accounts are supported by notes to the accounts and a glossary of terms to provide readers with
further information.




STATEMENT Page 63)NTs 2020/21

THE COUNCIL’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN THE YEAR AND ITS POSITION AT THE
YEAR END
General Fund Revenue Budget
On 17th February 2020, Council approved the budget for 2020/21. However, the unprecedented response
required from the Council to support and protect our staff, residents and the general public from Covid-19
had a material impact on the Council’s financial position.

Following the introduction by Central Government of two grant funding streams; the first to cover COVID-
19 related expenditure and the second to cover irrecoverable losses in income, a recovery budget was
approved by Council in November 2020.

At the point of the recovery budget, additional expenditure was estimated to exceed the £1.535m grant
funding that had been received by that point. Additionally, £1.498m of irrecoverable losses were projected
for the full year to 31 March 2021, creating an estimated total net cost of £1.84m to the Council.

The recovery budget included revising the Minimum Revenue Provision policy, reallocating capital budget
to repay borrowing and identifying surplus assets for disposal to generate funding to support the financial
pressures on the general fund. These recommendations were made to ensure that sufficient revenue
resources could be released to ensure a robust and balanced budget can be delivered in future years.

The outturn position at 31 March 2021 reports an under spend of £394,663 against this recovery budget.
Whilst this is an extremely pleasing outturn position when the challenges of the previous twelve months are
considered it should be noted that considerable financial resources have been required in its response to
the pandemic.

The outturn position shows that this is slightly lower than forecast with a net cost of £1.47m. Although
irrecoverable income losses were higher than forecast, the COVID-19 related expenditure in the second
half of the year was lower. The summary outturn is reported in the table below.

Current Actual (Under)/Overspend

REVENUE OUTTURN 2020/21 Budget 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21
£ £ £

DIRECTORATES:
Chief Executive 0] 1,510,494 1,613,844 103,350
Finance & Assets Directorate (i) 10,143,565 10,337,103 193,538
People & Change Directorate (i) 4,233,318 4,059,111 (174,207)
Place & Growth Directorate (iv) 6,233,133 5,447,159 (785,974)
Net Expenditure on Services 22,120,510 21,457,217 (663,293)
Capital Charges (4,729,907) (4,684,196) 45,711
Interest payable and receivable (1,996,910) (1,860,606) 136,304
Use of balances and reserves 13,756,023 13,684,581 (71,442)
Total net expenditure 29,149,716 28,596,996 (552,720)
FINANCED BY:
New Homes Bonus (1,252,262) (1,252,262)
National Non-Domestic Rates (2,365,904) (2,104,279) 261,625
Section 31 NNDR Compensation Grant (14,658,481) (15,370,862) (712,381)
Council Tax (9,604,969) (9,604,064) 905
Other Government Grants (1,171,923) (564,016) 607,907
Total Funding (29,053,539) (28,895,483) 158,056
Outturn 96,177 (298,487) (394,664)

() Includes Strategic Management, Democratic Services, Elections




STATEMENT Page 64;NTs 2020/21

(i) Includes Property & Assets, Treasury Management, Pensions backfunding
(iii) Includes Housing Benefits, Revenues (council tax and business rates collection), Community Engagement, Commissioning & Modernisation

(i) Includes Building and Development control, Planning & housing enabling, Car parking, Bereavement services, Parks & Gardens, Public
Protection

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

The HRA generated a surplus in the year of £5.608m, however after statutory adjustments (including the
revenue financing of capital expenditure of £7.006 million), there was a reduction of £6.046million in the
HRA balance. The reduction, as in previous years, is due to the use of increased borrowing instead of
revenue financing to fund capital expenditure. Full details of the Housing Revenue Account activity for the
year are provided on pages 104 to 108.

Capital Expenditure

In 2020/21 the council spent £21.0 million on capital projects, grants and loans, across the general fund
and the Housing Revenue Account capital programmes. Key expenditure on capital schemes include:-

£ 000
Major repairs & improvements to existing housing stock 7,688
Enabling the delivery of Private Rented Sector (PRS) Housing 1,605
Investments to support the long term sustainability of the Cheltenham Trust 222
Replacement vehicles and recycling equipment 380
Adaptations for the Disabled 400

The council plans to continue to fund capital from a range of sources including revenue reserves, developer
contributions and capital receipts, and will make further use of prudential borrowing to support the council’s
major capital schemes where it is both prudent and affordable.

Cash Management

Throughout 2020/21, the Council has continued to manage its cash flows, investments and borrowings to
ensure sufficient resources were available to meet our commitments. The Council’s strategy was to maintain
borrowing and investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing, in order
to reduce risk and keep interest costs low.

As such, short term investments and borrowing are used to ensure strong returns whilst also balancing the
availability of cash, particularly during the pandemic when there was greater uncertainty about potential
commitments. The year on year comparison in Note 28 of the accounts reflect this, having invested the
majority of our £6.940m available cash in an overnight money market fund to maximise the return on our
assets.

Reserves and Balances

In assessing the adequacy of reserves and balances for 2020/21 the Section 151 Officer used a risk based
approach to assess the appropriate level of general balances which calculated the optimum level to be
£1.219m. At the year end, the General Fund Balance stands at £1.213m and therefore is marginally below
the optimum level recommended by the Section 151 Officer at year end — an impressive outcome given the
scale of losses incurred due to COVID-19.

Accepting that the long-term impact from COVID-19 could leave the Council exposed without clear decision-
making in delivering a balanced budget, the level of reserves is lower than optimal at year end and action
has been taken in the 2021/22 budget to increase the robustness of the reserves through a transfer of

10




STATEMENT Page 65)NTs 2020121

£543k to general balances. This brings the expected general balance reserve to £1.720m against an
optimum level of assessment of £1.708m agreed as part of the 2021/22 budget proposals.

There may be an expectation to further strengthen these reserves in order that the Council is robustly
covered against further financial pressures which may emerge through recovery or future changes to local
government financial support. With diminishing central government support in the form of direct grant and
New Homes Bonus, volatility within business rates, and the impact on individual’s ability to pay council tax,
it may be the case that that some difficult choices need to be made to .

Council has approved the use of the underspend against the 2020/21 recovery budget to invest in the
economic recovery of the town post pandemic. There are many investment options available and the long
term sustainability of the costs and funding associated with delivery of these will be considered and
reviewed before commitments are made to ensure the scarce resources available are able to generate the
maximum value.

Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The council has reviewed its accounting policies during the year and revised them as necessary in
accordance with the 2020/21 Code of Practice in Local Authority Accounting. The policies are detailed in
note 1 to the accounts (pages 19 to 37) and any changes in accounting policies are detailed in note 2 on
page 38.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Further information about the accounts is available from the Executive Director (Finance & Assets),
Cheltenham Borough Council, Municipal Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham GL50 9SA. This is part of the
council’s policy of providing full information about the council’s affairs.

In addition interested members of the public have a statutory right to inspect the accounts during a ‘period
for the exercise of public rights’ before the audit is completed. The accounts are available for inspection by
appointment between 2 August 2021 and 12 September 2021 at the Municipal Offices, and local
government electors for the area could exercise their rights to question the auditor about, or make objections
to the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021, in writing, during this period.

PAUL JONES FCPFA
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - FINANCE & ASSETS

11




STATEMENT Page 66)NTs 2020/21

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

THE COUNCIL'S RESPONSIBILITIES:
The council is required:

o to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this council, that officer is the
Executive Director Finance & Assets, who also undertakes the role of the Section 151 Officer.

o to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
assets.

o to approve the Statement of Accounts.

THE SECTION 151 OFFICER'S RESPONSIBILITIES:

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the council’'s Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Council
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing the Statement of Accounts, the Section 151 Officer has:

o selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently.
o made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent.
o complied with the Code of Practice.

The Section 151 Officer has also:

o kept proper accounting records which were up to date

o taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
CERTIFICATE OF SECTION 151 OFFICER

| certify that the Statement of Accounts on pages 15 to 108 gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the council at the reporting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March
2021.

PAUL JONES FCPFA
30 July 2021
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — FINANCE & ASSETS

12




STATEMENT Page 67;NTs 2020/21

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in

accordance with regulations; and this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown
both in the Expenditure & Funding Analysis and in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2019/20
Gross Gross Net
expenditure income expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000
2,047 (432) 1,615
8,775 (1,107) 7,668
27,849 (23,211) 4,638
22,051 (13,947) 8,104
17,602 (20,218) (2,616)
78,324 (58,915) 19,409
719 (750) (31)
15,510 (5,379) 10,131
19,611 (35,315) (15,704)
114,164 (100,359) 13,805
(2,930)
(10,251)
__(1381)
624

Chief Executive

Finance and Assets Directorate

People and Change Directorate

Place and Growth Directorate

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Cost of Services

Other operating expenditure (note 8)

Financing and Investment (income) and expenditure (note 9)
Taxation and non-specific grant (income) and expenditure (note 10)
(Surplus) or Deficit on the provision of services

ltems that will not be reclassified to the (Surplus) or Deficit on
the provision of services

(Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of non-current assets (note 33)

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) (note 34)

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of equity instruments carried at
Fair Value though Other Comprehensive Income

Other Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure

Total Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure

2020/21
Gross Gross Net

expenditure income expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000
1,703 (29) 1,674
7,441 (979) 6,462
28,131 (23,499) 4,632
19,811 (10,650) 9,161
17,079 (20,971) (3,892)
74,165 (56,128) 18,037
701 (996) (295)
7,378 (4,641) 2,737
34,441 (57,141) (22,700)
116,685  (118,906) (2,221)
(20,276)
9,002
1,606
__ (9668)
(11,889)

The notes are shown on pages 17-86.

13




STATEMENT Page 68)NTs 2020/21

BALANCE SHEET

This statement shows the value as at the balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the council.
The net assets of the council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the council. Reserves are
reported in two categories. The first category is usable reserves i.e. those reserves that the council may use to provide
services, these being subject to the need to maintain a prudent level and constrained by statutory limitations on their
use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt).

The second category of reserves comprises those that the council is not able to use to provide services. This includes
those that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the revaluation reserve), where amounts only become
available to provide services if the assets are sold, and those that hold timing differences which are shown in the
Movements in Reserves Statement Line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under the
regulations.’

31 March 2020 Note 31 March 2021
£'000 £'000

407,982 Property, Plant & Equipment 19 435,747
40,748 Heritage Assets 20 41,840
68,068 Investment Property 22 66,438
502 Intangible Assets 24 385
8,086 Long Term Investments 26 7,333
10,739 Long Term Debtors 26 11,829
536,125 Long Term Assets 563,572
7,110 Short term Investments 26 64
60 Assets held for sale 25 48
174  Inventories 153
15,763 Short term Debtors 27 32,116
21,169 Cash and cash equivalents 28 6,947
44,276 Current assets 39,328
- Bank overdraft 28 (746)
(70,095) Short term borrowing 26 (60,292)
(15,771)  Short term creditors 29 (35,559)
(2,287) Grants receipts in advance - capital 16 (2,726)
(2,660) Grants receipts in advance - revenue 16 (1,332)
(486) Provisions 30 (821)
(91,299) Current Liabilities (101,476)
(1,000) Provisions 30 (625)
(115,293) Long term borrowing 26 (113,835)
(225) Grants receipts in advance - capital 16 (87)
(275) Grants receipts in advance - revenue 16 (295)
(51,307) Other long term liabilities 34 (53,691)
(168,100) Long term liabilities (168,533)
321,002 Net Assets 332,891
(23,529) Usable Reserves 32 (32,714)
(297,473) Unusable Reserves 33 (300,177)
(321,002) Total Reserves (332,891)

The notes are shown on pages 17-86.

Signed ... Paul Jones, FCPFA,; Executive Director — Finance & Assets

14




STATEMENT Page 69)NTs 2020/21

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year of the different reserves held by the council, analysed into
‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and unusable

reserves.

The statement shows how the movements in year of the council’s reserves are broken down between gains
and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments
required to return the amounts chargeable to council tax (or rents) for the year. The net increase or decrease
line shows the statutory general fund balance and Housing Revenue Account balance movements in the year

following those adjustments.

Balance at 31 March 2019

Movement in Reserves during 2019/20

Total Comprehensive Income and (Expenditure)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations (Note 5)

Transfers to/from earmarked reserves (Note 32)

Increase / (decrease) in 2019/20

Balance at 31 March 2020

Movement in Reserves during 2020/21

Total Comprehensive Income and (Expenditure)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations (Note 5)

Transfers to/from earmarked resenes (Note 32)

Increase / (decrease) in 2020/21

Balance at 31 March 2021

General Earmarked Total Housing  Capital  Major Capital Total Unusable| Total
Fund General Fund| General | Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants Usable |Reserves|Reserves
Balance Reserves Fund Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied| Reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
1,321 6,291 7,612 8,825 9,892 - 2,383 28,712| 292,914| 321,626
(16,188) -l (16,188) 2,383 - - (13,805) 13,181 (624)
14,345 - 14,345 (4,139) (1,266) - (318) 8,622 (8,622) -
1,795 (1,795) - - - - -
(48) (1,795) (1,843 (1,756) (1,266) - (318) (5,183) 4,559 (624)
1,273 4,496 5,769 7,069 8,626 - 2,065 23,529 297,473| 321,002
(3,387) -l (3,387) 5,608 - - 2,221 9,668 11,889
18,177 - 18,177 (11,178) (55) - 19 6,963 (6,963) -
(14,850) 14,850 = = - - B
(60) 14,850 14,790 (5,570) (55) - 19 9,184 2,705 11,889
1,213 19,346 20,559 1,499 8,571 - 2,084 32,713| 300,178| 332,891

The notes are shown on pages 17-86.

15




STATEMENT Page 70)NTs 2020/21

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The cash flow statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the council during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the council generates and uses cash by classifying cash flows as
operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is
a key indicator of the extent to which operations of the council are funded by way of taxation and grant income
or from the recipients of services provided by the council. Investing activities represent the extent to which
cash flows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the council’s future service
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by
providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the council.

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £'000
13,805 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of senices (2,221)

Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of senices for
(26,122)  non-cash movements (note 35) (29,542)

Adjust for items in the net surplus or deficit on the provision

3,462  of senices that are investing or financing activities (note 35) 2,446
(8,855) Cash (inflows) / outflows generated from operating activities (29,317)
53,685 Inwvesting activities (note 36) 9,002

(63,844) Financing activities (note 37) 35,283
(19,014) Net (increase) / decrease in cash and cash equivalents 14,968

2,155 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 21,169
21,169 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (note 28) 6,201
19,014 Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (14,968)

The notes are shown on pages 17-86.

16




STATEMENT Page 71 NTs 202021

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

1.2

GENERAL PRINCIPLES

The Statement of Accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the financial year and its
position at the end of the financial year. The council is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which require the
accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily
comprise the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Government Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2020/21 (The Code) supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS’s),
International Accounting Standards (IAS’s) and statutory guidance.

The accounting convention adopted by the Statement of Accounts is principally historic cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

The accounting policies of the council have as far as possible been developed to ensure that the
accounts are understandable, relevant, free from material error or misstatement, reliable and
comparable.

ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS

Except where specified in the Code, or in specific legislative requirements, it is the council’s
responsibility to select and regularly review its accounting policies, as appropriate.

These accounts are prepared in accordance with a number of fundamental accounting principles:

Relevance
Reliability
Comparability
Materiality

Additionally three further concepts play a pervasive role in the selection and application of
accounting policies:

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

The financial statements, other than the cash flow statement, are prepared on an accruals basis,
i.e. transactions are reflected in the accounts in the year in which the activity to which they relate
takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In particular:

e Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the
council provides the relevant goods or services, in accordance with the performance
obligations in the contract and IFRS15 Revenue Contracts with Customers. These are fees
and charges such as car parking fees, bereavement services fees, planning applications
and building control fees.

e Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made.

e Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis

17




STATEMENT Page 72;NTs 2020/21

1.3

of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows
fixed or determined by the contract.

o Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where
it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge
made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

¢ All income and expenditure is credited and charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, unless it comprises capital receipts or capital expenditure.

Going Concern

The accounts are prepared on the assumption that the council will continue its operations for the
foreseeable future. This means in particular that the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and Balance Sheet assume no intention to significantly curtail the scale of operations.

Primacy of legislative requirements

The council derives its powers from statute and its financial and accounting framework is closely
controlled by primary and secondary legislation. Where legislative requirements and accounting
principles conflict, legislative requirements take precedence.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Benefits Payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within twelve months of the year-end.
They include such benefits as and salaries and wages, paid annual leave and paid sick leave for
current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees
render service to the council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of
leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which employees
can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rates applicable in
the accounting year in which they were accrued. The accrual is charged to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so
that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence
occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the council to terminate an
officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary
redundancy. They are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the council can no longer withdraw the
offer of any benefits.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the
general fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.
Therefore in the Movement in Reserves Statement appropriations are required to and from the
pensions reserve to remove the notional charges and credits for pension enhancement termination
benefits, and replace them with the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such
amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.

18




STATEMENT Page 73)NTs 2020/21

Post-Employment Benefits

Employees of the council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by
Gloucestershire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement
lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the council, and is accounted for as a
defined benefits scheme:

¢ The liabilities of the Gloucestershire pension scheme attributable to the council are included in
the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment
of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and
projections of earnings for current employees.

¢ Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
indicative rate of return on the adoption of the AA-rated corporate bond basis.

o The assets of the Gloucestershire pension fund attributable to the council are included in the
balance sheet at their fair value on the following basis:

guoted securities — current bid value

unquoted securities — professional estimate of fair value
unitised securities — current bid price

property — market value.

e The change in the net pension liability is analysed into seven components:

Current service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of the additional year of service
earned - allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the
services for which the employees worked.

Past service cost: the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect
relates to years of service earned in earlier years - charged to the Surplus or Deficit in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs.

Interest cost on defined obligation: the expected increase in the present value of liabilities
during the year as they move one year closer to being paid - charged to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Interest income on plan assets: the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable
to the council, based on an average of the expected long-term return — credited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Gains/losses on settlements: the result of actions to relieve the council of liabilities or events
that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees — charged to
the Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of
Non Distributed Costs.

Measurement of the net defined benefit liability: changes in the net pension liability that
arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial
valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions — charged to the
Pensions Reserve.

Contributions paid to the Gloucestershire pension fund: cash paid as employer’s

19




STATEMENT Page 74)NTs 2020/21

1.4

15

1.6

contributions to the pension fund, in settlement of liabilities.

Statutory provisions limit the amount chargeable to council tax to that payable by the council to the
pension fund in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.
In the Movement in Reserves Statement this means that there are appropriations to and from the
Pension Reserve to remove the notional charges and credits for retirement benefits and replace
them with the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the
year end.

The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact
to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows
rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member
of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award, and accounted for using the
same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Grants and contributions received from the government and other organisations are credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement unless any conditions attached to the grant or
contribution have not been satisfied. For example conditions may be stipulated that specify that the
grants or contributions are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or they must be
returned to the transferor.

Amounts received as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried on the Balance Sheet as Revenue or Capital Grants Received in Advance. When the
conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (if ring-
fenced) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital
grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement, so that they
are available to fund capital expenditure. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, it is credited to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied it is
credited to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital
expenditure.

OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES

The authority operates and manages its overheads (including telephones and printing costs) and
corporate and support services separately and expenditure relating to these activities is reported to
key decision makers as separate activities. These overheads are not therefore apportioned to
services within the general fund. Overhead charges between the General fund and Housing
Revenue services, however, continue to apply.

COUNCIL TAX RECOGNITION

Council Tax receivable for the financial year is recognised in the Collection Fund, a separate
statutory account maintained by billing authorities. The Fund is charged with the council tax

20




STATEMENT Page 75)NTs 2020/21

1.7

1.8

1.9

requirements (‘precepts and demands’) set by the major preceptors and billing authority before the
start of the year, leaving (after providing for uncollectable debts) a surplus or deficit, which is then
distributed to the same authorities in future years in proportion to their precepts or demands.

The council tax income included in the council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
for the year represents its ‘demand’ for the year, plus its share of the collection fund surplus or deficit
for the year, before any distribution. Because the amount of surplus or deficit that can be credited
or charged to the council’s general fund is governed by statute, and is limited to that declared at the
start of the year, adjustments are made in the Movement in Reserves Statement to the collection
fund adjustment account to reflect the difference between the surplus or deficit due for the year and
that which can be released according to statute.

There is no statutory requirement for a separate collection fund balance sheet. Instead the fund
balances (arrears, over/pre-payments, bad debts provision and accumulated surpluses or deficits)
are distributed across the balance sheets of the billing authority and the major preceptors, in
proportion to their precepts and demands. The council, as a billing authority, therefore accounts for
council tax balances on an agency basis, showing only its share of the fund balances on its balance
sheet.

NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES (NNDR) INCOME RECOGNITION

NNDR income is recognised in the same way as council tax described above, with the exception
that the net income and surplus/deficit credited or charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is shared between the billing authority, the county council and central
government in statutory proportions. NNDR balances are also distributed across their balance
sheets in the same proportions.

VAT

Income and expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all VAT collected is payable to
HM Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from them.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS - RECOGNITION OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The council recognises non-current assets when expenditure is incurred on assets:

o held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for
administrative purposes

e expected to be used for more than one financial period

¢ where it is expected that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to
the council

e where the cost can be measured reliably.

The initial cost of an asset is recognised to be:

e Purchase price, construction cost, minimum lease payments or equivalent including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

e Costs associated with bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner required by management.

e Any costs of dismantling and removing an existing asset and restoring the site on which it
is located.

21




STATEMENT Page 76)NTs 2020/21

1.10

The cost of an asset acquired other than by purchase or construction is deemed to be its fair value,
except where an asset is acquired via an exchange it is deemed to be the carrying amount of the
asset given up by the council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between their fair values and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in a Donated Assets Reserve account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

Subsequent ‘enhancement’ expenditure is treated as capital expenditure when it is considered it will
increase the value of the asset or its useful life or increase the extent to which the council can use
the asset.

De Minimis policy - expenditure below £10,000 (excluding VAT) is not treated as capital expenditure
except where the sum of identical assets purchased exceeds this figure, as is the case with waste
collection bins and caddies.

Capital assets are held on the Balance Sheet as Non-Current Assets.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services, for rental to
others, or for administrative or other operational purposes on a continuing basis are classified as
Property, Plant and Equipment. Such assets are categorised as Council Dwellings, Other Land and
Buildings, Vehicles Plant and Equipment, Infrastructure, Community Assets, Surplus Assets and
Assets Under Construction.

Infrastructure assets are inalienable assets, expenditure on which is only recoverable by continued
use of the asset and there is no prospect for sale or alternative use. Examples include footpaths,
cycle tracks, bridges, street furniture and drainage systems.

Community Assets are assets that the authority intends to hold in perpetuity, have no determinable
useful lives and which may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples include parks, gardens,
cemeteries land, allotments and open spaces used for recreation.

Surplus Assets are assets which are not being used to deliver services or for administrative purposes
but which do not meet the definition of Investment properties or Assets Held for Sale.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it yields benefits to the council for more than one
financial year and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. This excludes expenditure on
routine repairs and maintenance, which is charged directly to service revenue accounts when it is
incurred.

Measurement
PPE assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly attributable to

bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use. The council does not capitalise
borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

22




STATEMENT Page 77 NTs 2020/21

The assets are then carried on the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

¢ Dwellings — Current value, using the basis of existing use value for social housing (EUV-
SH)

e Other Land and Buildings — Current value, using the basis of existing use value (EUV)
where an active market exists or Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC), where there is no
active market for the asset or it is specialised

¢ Infrastructure — depreciated historic cost

¢ Community assets — historic cost (where known). The cost of many of the council’s parks,
gardens and open spaces is not known and they are therefore shown at Nil value. The
Code offers the option for authorities to measure community assets at valuation, which is
the requirement for Heritage assets. The council has so far not adopted to change its
accounting policy in this way as it does not currently have the management information to
make reasonable valuation estimates of community assets.

e Assets under construction — historic cost

e Surplus Assets — Current value, using the Fair Value basis (see paragraph 1.19 Fair Value
Measurement).

¢ In the case of assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both) i.e. Vehicles, Plant
and Equipment, depreciated historic cost is used as a proxy for current value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at Current value are re-valued where there have been material
changes during the year, and as a minimum every five years.

Where there is an upward revaluation, the carrying value is increased and the gain credited to the
Revaluation Reserve. This is reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
a revaluation gain, included in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Exceptionally, gains
are credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (and not the Revaluation Reserve)
where a revaluation loss or impairment in respect of that asset was previously charged to a service
revenue account (adjusted for the depreciation that would have been charged had the revaluation
or impairment losses not occurred).

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:
¢ where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains)
e where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, the date
of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Impairment

PPE assets are assessed at the end of each year for evidence of impairment. Where evidence
exists and the effect is considered material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and,
where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the
difference.

23




STATEMENT Page 78)NTs 2020/21

Where there are revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve the impairment loss is
written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

Where there are no gains in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance to meet the
impairment loss, the remaining loss is written down against the relevant service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the reversal is credited to the relevant service
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss,
adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets with a determinable finite
useful life, by writing down the carrying value of the asset in the Balance Sheet over the remaining
periods expected to benefit from their use. Assets not depreciated are those without a determinable
finite useful life (land and Community and Heritage assets), assets that are not yet available for use
(assets under construction) and assets reclassified as Held for Sale.

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

¢ Council dwellings — straight-line allocation over each significant component’s estimated
useful life

¢ Other buildings, Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment, Infrastructure, Surplus assets
— straight-line allocation over the asset’s estimated useful life.

Newly acquired assets are depreciated from the year following that in which they were acquired,
although assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged and the depreciation that would have been charged based on their
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Assets disposed of during the year are depreciated in the year of disposal or in the case of assets
reclassified as Held for Sale, in the year they were reclassified.

Componentisation

Where a material item of Property Plant and Equipment has components whose cost is significant
in relation to the total cost of that item, and which have different estimated useful lives and/or
depreciation methods, they are identified as separate assets and depreciated separately.

The council’s current Componentisation Policy for non-dwelling assets defines a material item as an
individual building exceeding a gross book value of £1,421k and a significant individual component
as one which exceeds 20% of the gross replacement cost of that building. Significant components
are identified as separate assets and separately depreciated if their estimated useful lives are
considered significantly different to the ‘host’ building or other components. ‘Material’ buildings are
considered for componentisation whenever such a building is acquired, enhanced, or revalued after
1 April 2010.

With effect from 15 April 2017 separate building components (including the ‘host’ or residual building)
have been identified for dwellings where their current replacement cost and useful lives can be
estimated reliably.

24




STATEMENT Page 79)NTs 2020/21

1.11

1.12

NON-CURRENT ASSETS - HERITAGE ASSETS

Assets with historical, artistic, scientific or technological qualities held principally for their contribution
to knowledge or culture.
The council's collections of heritage assets are accounted for as follows:

Ceramics, Art, Regalia and Silverware, Furniture, Textiles, Ephemera, other collectables

These are reported in the Balance Sheet at their current insurance valuation, which is based on
market values.

Statues and Monuments

These are reported in the Balance Sheet at their current insurance valuation, which is based on
historic or replacement cost.

Archaeology

The council cannot obtain reliable cost or valuation information for its archaeological collection. This
is because of the diverse nature of the assets held and lack of comparable market values.
Consequently the council does not recognise these assets on its balance sheet.

The insurance valuations are updated for inflation on an annual basis, with gains credited to the
Revaluation Reserve. The council has deemed that all the heritage assets have indeterminate lives,
hence it does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation.

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment. Any
impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the council's policy on impairment for
Property, Plant and Equipment. Occasionally the council will dispose of heritage assets. These are
accounted for in accordance with the council's policy on disposals and assets held for sale.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS - INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or
production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value (see paragraph
1.19 Fair Value Measurement). Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually unless their
carrying value can be demonstrated to be not materially different to fair value at the balance sheet
date. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is
applied to gains and losses on disposal. Such gains and losses, however, are not permitted by
statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance and are therefore reversed
out in the Movement in Reserves Statement and credited to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for
any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment
Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

25




sTATEMENT Page 80)NTs 2020/21

1.13

1.14

NON-CURRENT ASSETS - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance and which are controlled by the entity
through custody or legal rights (e.g. software licences), is capitalised when it will bring benefits to
the council for more than one financial year. Internally generated assets are capitalised where it can
be demonstrated that the project is technically feasible, is intended to be completed (with adequate
resources being available), where the council will be able to generate future economic benefits or
deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the asset, and where the expenditure during the
development phase can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets are measured at cost, which is amortised over the estimated useful life of the asset
to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, to reflect the
pattern of consumption of benefits. Estimated remaining useful lives are reviewed annually and an
asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired —
any losses recognised are charged to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or cessation of use of an intangible
asset is credited or charged to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact
on the General Fund Balance, so they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement and charged or credited to the Capital Adjustment Account with
any sale proceeds greater than £10,000 credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS — DISPOSALS AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset

Held for Sale. Assets are classified as held for sale where the asset is available for immediate sale
in its present condition and where the sale is highly probable i.e. the asset has been advertised for
sale and a buyer sought and the completion of the sale is expected within twelve months of the
balance sheet date. Dwellings sold under Right to Buy are deemed to become surplus on the day
that the transfer to the tenant takes place (completion of the sale), and are therefore considered
operational until they are sold.

Except when carried at (depreciated) historic cost, an asset is revalued immediately before its
reclassification as Held for Sale, using its existing category’s measurement basis. Following
reclassification assets are measured at the lower of their carrying values and fair values less costs
to sell. Any subsequent gains in value are first used to reverse any losses previously charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and thereafter recognised in the Revaluation Reserve. Losses in value are charged to
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (even when there is a balance held for that asset
in the Revaluation Reserve).

Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale, except in the year in which they were classified
as held for sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified as
non-current assets (Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment or Heritage assets) and valued at
the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale (adjusted for
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been
classified as Held for Sale), and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

26




STATEMENT Page 81;NTs 2020121

1.15

1.16

1.17

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment, Heritage or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part
of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e.
netted off against carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are written off to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Amounts received from a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A
proportion of receipts relating to Housing Revenue Account (HRA) disposals, as specified by
statutory regulations, is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts is required to be
credited to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital
investment or set aside to reduce the council’s underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financing
Requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement of Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Such amounts are
therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE (REFCUS)

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does
not result in the creation of non-current assets is charged to the relevant service revenue account
in the year. To the extent the council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from
capital resources (borrowing, capital receipts or grants) a transfer to the Capital Adjustment
Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement reverses out the amounts charged to the
General Fund Balance so there is no impact on the level of council tax.

CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are charged with the following
amounts to record the real cost of holding assets during the year:

o Depreciation of property, plant and equipment used by the relevant service
¢ Amortisation of intangible assets used by the service

e Revaluation and impairment losses, where there are no accumulated gains in the
Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be charged.

The council cannot raise council tax to cover depreciation, amortisation or revaluation and
impairment losses. It is, however, required to make an annual provision (known as Minimum
Revenue Provision or MRP) from revenue towards reducing its overall borrowing requirement, equal
to an amount calculated on a prudent basis by the council in accordance with statutory guidance.
The above charges to the General Fund are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance
and replaced by a MRP contribution to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement of Reserves
Statement.

LEASES

27




STATEMENT Page 82;NTs 2020121

Leases are classified as either Finance Leases or Operating Leases. Arrangements that do not
have the legal status of a lease but convey the right to use an asset in return for payment are
accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
specific assets.

Defining a Finance Lease

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the
lessee. This is likely to apply if some or all of the following situations are met:

o If the lessee will gain ownership of the asset at the end of the lease term (e.g. in the
case of hire purchase)

¢ If the lessee has an option to purchase the asset at a sufficiently favourable price that
it is reasonably certain, at the inception of the lease, that it will be exercised

e |If the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset, even if title is
not transferred. The economic life of the asset is deemed to be consistent with the
useful life of the asset in the depreciation policy. The council recognises the major
part to be 75% of the life of the asset, unless on an individual case basis this would
not give a true representation of the substance of the transaction

e Attheinception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts
to at least substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset. The present value of
the minimum lease payments is calculated by discounting at the rate inherent in the
lease. If this rate cannot be determined the incremental borrowing rate applicable for
that year is used. The council recognises “substantially all” to mean 90% of the value
of the asset. In some circumstances, a level of 75% is used if the council believes that
using this level will give a result that better reflects the underlying transaction

e The leased assets are of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use them
without major modifications

e If the lessee cancels the lease, the lessor’s losses associated with the cancellation
are borne by the lessee

e Gains or losses from the fluctuation in the fair value of the residual accrue to the
lessee (e.g. in the form of a rent rebate equalling most of the sales proceeds at the
end of the lease)

e The lessee has the ability to continue the lease for a secondary period at a rent that is
substantially lower than market rent.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification.

28




STATEMENT Page 83)NTs 2020121

1.18

Lessee Accounting for a finance lease

Where the council is leasing an asset (for example as a tenant) that is deemed a finance lease, it
will recognise that asset within its asset register, and account for that asset as though it were an
owned asset.

The initial recognition of the asset is at the fair value of the asset, or if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments. A liability (less any premium paid) may also be recognised at this
value, which is reduced as lease payments are made. Lease payments made to the lessor are split
between the reduction in the liability and interest, which is charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Lessor Accounting for a finance lease

Where the council grants a finance lease over property or items of plant or equipment the carrying
values of the relevant assets are written out of the Balance Sheet to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. The amount receivable on disposal (representing the minimum lease payments due), is
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, also as part of
the gain or loss on disposal, matched by a cash receipt (if a premium has been paid) or a long term
debtor (if to be settled by payments in future years) on the Balance Sheet.

The amount receivable on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance
and is required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received this is posted
out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Where the amount due under the lease is settled by payments in future years the amount receivable
on disposal is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve.
When received future lease payments are apportioned between:
e acharge for the acquisition of the assets, which reduces the lease debtor
¢ finance interest, which is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

An amount equivalent to the charge for the acquisition of the assets is at the same time transferred
from the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Defining an Operating Lease

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
arising from ownership of the asset.

Lessor Accounting for an operating lease

Where the council grants an operating lease over property or items of plant or equipment, the asset
is retained on the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the relevant service income line or, if
the asset is classified as an Investment Property, to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Lessee Accounting for operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the service using the asset in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

29




STATEMENT Page 84 ;NTs 2020121

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the authority becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. In the case of a financial asset this is when the
authority becomes committed to its purchase, except in the case of trade receivables, which are
recognised when the goods or services have been supplied. Financial liabilities are recognised when
the cash or goods or services have been received.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and then carried at amortised cost. Where
interest is payable this is charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, based on the carrying amount of the liability
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount
at which it was originally recognised. Transaction costs are charged to the surplus or deficit on the
provision of services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless deemed
material, in which case they are added to the initial cost.

Normally this means, for the council’s borrowings, the amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
represents the outstanding principal repayable plus any accrued interest, and interest charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year stated
in the loan agreement. For current payables with no stated interest rate the amount recognised is
the outstanding invoiced amount.

Gains and losses on the early settlement of borrowing are credited or charged to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
in the year of settlement. However, where settlement has taken place as part of a restructuring of
the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or
discount is deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and its write-
down to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan
by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over a number
of years. The council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on
the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid, subject
to the maximum or minimum number of years specified in the regulations. The reconciliation of
amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge
required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial
Instruments  Adjustment  Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets
Under IFRS 9 the authority’s financial assets are classified into three types:

e Financial assets at amortised cost — where payments consist solely of principal and interest
and the reason for holding is to collect cash flows

e Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) — where payments do not consist
solely of principal and interest but where the authority has designated the instrument as
Fair value through OCI

e Fair value through Profit and Loss (P&L) - where payments do not consist solely of
principal and interest.

30




STATEMENT Page 85 NTs 2020121

Financial assets at amortised cost

These are initially measured at fair value and carried at amortised cost. Where interest is receivable
this is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. Normally this means, for the council’s loans and
investments, the amount recognised in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable
plus any accrued interest, and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is the amount receivable for the year stated in the loan agreement.

Interest attributable to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is calculated based on the level of its
usable reserves held throughout the year and the weighted average (consolidated) rate of interest
earned by the council, in accordance with statutory provisions.

Deposits, bonds and loans are assessed on recognition for impairment due to the likelihood that
payments due under the contract will not be made and, if material, a provision for twelve month
expected credit losses set aside from the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the risk of default increases significantly
after initial recognition and for trade and lease receivables a provision is set aside based on
expected lifetime credit losses, if deemed significant or material.

For current receivables with no stated interest rate the amount recognised is the outstanding
invoiced amount, less any allowance for impairment (provision for bad or doubtful debts).

Any gains and losses that arise on the disposal or de-recognition of the asset are credited or charged
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Fair value through OCI

These are initially measured at cost (equivalent to fair value) and carried at fair value. For
instruments quoted in an active market, fair values are based on their market prices at the reporting
date, except where the instruments will mature within twelve months of that date, in which case they
are assumed not materially different to (and therefore equal to) their carrying values.

Interest receivable is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, based on the amortised cost of the asset
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. Dividends from equity instruments
designated by the authority as Fair value through OCI are credited to the same line when they
become receivable by the council.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry to the Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve
(FIRR) (formerly the Available-for-Sale Reserve), with the gain or loss being recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Any gains or losses held in the FIRR on de-recognition of the asset are credited or charged to the
General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Fair value through P&L

These are initially measured at cost and carried at fair value. For instruments quoted in an active
market, fair values are based on their market prices at the reporting date, except where the
instruments will mature within twelve months of that date, in which case they are assumed not
materially different to (and therefore equal to) their carrying values.

31




STATEMENT Page 86 NTs 2020/21

1.19

1.20

1.21

1.22

Dividends are credited to the Financing and Investment Income and expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) when they become receivable by the
council. Changes in fair value and any gains or losses on de-recognition are charged or credited to
the same line in the CIES and, in the case of pooled investment funds reversed to the Pooled
Investment Funds Adjustment Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS). Sale
proceeds on de-recognition are credited to usable capital receipts via the MIRS.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The authority measures certain non-financial assets (Surplus Assets, Investment Property and
Assets Held for Sale) and its Fair value through OCI and Fair value through P&L financial assets at
fair value at the balance sheet date, unless there is no material difference between carrying value
and fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best
economic interest. In the case of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into account the market
participants’ ability to use the asset in its ‘highest and best use’ or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its ‘highest and best use’.

Inputs to the valuation techniques used in measuring fair value are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy as follows:
e Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - directly or indirectly observable inputs other than quoted prices
e Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

INVENTORIES

Inventories held in stores are included in the Balance Sheet at the latest price paid. This is a
departure from the requirements of the Code, which require inventories to be shown at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The effect of the different treatment is not considered material.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in no
more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the council’s cash management.

PROVISIONS
32




STATEMENT Page 87 NTs 2020/21

1.23

1.24

1.25

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council an obligation that
probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, but where the timing or amount of
the transfer is uncertain. For instance, the council may be involved in a court case that could
eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement when the council becomes aware of the event, based on its best
estimate of the likely settlement. When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the
provision carried on the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each
financial year. Where it becomes more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefits will not be
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited
back to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another
party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income in the relevant service
revenue account if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances
where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but, where material, disclosed in a
note to the accounts.

RESERVES

The council sets aside specific amounts as usable reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts from the General Fund balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is
incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service revenue account in that year to form part of the
Surplus or Deficit in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then
appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that
there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure in that year.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments, retirement and employee benefits, and they do not represent usable resources for the
council — these reserves are known as unusable reserves.

CONTINGENT ASSETS

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible asset
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but, where material, disclosed in a note

to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential.

33




STATEMENT Page 88)NTs 2020121

1.26

1.27

1.28

1.29

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
AND ERRORS

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events
and conditions on the council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change made
has a material effect, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised
for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
¢ those that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events
e those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the
events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES

Estimation techniques are the methods adopted to assess the values of assets, liabilities, gains and
losses and changes in reserves in situations where there is uncertainty as to their precise value.
Unless specified in the Code or in legislative requirements, the method of estimation will generally
be the one that most closely reflects the economic reality of the transaction.

JOINTLY CONTROLLED OPERATIONS

Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the council, together with other
organisations, involving the shared use of the assets and resources of the organisations, rather than
the establishment of a separate entity. The council recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that
it controls and the liabilities that it incurs and charges or credits the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement with the expenditure it incurs and the share of income it earns from the
activity of the operation.

Such operations, not being separate entities, are accounted for in the council only accounts and
are not separate entities for Group Account purposes.

34




STATEMENT Page 89)NTs 2020121

1.30

INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AND OTHER ENTITIES — GROUP ACCOUNTS

The council has material interests in companies that have the nature of being subsidiaries and joint
ventures and require it to prepare Group Accounts. In the council’s own single-entity accounts the
interests in companies and other entities are recorded as financial assets at cost (if any), less any
provision for losses.

Basis of Consolidation

The group accounts bring together the council's own accounts with those of Gloucestershire Airport
Limited (GAL), in which the council has a 50% shareholding, and Cheltenham Borough Homes
Limited (CBH), a company limited by guarantee in which the council is the sole member. The
accounts of CBH include those of Cheltenham Borough Homes Services Limited (CBHSL), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited.

GAL has been treated as a Joint Venture since it is jointly owned and controlled with Gloucester City
Council. GAL has therefore been consolidated with the council’'s accounts on an equity accounting
basis, in which the council’s share of the company’s operating results and net assets or liabilities
(based on its proportionate shareholding) are shown as separate lines in the main group statements.
There is no requirement to adjust for inter-organisation transactions and balances.

CBH has been treated as a Subsidiary (since it is wholly controlled by the council), so its accounts
have been consolidated in the main group statements on a line-by-line basis, eliminating inter-
organisation transactions and balances.

At 31 March 2021 the council also had a 14.29% shareholding in Ubico Limited, a local authority
owned company which has seven members, providing environmental services to the shareholder
councils. Since the council does not have control or significant influence over the company, its
accounts are not consolidated into the group accounts, however full disclosure notes are provided.

The council also has an interest in Publica Group (Support) Limited, a Joint Venture company limited
by guarantee, in which the council is one of four members. The council’s share of the company’s
profit for the year and net assets at the balance sheet date have not been consolidated into the
Group Accounts on the basis of immateriality.

The council also has an interest in the South West Audit Partnership Limited (SWAP), a company
limited by guarantee. As the council does not have any controlling or significant influence in the
company it is classed as an investment, and is not included in the Group Accounts.

Accounting Policies

The financial statements in the group accounts are prepared in accordance with the policies set out
above, with the following additions and exceptions:

Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited (CBH)

The financial statements for CBH have been prepared under the historical cost convention in
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP), including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 (FRS102) and the Housing SORP 2014: Statement of Recommended
Practice for Registered Social Housing providers.

Consequently dwellings owned by CBH are initially valued at historic cost. For the purposes of the
group accounts they have been re-valued at Current value to bring them into line with the council’s
accounting policies, using the existing use value for social housing (EUV-SH) appropriate to the
dwellings’ tenure as affordable homes. Any revaluation gains or losses are treated as described in
paragraph 1.10 (Measurement).

In the company accounts capital grants are written off to the Income and Expenditure account over

35




SsTATEMENT Page 90)NTs 2020/21

the estimated life of the asset in line with depreciation. However in the group accounts such grants
are treated in accordance with paragraph 1.4, whereby they are credited to the Income and
Expenditure account when any conditions attaching to the grant are met.

Gloucestershire Airport Limited

The financial statements of the Airport have been prepared under the historic cost convention
(except for certain items that are shown at fair value) in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 102 (FRS102).

Since Investment Property and Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) assets held by the airport have
been valued at fair value no adjustments are required to the value of non-current assets on
consolidation with the council’'s accounts. Unlike in the airport accounts, however, where any gains
in value over historic cost are credited to the Profit & Loss Account, such gains are credited in the
group accounts to the Revaluation Reserve (for PPE assets) and the Capital Adjustment Account
via the Group Income and Expenditure Statement (for Investment Property), in line with the council’s
accounting policies.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN
ISSUED BUT HAVE NOT YET BEEN ADOPTED

The Code requires changes in accounting policy to be applied retrospectively unless alternative transitional
arrangements are specified. There is also the requirement for an authority to disclose information relating
to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not
yet adopted.

The following standards and amendments are not expected to be introduced until the 2022/23 Code:
e [FRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 is not anticipated to have a material effect on the financial statements or balances of the council

since the changes mainly affect the recognition of leases by lessees and the authority does not have any
material finance or operating lease liabilities as lessee.

3. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In applying the accounting policies set out on pages 19-37, the council has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those which may be uncertain depending on future events.

Leases

Leases have been classified in accordance with the IFRS criteria. In making these assessments the council
has deemed all existing lessor leases (with the exception of the leases of vehicles and plant to Ubico
Limited) as being operating leases.

The leases of vehicles and plant to Ubico have been classified as finance leases. Ubico pay a market-rate
for the use of the vehicles and are responsible for insuring and maintaining the vehicles/plant and
determining their deployment (including use across other Ubico contracts where necessary). The company
pays for new vehicles/plant over periods of 3 - 8 years, according to the estimated useful economic life of
the assets. The leases have been treated as finance leases since i) the sum of the lease payments is equal
the cost of purchasing the assets; ii) the length of the term represents ‘substantially all’ of the useful life of
the assets; and iii) the rights and responsibilities of ownership of the assets (maintenance, insurance,
deployment) sit with the company.

36




STATEMENT Page 91;NTs 2020121

Business Rate Appeals Provision

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced a business rates retention scheme that enables local
authorities to retain a proportion of the business rates generated in their area. The new arrangements for
the retention of business rates came into effect on 1 April 2013. From this date district councils such as
Cheltenham assume a share of the liability for refunding ratepayers as a result of successful appeals and
other reductions made by the Valuation Office in the rateable values on the rating list. A successful appeal
or other reduction may mean the council having to refund rates paid in previous years. The council has
therefore set aside a provision to cover its share of the repayments it estimates will be made and made a
judgement as to the timescale over which they are likely to be repaid.

The provision is based on the expected success rate of appeals lodged at the year end, together with an
estimated reduction in the rating list, based on historical experience.

Group Accounts

In assessing the need for group accounts the council has had to make judgements to establish the
boundaries of the group (deciding which organisations over which it has or does not have a controlling or
significant interest), and judgements as to the classification of group entities (as subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures). Further details are given in the Group Accounts section on page 91.

4. ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the council
about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical
experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined
with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items on the council’'s Balance Sheet at 31st March 2021 for which there is a significant risk of
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Effect if actual results differ

Uncertainties .
from assumptions

Item

Valuation of non- | The Covid-19 pandemic and lockdown | There is more information available
current assets arrangements in place since March 2020 have | than in the previous year to
and investment had a significant impact on daily life and the | understand the impact of the
property global and UK economies. This could still affect | continuing uncertainties on the

the carrying values of assets carried at existing
use and fair value due to the uncertainty in the
assumptions used in their valuation.

carrying value of these assets. There
is still uncertainty around the extent
and duration of the effect of lockdown
measures on the wider economy in
the long term, and there is currently
insufficient evidence available to
assess this. However, although any
reduction in carrying values would
reduce the council’s ‘net worth’, in
themselves they would have no
impact on the authority’s revenue

account and ability to deliver
services, since they are chargeable to
unusable reserves and not the

surplus or deficit on the provision of
services.

37




STATEMENT Page 92;NTs 2020/21

Item

Uncertainties

Effect if actual results differ
from assumptions

Property, Plant
and Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are
dependent on assumptions about the level of
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in
relation to individual assets. The current
economic climate makes it uncertain that the
council will be able to sustain its current spending
on repairs and maintenance, bringing into doubt
the useful lives assigned to assets.

If the useful life of assets is reduced,
depreciation increases and the
carrying amount of assets falls.

It is estimated that the annual

depreciation charge for buildings
(including council dwellings),
vehicles, plant and equipment,

Infrastructure and surplus assets
would increase by £0.270 million for
every year that useful lives had to be
reduced.

Fair Value
measurements

When the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets (i.e. Level 1
inputs) their fair value is measures using
valuation techniques. Where possible, the inputs
to these valuation techniques are based on
observable data but where this is not possible
judgement is required in establishing fair values.
These judgements typically include
considerations such as uncertainty and risk.
However, changes in the assumptions used
could affect the fair value of the Council’s assets
and liabilities.

The unobservable inputs used in the
fair value measurement of our assets
and liabilities include management
assumptions made in relation to
rents, growth, vacancy levels and
discount rates.

Of £66.4m of investment property,
£14.375m of the carrying value is
based on assumptions relating to
income and yields. A 2% change in
yield would result in the investment
property balance changing by £290Kk.

Likewise, fair value measurement
has been applied to value the
surplus assets portfolio with a
carrying value of £44.125m. A 2%
change in the key assumptions
would result in the balance changing
by £890k.

The Council has used a discounted
cash flow model to measure the fair
value its investment in an unlisted
company. The carrying value of this
investment is £94k and a significant
change in the basis of the
assumptions for cash inflows,
outflows and discount rate would be
required for this to have a material
impact on the disclosure in the
statement of accounts.

Separate sensitivity analysis is
disclosed below for the fair value
measurement of the pension liability.

Pensions Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions
depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at
which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected
returns on pension fund assets. A firm of
consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the

The effects on the net pensions’
liability of changes in individual
assumptions can be measured. For
example, a 0.5% decrease in the
discount rate assumption would result
in an increase in the pension liability
of approximately 9% (£14.869m).A

38




STATEMENT Page 93)NTs 2020121

Effect if actual results differ

Item Uncertainties :
from assumptions

council with expert advice about the assumptions | sensitivity analysis is included in note
to be applied. 34 on Pensions.

The impact of the continuing
uncertainties on the carrying value of
these assets cannot be assessed at
this stage as it depends on the extent
and duration of the measures
introduced and their effect on the
wider economy in the long term, and
there is currently insufficient evidence
available to assess this.

Non-domestic This provision has been set up to meet losses | For appeals relating to charges up to
rates (NDR) arising from the successful appeal of businesses | 315t March 2017 a 1% increase in the
appeals provision | against the rateable value of their properties and | assumed success rate, together with
other rateable value reductions. The provision is | a 1% reduction in the rates payable,
based on an expected success rate of appeals | would result in an increase in the
submitted at 31 March and on an estimated | estimated provision required of
reduction in rateable value. Although based on | £116,939, of which the council’s
past experience, both the actual success rate and | share would be £46,776 (based on
actual reduction may differ from the estimate. 2020/21 shares). This would reduce
any collection fund surplus able to be
distributed to the council in future
years.

In addition, for appeals and other
rateable value reductions relating to
charges from 1st April 2017, a 1%
increase in the estimated rateable
value reduction would result in an
increase in the estimated provision
required of £1,340,262, of which the
council’s share would be £536,105
(based on 2020/21 shares).

The provision required is therefore
sensitive to small changes in the
reductions awarded and any under-
provision could have significant
impact on the council’s income.

5. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER THE REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that have been made to Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
so that it equals the resources which, under statutory provisions, are available to meet future capital and
revenue expenditure. The following describes the major reserves and the adjustments made to each
reserve:

General Fund Balance

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an council are required to be paid and
out of which all liabilities of the council are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide
otherwise. These rules also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on
the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The
General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources that the council is statutorily empowered to

39




STATEMENT Page 94;NTs 2020/21

spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the council is required to
recover) at the end of the financial year.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Balance

The HRA Balance reflects the council’s statutory obligation to maintain a separate revenue account for local
authority council housing in accordance with Part VI of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

It contains the balance of income and expenditure as defined by the 1989 Act that is available to fund future
expenditure in connection with the council’s landlord function.

Capital Receipts Reserve

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets which are
restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance
historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied
for these purposes at the year end.

Major Repairs Reserve

The council is required to maintain a Major Repairs Reserve, which is used to finance capital expenditure
incurred by the HRA.

Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve
The Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects

for which the council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies, but
which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure.

40




STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21

2019/20 Usable Reserves

2020/21 Usable Reserves

General | Housing | Capital Major Capital General | Housing | Capital Major Capital
Fund |Revenue |Receipts | Repairs | Grants Fund |Revenue |Receipts | Repairs | Grants
Balance | Account | Reserve | Reserve | Unapplied Balance | Account | Reserve | Reserve|Unapplied
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000

Adjustments to Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements
Reversal of entries included in the surplus or deficit on the provision of services in relation
to capital expenditure (charged or credited to the Capital Adjustment Account)
(5,127)| (4,966) - - -| Charges for depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-current assets (5,308)] (5,135) - - -
(1,490) (610) - - -| Revaluation losses on, and derecognitions of, Property, Plant and Equipment 1,870 354 - - -
(8,517) - - - -1 Movements in the fair value of Investment properties (2,386) 390 - - -
297 675 - - (297)| Capital grants and contributions 956 2,490 - - (956)
(415) - - - -| Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (737) - - - -
(1,605)| (1,107) - - -1 Amounts of non-current assets written off on sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal (380)| (1,068) - - -
89 - (89) - -| Capital grants and loans repaid 34 - (34) - -
362 - - - -|Pension costs transferred from the Pensions Reserve 1,318 - - - -
146 - - - -|Financial instruments transferred from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 146 - - - -
(873) - - - -|Fair value gains and losses of Pooled Investment Funds 406 - - - -
(228) - - - -|Council tax and NNDR net deficit transferred to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account (14,397) - - - -
- - - - -|Holiday Pay transferred to the Accumulated Absences Account (201) - - - -
(17,361)| (6,008) (89) - (297)|Total adjustments to Revenue Resources (18,679)| (2,969) (34) - (956)
Adjustments between Revenue and Capital resources
1,621 1,858 (1,875) - -|Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to capital receipts 431 2,036| (2,087) - -
- (17) 17 - -|Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals funded by capital receipts - (22) 21 - -
(441) - 441 - -|Payments to the government housing receipts pool funded by a transfer from capital receipts (407) - 407 - -
- 4,936 -1 (4,936) -|Transfer of HRA resources fromrevenue to the Major Repairs Reserve - 5,126 -| (5,126) -
1,836 - 397 - - | Statutory and voluntary provision for the repayment of debt transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account 407 - 262 - -
- 3,370 - - - | Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account 71 7,006 - - -
3,016 10,147| (1,020)| (4,936) -|Total adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 502 14,147| (1,397)| (5,126) -
Adjustments to Capital resources
- - 3,405 - -|Use of capital receipts to finance capital expenditure - - 2,578 - -
- - - 4,936 -|Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital expenditure - - - 5,126 -
- - - - 615|Application of capital grants and contributions to fund capital expenditure - - - - 937
- - (631) - -|Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts upon receipt of cash - - (827) - -
- - (399) - - | Capital loans repaid - - (265) - -
- - 2,375 4,936 615[Total adjustments to Capital Resources - - 1,486| 5,126 937
(14,345) 4,139 1,266 - 318|Total adjustments between Accounting and Funding basis under the regulations (18,177) 11,178 55 - (19)

41




STATEMEN'Page 96»)uNTs 2020/21

6. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

This Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Section 151 Officer on 30 September 2021.
Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events
taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2021, the figures
in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted to reflect the impact of this information, where
material.

7. TRADING OPERATIONS AND AGENCY SERVICES

Trading operations

The council operates a number of trading activities, the surplus/(deficit) of which is included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Details are as follows:

2020/21 2019/20
Income Expenditure | (Surplus) Income Expenditure | (Surplus)
/ deficit / deficit
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Included within Net cost
of Services

Cemetery and Crematorium (2,048) 1,156 (892) (2,063) 1,125 (938)

Car Parks (1,571) 2,900 1,329 (4,990) 3,329 (1,661)

Green Waste (855) 585 (270) (717) 432 (285)

Total (4,474) 4,641 167 (7,770) 4,886 (2,884)

The Cemetery and Crematorium, Car Parking and Green Waste trading operations are included within the
cost of services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reduction from a net surplus
of £2.884m to a deficit of £167k in 2020/21 is due to the reduction in income generated across the three
services through the pandemic. The Government’s income compensation grant has been used to offset
£2,040k of this, the total grant compensation received in 2020/21 is disclosed in Note 16 of these accounts.

Agency Services

During 2020/21 the council acted as agent to the government in the distribution of Small Business and
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure grants to local businesses. The expenditure incurred was £44.5 million, which

was fully reimbursed by government grant received in 2020/21.

8. OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Parish Precepts 295 278
Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 407 441
(Gains) / losses on disposal of non-current assets (998) (750)
Total Other Operating Expenditure (296) (31)

42




STATEMEN'Page 97>uNTs 2020/21

9. FINANCING AND INVESTMENT (INCOME) AND EXPENDITURE

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Interest payable and similar charges 3,891 3,945
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 1,092 1,446
Interest and investment income (667) (779)
Fair value changes in financial assets (Pooled Funds) (406) 870
Income and expenditure on investment properties and changes in
their fair value (1,173) 4,649
Net Financing and Investment (Income) and Expenditure 2,737 10,131
10. TAXATION AND NON SPECIFIC GRANT (INCOME) AND EXPENDITURE
2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

Council Tax (9,501) (9,254)
Non -Domestic Rates (income) and expenditure
- Billing authority share (22,547) (21,994)
- Collection Fund deficit 14,870 282
- Tariff payable to central government 19,245 18,936
- Levy payable to central government less Pool surplus 326 394

11,894 (2,382)
General government grants (21,470) (3,318)
Capital grants and contributions (3,624) (750)
Net Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (22,701) (15,704)

11. MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

In 2020/21 the council paid £360,570 (2019/20 £346,019) in allowances to its 40 members. The expenditure
reflects members’ allowances approved by council for 2020/21. Full details of the Members’ Allowances

scheme for the year can be found on the council’s website.

43




STATEMEN'Page 98)uNTs 2020/21

12. OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION

Senior Officers whose salary is equal to or more than £50,000 per annum:

2020/21
Total
remuneration Pension .
Salary Expenses/ excluding contributions T_otal Rgmunera_tlon
Allowances pension 6 WG i) [PETS o0
Post Title semiributeme contrll?eutlons
£ £ £
£
Chief Executive Officer 118,659 148 118,807 23,732 142,539
Executive Director, People & 84,591 476 85,067 16,918 101,985
Change
Managing Director, Place & Growth 99,196 512 99,708 19,839 119,547
Executive Director, Finance and 85,591 46 85,637 17118 102,755
Assets
TOTAL 388,037 1,182 389,219 77,608 466,826
2019/20
Total
remuneration Pension Total Remuneration
Salary Expenses/ Other excluding contributions includi 3
; Allowances payments pension inciu 'n.% [P
Post Title SEmriens contri £utlons
£ £ £ £
£
Previous Chief Executive
Officer (until November 58,262 688 3,197 62,147 11,247 73,394
2019)
Current Chief Executive
Officer (from February 2020) 18,900 ) ) 18,900 3459 22,359
Executive Director, People 84,666 1,637 - 86,303 15,086 101,389
& Change (note ii)
Managing Director, Place & 93,430 755 ; 94,185 16,680 110,865
Growth
Executive Director, Finance 87,990* 1,454 3,145+ 92,589 15,816 108,405
and Assets
TOTAL 343,248 4,534 6,342 354,124 62,288 416,412
*Restated
Notes:

For the purposes of this disclosure ‘Senior Officer’ means Chief Executive, their direct reports and statutory
chief officers whose salary is between £50,000 and £150,000.

The position of statutory role of Monitoring Officer for the council is carried out by Ms Sara Freckleton,
under a shared arrangement with Tewkesbury Borough Council. This council pays a contribution of 35%
of her costs, being £43,336 in 2020/21 (£42,394 in 2019/20).

The number of other employees whose remuneration, excluding employer’s pension contributions, was
£50,000 or more in bands of £5,000 was:

44




STATEMEN'Page 99uNTs 2020/21

Re-stated*
Remuneration Band No of Employees | No of Employees
2020/21 2019/20
£50,000 - £54,999 5 6
£55.000 - £59,999 3 3
£60,000 - £64,999 2 -
£65,000 - £69,999 2 2
Total 12 11

*this disclosure is re-stated as the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts reported two of the eleven employees in remuneration band
£60,000-£64,999 rather than £65,000-£69,999.

13. TERMINATION BENEFITS

The council terminated the contract of four employees in 2020/21 (three in 2019/20). Total costs incurred
were £31,592 (£10,584 in 2019/20), of which £19,182 relate to voluntary redundancies; there were no
compulsory redundancies in the year. In the year £12,146 (£5,054 in 2019/20) related to other departure
costs. These costs have been charged to the relevant service lines within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

These termination benefits are summarised in the table below:

2019/20
2020/21 Re-stated*
No. of staff £ Bands No. of staff
4 31,592 | £0 - £20,000 3 10,584
- - | £20,001 - £40,000 - -
4 31,592 3 10,584

*this disclosure is re-stated as the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts included only redundancy payments and did not include a total
of £5,054 for payments made in lieu of notice.

45




sTATEMEN'Page 100)NTs 2020/21

14, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions do not in themselves create a related party relationship: there has to be some element of
control or influence by one party over another, or by a third party over the two parties. The most common
form of influence is having representation on the board or governing body, but it can also be gained from
an ownership interest, from statutory provisions or by agreement. This note summarises the transactions
undertaken with parties which meet this definition for the Council, its Senior Officers and its Members in
2020/21.

Central Government

The UK Government has effective control over the general operations of the council - it is responsible for
providing the statutory framework and legislation within which the council operates, provides a large
proportion of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the
council has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from government
departments are shown in note 16 on page 53.

Council Members

Members of the council have direct control over the council’s financial and operating policies. The total of
members’ allowances paid in 2020/21 is shown in note 11 on page 46. Members complete an annual
declaration to report any business interests on an annual basis. Only one Member has declared an interest
where control and influence may be exercised within an outside commercial organisation in which the
Council has transacted in 2020/21.

A grant payment of £195,050 (2019/20 £195,050) was made to the Everyman Theatre in 2020/21. This is
an annual payment where there is a grant agreement in place. The Council Member in place does not vote
or, nor is involved in the discussions around the grant payment.

Other public bodies (subject to common control by central government)

The council collects precepts on behalf of Gloucestershire County Council, the Gloucestershire Police and
Crime Commissioner and the Parish Councils within the borough. Precepts for the County and Police and
Crime Commissioner are shown in the Collection Fund on page 87.

Six members of the borough council are also members of Gloucestershire County Council.

Companies

Gloucestershire Airport Limited

The council has a 50% shareholding in Gloucestershire Airport Limited. The airport’s accounts have been
consolidated into the Group Accounts. The Executive Director for Finance and Assets is also a Board
Member for Gloucestershire Airport Limited.

The airport paid a profit share of rental income to the Council in the year of £37,509 (2019/20 £23,684).
During 2011/12 the council loaned £1.190 million to the airport towards the cost of the runway safety project,
of which £0.263 million was outstanding at 315 March 2021. In addition, the council provided the company
with a further temporary overdraft facility during 2020/21 of £0.450 million, taking the overdraft as at 31
March 2021 to £1.050 million. Two further small capital loans totalling £165,000 were loaned to them in
October 2020 which remain fully outstanding. The loans were provided on an arm’s length basis and are
disclosed in Note 26 of the accounts.

Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited (CBH)

The council wholly owns an Arm’s Length Management Organisation (Cheltenham Borough Homes
46




sTATEMEN'Page 101,NTs 2020/21

Limited), which is limited by guarantee. The accounts for this company have been consolidated into the
Group Accounts. Two councillors serve on the company’s Board of Directors.

The council procured supplies and services totalling £12,144,480 from CBH during 2020/21 (£12,914,230
in 2019/20). CBH procured supplies and services from the council totalling £1,012,088 during 2020/21
(E468,702 in 2019/20), £420,284 (£188,000 in 2018/19) of which is included in short term debtors in the
council’s balance sheet at the year end. A Management Agreement is in place between the two parties for
the provision of services to the Council. Services were provided to CBH in line with our financial regulations.

Balances outstanding at the year-end were as follows:

2021 2020
£000 £000
The Council owed CBH (741) (954)
CBH owed the Council 8,031 6,582
7,290 5,628

Ubico Limited

Ubico Limited delivers environmental services for seven County Councils. Cheltenham County Council
holds an equal 1/7th shareholding in the company. The Executive Director for Finance and Assets is also a
Board Member for Ubico Limited.

The company provides services to the shareholder councils on a not-for-profit basis and therefore qualifies
for the Teckal exemption (named after the EU case that established the principle). As a Teckal company,
Ubico Limited must ensure that the percentage of work undertaken outside of the shareholder contracts is
less than 20% of its total activity.

The council procured supplies and services totalling £9,189,672 from Ubico Limited in the year (£9,397,026
in 2019/20), £Nil (£46,667 in 2019/20) of which is included in the council’s balance sheet as a short term
creditor at the year end. The company procured supplies and services from the council totalling £529,835
in the year (£386,394 in 2019/20), £763,452 (£641,772 in 2019/20) of which is included in the council’s
balance sheet within the short term debtor at the year end. A Management Agreement is in place between
the two parties for the provision of services to the Council. Services were provided to Ubico Limited in line
with our financial regulations.

Vehicles and plant used by Ubico to provide environmental services in the borough are initially purchased
by the council and then leased to the company in the year of purchase under a finance lease arrangement.
At 31%t March 2021 the amount owing to the council under these leases totalled £3.48 million (£3.92 million
at 31 March 2020). The leases are disclosed in Note 23 on page 60.

Publica Group (Support) Limited

Publica Group (Support) Limited is a not-for-profit company limited by guarantee, with no share capital. The
company has Mutual Trading Status to deliver services on behalf of the council and services to other
member councils under contract.

The company is a Teckal company, fulfilling the conditions set out in Regulation 12(4) of the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015. The company is subject to management supervision by the Members. As such, the
company is a body governed by public law as defined in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

In the year the council purchased services from Publica Group (Support) Limited to the value of £1,330,972
(£1,683,000 in 2019/20).

47




sTATEMEN'Page 102)NTs 2020/21

South West Audit Partnership Limited (SWAP)

The council is a member of SWAP which is a company limited by guarantee, wholly owned and controlled
as an in-house company by its members. It is a local authority controlled company for the purposes of Part
V of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. The liability of each member is limited to £1, being the
amount that each member undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being
wound up whilst a member or within one year after ceasing to be a member. The Executive Director for
People and Change is also a Board Member for SWAP.

In the year the council purchased services from SWAP totalling £108,374 (£105,217, in 2019/20). The
services are provided under a Service Level Agreement.

Cheltenham Business Improvement District

Cheltenham Business Improvement District (BID) is an elected organisation set up to deliver a range of
projects that benefit businesses in the district of Cheltenham covering the town centre, including the
Promenade, Montpellier and The Brewery Quarter. Cheltenham Borough Council’'s Managing Director of
Place and Growth is also a Director of the BID which the Council do undertake transactions with.

Officers
Monitoring Officer (MO)
Cheltenham Borough Council shares its Monitoring Officer with Tewkesbury Borough Council. The MO is

an employee of, and paid by, Tewkesbury Borough Council. Whilst the officer is shared and has influence
in both councils, she is required to act separately for each council.

15. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

Re-stated*
2020/21 2019/20
£ £
Fees payable to the External Auditor with regard to external
audit services carried out by the appointed auditor 59,543 56,929
Fees paid to the External Auditor for the certification of grant
claims and returns 19.906 22572
Additional fee for audit expert on Investments i 4.000
Other work provided by the appointed auditor:-
Audit of Pooled Capital Housing receipts 5,000 5.000
84,449 88,501

*the 2019/20 disclosure has been re-stated to ensure additional fees for prior year audit work are included.

48




sTATEMEN'Page 103)NTs 2020/21

16. GRANT INCOME

The council credited the following grants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement:
2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Credited to Other Income and Expenditure
New Homes Bonus (1,252) (1,469)
Section 31 Business Rates compensation grants (15,371) (1,792)
Capital Grants and Contributions (3,368) (750)
Other grants and contributions (564) (141)
(20,555) (4,152)
Credited to Services
Housing Benefits subsidy & administration grants (21,192) (22,060)
Council Tax Benefit administration grant (105) (108)
Capital grants and contributions (313) (410)
Other Grants (2,601) (498)
Covid-19 Loss of Income grants (2,756) -
Covid-19 Expenditure grants (1,536) -
Partnership funding and contributions (482) (1,591)
(28,985) (24,667)
Total (49,540) (28,819)

The council has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as income as
they have conditions attached to them which have yet to be met. The balances at the year-end are as

follows:
2020/21 2020/21 2019/20 2019/20
Current Long Term Current Long Term
£000 £000 £000 £000
Receipts in Advance — Revenue
Commuted Grounds Maintenance contributions (87) (95) - (95)
NNDR compensation (rate reliefs) 2020/21 - - (1,813) -
Flood Relief (361) - (368) -
Homelessness (70) - (277) -
Community Welfare Grants (239) - - -
Covid-19 Enforcement Grants (262) - - -
Garden Communities Grant (104) - - -
Other grants and contributions (209) (200) (202) (180)
(1,332) (295) (2,660) (275)
Receipts in Advance — Capital
Affordable housing contributions (233) (87) (253) (225)
Homes England Grant - - (1,888) -
Partnership funding (1,951) - - -
Other grants and contributions (542) - (146) -
(2,726) (87) (2,287) (225)

49




sTATEMEN'Page 104)NTs 2020/21

17. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

EXPENDITURE & FUNDING ANALYSIS

The objective of the Expenditure and funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax and rent payers how the
funding available to the authority (government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for the year has been
used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this
expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council’s services. Income and Expenditure

accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

2019/20 2020/21
Net Adjustments | Net expenditure Net Adjustments | Net expenditure
expenditure | between the in the expenditure between the in the
chargeable to | funding and | Comprehensive chargeableto | funding and | Comprehensive
the General accounting Income and the General accounting Income and
Fund and HRA basis Expenditure Fund and HRA basis Expenditure
balances (note below) statement balances (note below) statement
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
1,469 146 1,615|Chief Executive 1,664 10 1,674
9,422 (1,754) 7,668 |Finance and Assets Directorate 10,412 (3,949) 6,463
4,263 375 4,638 |People and Change Directorate 4,120 511 4,631
7,085 1,019 8,104 |Place and Growth Directorate 8,932 229 9,161
(3,226) 610 (2,616)|Local Authority housing (HRA) (3,156) (736) (3,892)
19,013 396 19,409| Net Cost of Services 21,972 (3,935) 18,037
(15,414) 9,810 (5,604)| Other income and expenditure (31,193) 10,935 (20,258)
3,599 10,206 13,805] (Surplus) or Deficit (9,221) 7,000 (2,221)
Opening General Fund and HRA balance including
(16,437) earmarked reserves at 1 April (12,838)
3,599 Add (Surplus) / deficit in year (9,221)
Closing General Fund and HRA balance including
(12,838) earmarked reserves at 31 March** (22,059)
**for a split of the balance betw een the General Fund, HRA and earmarked reserves see the Movement in Reserves Statement

50




STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21

NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

2019/20 2020/21
Adjustments for | Net changes Other Total Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the Adjustments for | Net changes Other Total
capital purposes for the Differences [Adjustments |Comprehensive Income and Expenditure capital purposes for the Differences |Adjustments
(note 1 below) Pension (note 3 below) Statement amounts (note 1 below) Pension (note 3 below)
Adjustments Adjustments
(note 2 below) (note 2 below)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

- 146 146 Chief Executive - 86 (76) 10

1,490 (3,244) - (1,754) [Finance and Assets Directorate (767) (3,222) 40 (3,949)
U
- 375 - 375|People and Change Directorate 223 225 63 511 %
@D
104 915 - 1,019|Place and Grow th Directorate (446) 501 174 229 =
o
610 - - 610|Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (736) - (736) o1

2,204 (1,808) - 396(Net Cost of Services (1,726) (2,410) 201 (3,935)

7,409 1,446 955 9,810|Other Income and Expenditure from the Funding Analysis (4,408) 1,092 14,251 10,935

Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit and
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
9,613 (362) 955 10,206 |surplus or deficit (6,134) (1,318) 14,452 7,000

51




sTATEMENTPage 106NTs 2020/21

Notes

(1) Adjustments for capital purposes — this column adds in revaluation gains/losses on Property, Plant
and Equipment, capital grants repaid and Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
(REFCUS) in the service lines and for:

e Other Operating Expenditure — adds gains/losses on disposals of Property, Plant and
Equipment and capital receipts paid to the housing pool

e Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure — the statutory charges for capital financing
(Minimum and Voluntary Revenue Provision) and revenue financing of capital expenditure are
deducted as these are not chargeable under generally accepted practices, and changes in the
fair value of Investment properties are added

e Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure — this line is credited with capital
grants and donations receivable in the year which have no conditions or for which conditions
were satisfied in the year.

Depreciation and amortisation charges are included in the service lines in the Net Expenditure
chargeable to the General Fund and HRA balances column of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis
(as they are included in reports to management), but then (in the case of the General Fund) reversed
out in Other Income and Expenditure so they have no impact on council tax. The reversal is removed
in the Other Income and Expenditure line in the adjustments for capital purposes column above to
ensure such charges are included in the surplus or deficit on the provision of services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

(2) Net change for the Pensions Adjustments
o for services - the removal of employer pension contributions and their replacement with current
and past service costs
¢ for Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure — the addition of net interest on the
pensions defined benefit liability.

(3) Other Differences

¢ for Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure — adjustments to the general fund for
timing differences in premiums and discounts on financial instruments and for changes in the
fair value of pooled investment funds

¢ for Taxation and Non-specific Grant income and Expenditure — timing differences between the
income for council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) credited under statutory regulations and
that recognised under generally accepted accounting practice.

o for services — accruals for holiday pay.

52




sTATEMENTPage 107NTs 2020/21

SEGMENTAL INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

The net expenditure chargeable to the general fund and HRA balances in the Expenditure and Funding
Analysis includes the following items on a segmental basis:-

2020/21 2019/20
Depreciation, Revenues Depreciation, Revenues
amortisation from external amortisation from external
and impairment customers* | and impairment customers*
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Chief Executive 26 (16) - (18)
Finance and Assets Directorate 2,241 (813) 2,160 (790)
People and Change Directorate 674 (751) 642 (775)
Place and Growth Directorate 2,367 (8,874) 2,325 (12,454)
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 5,135 (20,525) 4,966 (20,211)
Total analysed on a segmental basis 10,443 (30,979) 10,093 (34,248)

*Revenues from external customers are included in “Fees, charges & other service income” in note 18 below.

18. EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE

2020/21 2019/20
£'000 £'000
Expenditure
Employee benefit expenses 10,784 11,512
Other service expenses 55,317 54,838
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 10,443 10,093
Losses on revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment,

Investment property and financial assets 16 12,000
Interest payments 4,983 5,391
Precepts and levies 34,736 19,889
Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 407 441
Total Expenditure 116,686 114,164
Income
Fees, charges and other service income (35,061) (38,251)
Interest and investment income (1,261) (1,292)
Income from council tax and non-domestic rates (32,047) (31,247)
Government grants and contributions (49,540) (28,819)
Net gains on disposal of non-current assets (998) (750)
Total Income (118,907) | (100,359)
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (2,221) 13,805

53




19.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

2019/20 2020/21
Communit Surplu Communit Surplu
Council Other Vehicles, Infra- y s Assets Total Council Other Vehicles, Infra- y s Assets Total
dwelling Land structur dwelling Land structur
5 and Plant and e assets assets under s and Plant and e assets assets under
constructio equipmen constructio
buildings equipment assets n buildings t assets n
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation
372,96
209,877 137,152 5,223 14,004 148 5,312 1,251 7 At 1 April 213,293 142,149 5,760 14,222 148 42,407 3,580 421,559
12,668 97 2,137 218 - | 39,600 1,800 56,520 | Additions 10,436 161 434 114 - 8 6,966 18,119
Revaluation increases / (decreases)
(8,104) 4,960 - - - 146 - (2,998) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 7,412 (3,470) - - - 1,796 - 5,738
Revaluation increases / (decreases)
recognised in the surplus / deficit on
- - - - - | (2,100) - (2,100) the provision of services - - - - - (124) - (124)
(1,107) - (1,605) - - - - | (2,712) | Derecognition - disposals (1,070) - (380) - - - - (@uu)
- - - - - - - - | Derecognition - other Q.) -
Assets reclassified (to)/from held for (@]
- (60) - - - - - (60) | resale - (10) - - - 60 - D )
(41) - 5 - - (551) 529 (58) | Other Reclassifications 1,767 (1,190) - - - - (577) [
421,55
213,293 142,149 5,760 14,222 148 | 42,407 3,580 9 | At31 March 231,838 137,640 5,814 14,336 148 | 44,147 9,969 44 82_
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment
(6) (3,993) (2,071) (3,256) - (143) (33) (9,502) | At1 April (13) (6,998) (2,546) (3,783) - (204) (33) (13,577)
(4,613) (4,278) (475) (527) - (61) - (9,954) | Depreciation charge (4,796) (4,436) (493) (525) - (66) - (10,316)
Depreciation written out to the
4,606 1,273 - - - - - 5,879 Revaluation Reserve 4,809 10,700 - - - 223 15,732
Depreciation written out to the surplus /
- - - - - - - - deficit on the provision of services - - - - - 25 25
- - - - - - - - | Impairments - - - - - 9) 9)
(13,577
(13) (6,998) (2,546) (3,783) - (204) (33 ) | At 31 March - (734) (3,039) (4,308) - (22) (42) (8,145)
407,98
213,280 135,151 3,214 10,439 148 42,203 3,547 2 Net Book Value at 31 March 231,838 136,906 2,775 10,028 148 44,125 9,927 435,747

54




sTATEMENT Page 1094Ts 2020/21

Depreciation

The following estimated useful lives have been used in the calculation of depreciation:
e Council dwellings — between 10 - 75 years depending on the component, for example 20 years for
kitchens, 30 years for bathrooms and windows, 60 years for roofs
e Other Buildings — between 15 - 60 years, depending on the individual building
¢ Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment - between 5 - 15 years, depending on the type of asset
e Infrastructure - 40 years for General Fund assets, 25 years for HRA assets.

The individual remaining useful lives of each asset are reviewed annually or on revaluation and amended
as necessary.

Revaluations

The council formally re-values its land and buildings on a rolling programme to ensure they are revalued at
least every five years, however in accordance with the Code all land and building values are reviewed
annually for material changes and re-valued at 315 March if necessary. Valuations have been carried out
both internally by the council’s property section and externally. Valuations of land and buildings were carried
out using the methodologies and bases of estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

The table below summarises the valuation basis and date of valuation (if applicable):

Council Other land Vehicles, Infrastructure | Community | Surplus Assets Total
Dwellings and plant, assets assets assets under
buildings furniture & construction
equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Carried at
(depreciated)
historical cost - - 2,775 10,028 148 - 9,927 22,878
Valued at
current value as
at 315t March:
2016 - 43 - - - 60 - 103
2017 - 1,949 - - - 601 - 2,550
2018 - 444 - - - - - 444
2019 - 799 - - - - - 799
2020 - 3,051 - - - - - 3,051
2021 231,838 130,620 - - - 43,464 - | 405,922
Total cost or
valuation 231,838 136,906 2,775 10,028 148 | 44,125 9,927 | 435,747
Componentisation

Under the Code the council is required to account separately for significant building components as defined
in the council’s Componentisation policy. This is to ensure material components are depreciated over their
respective useful lives. Components separately identified relate only to council dwellings, where the main
ones are roofs, walls, kitchens, bathrooms, electrics, heating, windows/doors, solar panels, and communal
lifts and services.

Fair value measurement of Surplus assets

The fair values of surplus assets valued at 31 March 2021 have been based on a market approach using
current market conditions, recent sale prices and other relevant information for similar assets in the local

55




sTATEMENT Page 1104Ts 2020/21

area. The level of observable inputs is therefore significant, leading to the properties being categorised at
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

20. HERITAGE ASSETS

The council’s buildings house most of the authority’s heritage assets, held to support the provision of arts
and culture in Cheltenham. In addition the council owns a number of statues and monuments located within
the town.

The heritage assets housed in the council’s buildings comprise the collections either exhibited or stored at
the Cheltenham Art Gallery and Museum (The Wilson), the Pittvile Pump Room, the Holst Birthplace
Museum, the Municipal Offices and the Town Hall. These assets include many items donated by local
people.

The four principal collections are:

e Fine Art

o Decorative Arts

e Social History and Ethnography
e Archaeology.

The council does not recognise the archaeological collection on its balance sheet, as obtaining valuations
for these would involve a disproportionate cost. This exemption is permitted by the Code and is due to the
diverse nature of the assets held, and lack of comparable market values.

The museum holds significant collections in the following areas:

e Fine art: British and foreign paintings, drawing and prints from the 16th century onwards, including
English water colours from the 18th century onwards

e Decorative art: British and European ceramics, British furniture, clocks, glass, metalwork and treen
from the 16th century onwards

e Oriental art: Chinese ceramics, costume, armour and artefacts from the 9th century to the present
day

o Costumes and textiles: garments, underwear and accessories from the 17th century onwards

e The Arts and Crafts Movement: books, ceramics, furniture, metalwork, paintings, textiles, archives,
designs and drawings relating to the English Arts and Crafts Movement from the 1860's to the
present day, recognised nationally by the government as a Dedicated Collection

e Archaeology: Prehistoric, Romano-British and medieval archaeology

e Local history: printed ephemera, photographs, postcards, topographical prints and objects relating
to the history of Cheltenham

¢ Numismatics: British and foreign coins from the Roman empire to the 21st century
e Firearms and edged weapons: British and European examples
e Natural sciences: geology, herbaria, eggs

e Social history: objects relating to English domestic, personal and working life from the 17th century

56




sTATEMENT Page 111yTs 2020/21

to the present day.

The museum maintains all its present collections, and where appropriate enhances those collections by
building on present strengths and filling gaps by purchase, gift or bequest. The museum does not undertake
disposals motivated by financial reasons. Disposals are only undertaken by the governing body after full
External expert advice is sought, along with the views of

consideration of the reasons for disposal.
stakeholders.

relating to capital receipts.

Any proceeds are accounted for in accordance with statutory accounting requirements

The collections are managed by curators employed by the Cheltenham Trust, who manage the collections
on behalf of the council in accordance with council policy and guidance.

A detailed breakdown of the carrying values of the council’s heritage assets are shown below:

Ceramics Art Furniture Civic Textiles, Statues and Total
Collection Regalia | Ephemera and | Monuments
& Silver other
collectables
£000 £°000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Valuation
1 April 2019 2,403 26,799 4,447 217 5,234 1,600 40,700
Revaluations* - - - - - 48 48
31 March 2020 2,403 26,799 4,447 217 5,234 1,648 40,748
Revaluations* 48 537 158 4 345 - 1,092
31 March 2021 2,451 27,336 4,605 221 5,579 1,648 41,840

* includes updates for inflation.

Except for two items professionally revalued during 2016/17 in preparation for their forthcoming loan, all
the major works of art were last revalued at 1st April 2010. However the insurance valuations are reviewed
annually for inflationary increases.

57




STATEMENT Page 112yTs 2020/21

21. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred (investment made) in the year is shown in the table below,
together with the resources used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years
by charges to revenue as assets are used by the council, the expenditure results in an increase in the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure financed by borrowing. The

CFR is analysed in the second part of the note.

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Opening Capital Financing Requirement 177,592 135,225
Capital Investment
Property, Plant and Equipment (see Additions in note 19 for breakdown) 18,120 56,520
Investment Property 367 534
Intangible assets - 131
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 737 415
Long Term Capital Loans 1,770 -
20,994 57,600
Sources of Finance
Capital Receipts (2,840) (3,801)
Government Grants (2,402) (579)
Capital Contributions (648) (515)
Partnership Funding (376) (196)
Revenue Financing:
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) (236) (1,673)
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP) (171) (163)
Major Repairs Reserve (5,126) (4,936)
Revenue (7,078) (3,370)
(18,877) (15,233)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 179,709 177,592
Explanation of movement in year
Increase in underlying need to borrowing
(unsupported by Government financial assistance) 2,786 44,599
Minimum and Voluntary Revenue Provision (MRP/VRP) (407) (1,836)
Capital receipts applied in lieu of MRP (262) (396)
Increase (Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 2,117 42,367

Commitments under capital contracts

At 31st March 2021 the council was committed to completing the schemes within its capital programme for
2020/21. A total of £859,516 had not been spent but was contractually committed at 31st March 2021 (ENil

at 31% March 2020).

58




STATEMENT Page 1134Ts 2020121

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following items of income and expenditure relating to Investment Properties have been accounted for
in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement:

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Rental income from Investment Property (3,974) (4,087)
Direct operating expenses 211 219

In addition in 2020/21 £0.274 million (£0.250 million in 2019/20) of rental income is included in the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) line.

There are no restrictions on the council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on
its right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The council has no contractual obligations
to purchase, construct, enhance or develop investment property, however some lease agreements require
the council to repair and maintain properties.

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties in the year:

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

Balance at 1st April 68,068 75,993
Additions — construction 367 534
Reclassifications (to) / from Property, Plant and Equipment - 58
Net gains / (losses) for the period included in the surplus

or deficit on the provision of services resulting from

changes in fair value (1,997) (8,517)
Balance at 31st March 66,438 68,068

The fair value of the investment property is reviewed and re-measured annually as necessary at the balance
sheet date. All properties were revalued in 2020/21 by both internal and an external valuers, in accordance
with the methodologies and bases of estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors.

The valuations have been based where possible on a market approach using current market conditions,
recent sale prices and other relevant information for similar assets in the local area. In these cases, where
existing rents have been capitalised, the yield has been obtained by using market knowledge and evidence.
The level of observable inputs is therefore significant, leading to £52.063 million of the value of the
properties at 315t March 2021 being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

The remaining valuation of £14.375 million has been based on an income approach using a discount rate,
which are significant unobservable inputs, so have been categorised at level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

59




STATEMENT Page 114yTs 2020/21

Such valuations are therefore sensitive to significant changes in rental income and in the discount rate
used.

In estimating the fair values of the investment properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

23. ASSETS HELD UNDER LEASES

The council as Lessor

Finance Leases

The council’s policy is to purchase the vehicles and plant required by Ubico Limited to provide environmental
services within Cheltenham and then lease them to the company. The vehicles and plant used on these
services at 1st April 2012 were transferred under a finance lease to the company when it commenced
operations on that date. The present value of the lease at the date of transfer was £1.364 million.
Subsequent purchases of £5.902 million (including £0.380 million in 2020/21) have been subject to further
finance leases.

The repayments due under the leases are based on recovering the cost of each vehicle or item of plant
over its remaining estimated useful life, together with a finance charge on the amounts outstanding. The
council does not anticipate residual values for the items at the end of the leases as they are not considered
material, consequently the gross investment in the leases is deemed equal to the present value of the lease
payments due. These are due as follows:

31st March | 31st March

2021 2020

£000 £000
Not later than 1 year 842 802
2 -5 years 2,399 2,759
More than 5 years 235 360
3,476 3,921

A loss provision for uncollectable amounts has not been provided on the basis the lessee is a wholly owned
local authority company.

Operating Leases

The council seeks to obtain income from property it owns but does not need for its own occupation by
granting operating leases. Where the council grants leases it does so at best consideration unless it wishes
to support the tenant financially, for example where tenants provide a service to the community.

Where the council wishes to support a tenant financially it needs to be satisfied that the use of the property

supports the authority’s Corporate Plan objectives and is not otherwise commercially viable. The council
uses a system where the tenant pays a rent equivalent to best consideration and enters into a service

60




STATEMENT Page 115yTs 2020/21

agreement linked to the lease, which includes a grant from the council in lieu of some or all of the rent,

depending on the service provided from the property.

The council received £5,234,711 in rental income in 2020/21 from its granted leases (£4,136,981 in

2019/20).

The future minimum lease payments receivable in future years under non-cancellable operating leases are:

31st March | 31st March

2021 2020

£000 £000
Not later than 1 year 4,526 4,477
2 —5years 12,242 17,029
More than 5 years 113,148 100,919
129,916 122,425

24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

All of the intangible assets held relate to computer software, licenses being held for a number of the council’s
main software packages e.g. the Financial Management System. The intangible assets include both
purchased licences and internally generated assets relating to the software. The balance is amortised to

61




STATEMENT Page 1164Ts 2020/21

the relevant service revenue account over the useful life of the software (normally 5 — 10 years) on a straight
line basis. The movement on intangible asset balances during the year is as follows:

2020/21 2019/20
Software Software
£000 £000
Balance at 1st April
- Gross carrying amounts 1,413 1,282
- Accumulated amortisation (911) (772)
Net carrying amount at start of year 502 510
Additions - purchases - 131
Amortisation in Year (117) (139)
Balance at 31st March 385 502
Comprising:
- Gross carrying amounts 1,364 1,413
- Accumulated amortisation (979) (911)
385 502
25. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Current
31st March 31st March
2021 2020
£°000 £°000
Balance outstanding at start of year 60 -
Reclassifications from/(to) Property, Plant and
Equipment (12) 60
Revaluation gains - -
Balance outstanding at year end 48 60

62




STATEMENT Page 117yT1s 2020/21

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Cateqories of financial instrument

The following categories are carried on the Balance Sheet:

Current Long term
31st March | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000

Investments
Financial assets at amortised cost (note i below) - 7,035 1,050 603
Fair value through other comprehensive income

- shares in unlisted companies (note ii) - - 94 1,700
Fair value through P&L - Pooled Funds (note iii) 64 75 6,189 5,783
Total Investments 64 7,110 7,333 8,086
Debtors
Financial assets at amortised cost 5,298 5,630 11,304 10,739
Total included in debtors (note iv) 5,298 5,630 11,304 10,739
Cash and Cash equivalents
Financial assets at amortised cost 7 2,174
Fair value through P&L (note v) 6,940 18,995
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (746) -
Total cash and cash equivalents 6,201 21,169
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 11,563 33,909 18,637 18,825
Borrowings
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans 1,478 759 97,935 99,393
- Bank and other loans 58,814 69,336 15,900 15,900
Total borrowings 60,292 70,095 113,835 115,293
Creditors
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 4,721 9,226 - -
Total included in creditors (Note vi) 4,721 9,226 - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 65,013 79,321 113,835 115,293

Notes

(i) These comprise deposits with banks and other local authorities and bank certificates of deposit.

(ii) These comprise shares held in Gloucestershire Airport Limited. The fair value has been assessed by the
council’s treasury management advisors, based on projected company cash flows using the airport’s

business plans (Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy). The valuation is therefore sensitive to small
changes in rental, interest and operating income and cost inflation, including aviation fuel and pension

63




STATEMENT Page 1184ts 2020121

costs.
The shares are not held for trading and there are no plans to dispose of them.

In addition the council holds shares costing £1 in Ubico Limited. The fair value of the council’s interests in
the company at 31st March 2021 is considered to be nil, since it is a wholly local authority owned not-for-
profit ‘Teckal’ company. As a Teckal’ company it is treated as if it was an in house department and the
shareholder councils are able to enter into service contracts with the company without undertaking an EU
compliant procurement process.

(iii) These comprise units in the CCLA pooled property fund, the Schroders Income Maximiser Fund and
CCLA Diversified Income Fund, the carrying (fair) value of which has been assessed using Level 1 inputs
in the fair value hierarchy (quoted prices for identical units) at 31st March 2021.

(iv) Further details of current debtors are given in note 27, page 77. The figures shown above exclude
payments in advance and non-exchange transactions, such as taxes and grants due, which are not
classified as financial instruments.

Long term debtors at 315t March 2021 mainly comprise:

e an outstanding loan of £0.334 million (£0.350 million at 31t March 2020) to the Cheltenham
Everyman Theatre (made in 2011/12 for 25 years towards the redevelopment of the theatre)

¢ loans totalling £7.897 million (£6.304 million at 31st March 2020) made to Cheltenham Borough
Homes Limited for between 30 and 50 years for housing redevelopment

¢ finance lease repayments of £2.635 million (£3.119 million at 31t March 2020) due from Ubico
Limited (relating to leases of vehicles and plant)

e a loan of £0.258 million (£0.383 million at 31t March 2020) to Gloucestershire Airport Limited
towards the cost of the runway safety project. In addition net investments of £0.450 million were
made to the Airport in 2020/21 to add to the investment loan balance brought forward of £0.600
million in 2019/20, taking the outstanding balance to £1.050 million as at 315t March 2021. A further
£0.165 million was provided as a loan to fund the sub-station and radar project.

The remainder comprises mortgages for house purchase and other loans.

(v) These comprise money market funds that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(vi) Further details of current creditors are given in note 29, page 74. The figures shown above exclude receipts
in advance, which are not classified as financial instruments.

Income, Expense, gains and losses
Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities

2020/21 2019/20
Financial Financial | Financial Total Financial Financial | Financial Total
Liabilities Assets at Assets: Liabilities Assets at Assets:
at amortised Fair at amortised Fair

amortised cost value amortised cost value

cost through cost though

P&L P&L
£000 £°000 £000 £°000 £000 £°000
£°000 £000
Interest expense 3,891 - - 3,891 3,948 - - 3,948

64




STATEMENT Page 119qTs 2020121

Fee expense 64 - - 64 40 - 1 41
Changes in fair value - - 780 780 - - 870 870
mpairment losses - 3) - 3)

Total expenses in
Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of

Services 3,955 - 780 4,735 3,988 ®3) 871 4,856
Interest Income - (391) (276) (667) (452) (326) (778)
Interest Income - - - - - (1) - 1)
accrued on
impaired financial
assets

Changes in fair value

Total income in
Surplus or Deficit -

on the Provision of (391) (276) (667) - (453) (326) (779)
Services
(Net gain)/loss for 3,955 (391) 504 4,068 3,988 (456) 545 4,077
the year

The fair values of the authority’s financial assets and liabilities are shown below, where different to their

65




sTATEMENT Page 1204Ts 2020/21

carrying amounts. The fair values have been assessed as equal to the present value of the expected cash
flows over the remaining term of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

o for financial liabilities, the new maturity rates from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) at 31st
March have been used. The valuation basis therefore uses Level 2 inputs (i.e. observable inputs
other than quoted prices) in the fair value hierarchy.

e no early repayment or impairment is recognised

e where an instrument will mature in the next twelve months, fair value is assumed to approximate
to amortised cost

¢ the fair value of trade and other short term payables and receivables is taken to be the invoiced
or billed amount

¢ the fair value can be reliably estimated.

2020/21 2019/20
Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
amount £000 amount £°000
£000 £000
Financial Assets
Investments at amortised cost 1,050 1,050 603 603
Long term debtors at amortised cost 11,304 13,507 10,258 12,320

The fair value of long term debtors is higher than the carrying amount because the debtors include fixed
rate loans where the interest rate receivable from borrowers is higher than the rates available for similar

loans at the Balance Sheet date.

2020/21 2019/20
Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
amount £000 amount £000
£000 £000
Financial Liabilities
Borrowing — PWLB loans* 97,935 115,491 99,393 116,028
- long term bank loans 15,900 24,803 15,900 25,080
Total borrowing 113,835 140,294 115,293 141,108

*includes current borrowing

The fair value is higher than the carrying amount because the council’s borrowing includes fixed rate loans
where the interest rate payable is higher than the rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date.
The commitment to pay interest above current market rates increases the amount that the council would
have to pay if it requested early repayment of the loans.

In the case of long term bank loans £7 million is subject to ‘Lenders Option, Borrowers Option’ (LOBO loans)
the borrower’s options to accept the increased rate or repay the loan have been valued at nil, on the

66




STATEMENT Page 121yts 2020/21

assumption that lenders will only exercise their options when market rates have risen above the contractual
rate.

Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

The council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The key risks are:
e credit risk — the risk that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the council

¢ liquidity risk — the possibility that the council might not have funds available to meet its
commitment to make payments

e market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise for the council as a result of
changes in such measures as interest rates

The council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and
are structured to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk management
are set out through a legal framework based on the Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations.
These require the council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance and the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Treasury Management in Local Authorities (both revised in December 2017) and
government investment guidance issued under the Act (revised in January 2018). Overall, these procedures
require the council to manage risk in the following ways:

e by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management practices within
its financial regulations

e by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three
years

e by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year, setting out its criteria for both
investing and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with government
guidance.

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the council’s annual Council Tax setting or
before the start of the financial year to which they relate. The items are reported with the annual treasury
management strategy, which outlines the detailed approach to managing risk in relation to the council’s
financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported after each year, as is a mid-year update.

The annual treasury management strategy which incorporates the prudential indicators was approved by
Council on 23rd March 2020. The two key controls were:

e The Authorised Limit for 2020/21 was set at £320 million. This is the maximum limit of
external borrowings or other long term liabilities

e The Operational Boundary for 2020/21 was set at £310 million. This is the expected level
of debt and other long term liabilities during the year.

These policies are implemented by a central treasury team. The council maintains written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies (Treasury Management Practices or TMPs) covering
specific areas such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash. These TMPs are a
requirement of the Code of Practice and are reviewed periodically.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from investments mainly with banks and other financial institutions, as well as credit
exposure to the council’s customers. This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which

67




STATEMENT Page 122yts 2020/21

requires that investments are not made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit
criteria, in accordance with the Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s Credit Ratings Services. The Annual
Investment Strategy also sets the maximum amounts and time limits in respect of each counterparty.
Investments are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the minimum requirements
of the investment criteria.

The council used the creditworthiness services of Arlingclose Limited during 2020/21. The maximum
investment that could be made with an approved UK counterparty was £6 million in 2020/21. No breaches
of the council’s counterparty criteria occurred during the reporting period and the council does not expect
any losses from non-performance by any of its counter-parties.

The council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments cannot be assessed generally,
as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to
that individual organisation. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to
meet their commitments. A risk of default applies to all of the council’s investments, but there was no
evidence at 31st March 2021 that this is likely to materialise. The following analysis summarises the
council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk for investments outstanding at 31st March 2021
(excluding Group equities), based on experience of default assessed by the ratings agencies and adjusted
to reflect current market conditions.

Adjustment
for market Estimated
Amount at Historical conditions at maximum
31 March experience 31 March exposure to
2021 of default 2021 Default
£000 % % £000
(a) (b) (c) (a*c)
Investments with banks and other financial
institutions
A+ rated counterparties 6,940 0.06 1.22 10
Unrated pooled funds/MMF’s 6,189 - - -
13,129 10

The historical experience of default has been taken from average one year default rates published by the
three main rating agencies at May 2021, relating to 2020 figures. Whilst current economic conditions have
raised the overall possibility of default, the council maintains strict credit criteria for investment
counterparties.

Due to the estimated maximum exposure to default amount being immaterial, no loss provision for 12 month
expected credit losses under IFRS 9 has been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

The council does not generally allow credit for its trade debtors as payment is due immediately. This means
that all of the £2,175,583 trade debtor balance is technically past its due date for payment. The past due
amount can be analysed by age as follows:

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Less than 3 months 1,961 917
3 to 6 months 136 64
6 months to 1 year 68 9
Over 1 year 11 82
2,176 1,072

68




STATEMENT Page 1234Ts 2020/21

A loss provision of £267,900 at 315 March 2021 (£279,400 31°March 2020) has been provided to cover the
expected lifetime credit losses on these debts under IFRS 9.

Liguidity risk

The council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to cover any day to day cash flow
needs, and the Public Works Loan Board and money markets for access to longer term funds, ensuring
there is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial
instruments. Instead, the risk is that the council could be required to replenish a significant portion of its
borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. This risk is reduced by working towards a rolling
programme to ensure the maturity of loans is spread over a period of time.

The maturity analysis of borrowings (excluding interest payable) is as follows:

315t March 315t March

2021 2020

£000 £000
Less than 1 year 1,424 695
2-5 years 9,425 9,998
6-10 years 19,548 5,326
Uncertain date maturing in more than 10 years* 83,438 99,274
Total 113,835 115,293

*The council has £7 million (E7 million at 31t March 2020) of ‘Lender’s option, Borrower’s option’ (LOBO) loans where
the lenders have the option to propose an increase in the rates payable; if this occurs the council will have the option
to accept the new rate or repay the loans without penalty. Due to current low interest rates, in the unlikely event the
lenders exercise their options; the council is likely to repay the loan(s). The repayment dates of these loans are
therefore uncertain, although they are due to mature in 47 years.

Market risk

The council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and
investments. By way of illustration, if interest rates were 1% higher in 2020/21, this would have had the
following effect on the interest charged or credited to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Amount Average Actual Projected Projected Variation
outstanding actual Interest interest interest
(weighted interest payable / rate payable /
average) in rate (receivable) (receivable)
year %
£000 % £000 £000 £000
Borrowing
Variable rate 37,008 0.73 270 1.73 640 370
Lending
Fixed rate (up tol year) 21,151 2.02 427 3.02 639 (212)
Variable rate
Net loss / (gain) on
surplus / deficit for year 158

Due to the large proportion of borrowing held at fixed rates the impact on interest payable is limited.
Conversely, the proportion of lending at variable rates and fixed rate allows the council to benefit from any

69




STATEMENT Page 1244Ts 2020/21

increase in interest rates in the future. A large proportion of fixed rates is short term so any rate increases
will benefit future investment returns.

Changes in interest rates will also affect the fair values of financial liabilities and financial assets classed as
Loans and Receivables, however because these are carried at amortised cost rather than fair value, do not
impact on the surplus or deficit on the provision of services or reserves. A rise in interest rates for example
will reduce the fair value of borrowings and long term investments.

The council has a number of strategies for managing interest risk. During periods of falling interest rates,
and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure
to losses.

The authority is also exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to market prices. With the exception of ‘pooled’
funds, nominal gains and losses on borrowings and investments do not impact on the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement or the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The council’s investment in a pooled property fund is subject to the risk of falling commercial property prices.

For example a 5% fall would result in a £142k charge to Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure,
although it would not affect the surplus or deficit on the provision of services unless the fund units were

70




STATEMENT Page 125¢Ts 2020121

sold. The risk is limited by the council setting a maximum exposure to financial assets invested in property
of £3 million and its intention to hold the units in the fund for a minimum period of 5 years.

The risk of rental income affecting future revenue from the fund would occur if commercial properties were
to become vacant for long periods of time and would reduce the returns due to be received.

27. SHORT TERM DEBTORS

31st March 2021

31st March 2020

£000 £000

Central Government Bodies 18,350 7,999
Other Local Authorities 6,335 1,745
Other entities and individuals-

- Council Taxpayers 515 416

- Business Ratepayers 718 245

- Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited 488 530

- Ubico Limited 1,869 1,444

- Housing Rents 432 423

- Sundry Debtors 3,409 2,961
Total 32,116 15,763

Each line is shown net of any allowance for impairments (provision for bad debts).

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31st March 2021

31st March 2020

£000 £000
Cash held by the Authority 2 6
Bank current accounts 5 2,168
Short term deposits and money market funds 6,940 18,995
Cash and cash equivalent assets 6,947 21,169
Cash and cash equivalent liabilities - bank overdraft (746) -
Net Cash and cash equivalents per Cash flow Statement 6,201 21,169

29. SHORT TERM CREDITORS

71




STATEMENT Page 1264Ts 2020/21

31st March 2021 | 31st March 2020
£000 £000

Central Government Bodies 26,693 3,783
Other Local Authorities 699 1,051
Public corporations and trading funds - 20
Other entities and individuals-

- Council Taxpayers 139 123

- Business Ratepayers 2,004 1,833

- Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited 934 1,137

- Ubico Limited - 46

- Housing Rents 520 442

- Sundry Creditors 4,570 7,336
Total 35,559 15,771

There is a significant increase in the Central Government Bodies creditor balance at 31 March 2021 as the business
grant income received to be passed onto local businesses through the various Government funding schemes has
been included here as well as NNDR relief funding. Although grant income was received in March 2020, the main
schemes were not launched until 2020/21. Business grant income which is not distributed by the Council is required
to be repaid to Central Government so is recognised as a creditor at the year end.

30. PROVISIONS

Balance at Additional Amounts Balance at
1st April provisions used/reallocated | 31st March
made in Year
in Year
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Short term
Insurance 6 - - 6
Business rates retention — RV reductions 480 815 (480) 815
486 815 (480) 821
Long term
Business rates retention — RV reductions 1,000 - (375) 625
Total 2020/21 1,486 815 (855) 1,446
Total 2019/20 1,634 567 (715) 1,486

Insurance

The Insurance Provision was established to fund the cost of insurance policy excesses arising from claims
against the council by third parties. The provision represents the value of an assessment of the council’s
liability in respect of the current insurance claims outstanding with the council’s insurers. Transfers between
the Insurance Provision and the Insurance Reserve are made in order to provide adequate funding for the
outstanding claims liability notified by the insurance company.

The insurance reserve is used to fund losses for which the council does not carry insurance cover,
fluctuations in insurance premiums and corporate risk management strategy implementation.

Business Rates Retention — RV reductions including Appeals

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced a business rates retention scheme that enables local
authorities to retain a proportion of the business rates generated in their area. The new arrangements for
the retention of business rates came into effect on 1st April 2013.

72




STATEMENT Page 1274Ts 2020/21

From this date local authorities acquired a share of the liability for refunding ratepayers who have
successfully appealed against the rateable value of their properties and other reductions resulting from
changes in the rating list. This includes amounts paid over to central government in respect of 2012/13 and
prior years. Consequently the council considers it necessary to make a provision to cover its share of the
repayments likely to be made. The provision is based on the expected success rate of appeals recorded
by the Valuation Office at 31st March 2021 relating to appeals raised against charges up to 3152017 and,
for charges after this date, on an estimated reduction on the rating list based on historical experience,
together with other known likely reductions. It has been split into short and long term elements to reflect the
estimated time until settlement.

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Municipal Mutual Insurance Limited

The council’s former insurers, Municipal Mutual Insurance Limited, ceased trading in 1992; the council
became a party to the scheme of administration for liabilities outstanding at that time. Whilst there is a very
low risk that the assets of the company will not meet the liabilities from insurance claims, the scheme
guarantees that the council will reimburse the total of payments made in respect of claims less £50,000. At
31st March 2021 this potential total liability equated to £318,014, made up as follows:

£
Gross claim payments to date 474,019
15% levy paid 2013/14 (63,603)
10% levy paid 2016/17 (42,402)
Net Payments 368,014
Levy retention (50,000)
Potential liability 315t March 2021 318,014

This position has not changed since 2016/17, but is kept under review annually to ensure that a solvent
run-off of the company’s business is still anticipated. The likelihood and timing of any additional liabilities
is unknown at this stage.

32. USABLE RESERVES AND TRANSFERS TO / FROM EARMARKED RESERVES

Movements in the authority’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Movements in the earmarked reserves shown on the statement are detailed below:

Balance at |Transfers out|Transfersin| Balance at | Transfers out| Transfers in Balance at
1 April 2019 2019/20 2019/20 |31 March 2020 2020/21 2020/21 | 31 March 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Earmarked Reserves
Capital Reserve 333 (402) 200 131 (188) 200 143
Equalisation Reserves 2,164 (816) 62 1,410 (216) 14,440 15,634
Repairs & Renewals Reserve 1,263 (276) 292 1,279 (203) 387 1,463
Reserves for Commitments 624 (594) 162 192 (192) 609 609
Other earmarked reserves 1,907 (575) 152 1,484 (348) 361 1,497
Total 6,291 (2,663) 868 4,496 (1,147) 15,997 19,346

Purpose of reserves

e Capital Reserve — to help finance the general fund capital programme.

73




STATEMENT Page 1284ts 2020121

Equalisation Reserves — to smooth out fluctuations in expenditure or income resulting from cyclical
events, for example bi-annual local elections, and to cushion the impact of fluctuating activity levels
(for example in housing benefit payments or business rates).

The significant increase in Equalisation Reserves in 2020/21 results from additional Section 31 NDR
compensation grant received from the government during the year being transferred to the Business
Rates Retention Reserve. This money is required to help meet the increased NDR deficit for
2020/21 resulting from the additional business rate retail reliefs awarded during the year due to
Covid-19. The increased deficit is chargeable to the General Fund in 2021/22.

Repairs and Renewals Reserve — to meet the cost of planned and reactive repairs to buildings and
infrastructure.

Reserves for Commitments — to cover the cost of budget commitments where spending did not
take place in the year approved, but is planned to take place in the following year.

Other earmarked reserves — sums built up to cover future planned expenditure, for example
support for the revenue budget, risk management, and Public Realm improvements.

74




STATEMENT Page 1294Ts 2020/21

33. UNUSABLE RESERVES

The council keeps a number of reserves which do not represent usable resources for the council as they are

required to be held for statutory reasons, or to comply with proper accounting practice.

Reserve 31st March 31st March
2021 2020 Purpose of Reserve
£000 £°000
Revaluation Reserve 178,046 161,284 | Store of gains on revaluation of non-current
assets not yet realised through sales
Financial Instruments Store of gains and losses arising from
Revaluation Reserve (508) 1,099 | changes in the value of financial
instruments (excluding on pooled funds
from 1st April 2018) carried at fair value
through other comprehensive income and
not yet realised through sales
Pooled Investment Funds Store of gains and losses arising from
Adjustment Account (644) (1,050) | changes in the fair value of pooled
investment funds since 1st April 2018
Capital Adjustment Account 195,616 185,891 | Store of capital resources set aside to meet
past expenditure
Financial Instruments Balancing account to allow for differences
Adjustment Account (1,455) (1,601) | in statutory requirements and proper
accounting practices relating to borrowing
and investments
Collection Fund Adjustment Balancing account to allow for differences
Account (15,044) (647) | in statutory requirements and proper
accounting practices for council tax and
NNDR (business rates) surpluses/deficits
Pensions Reserve (58,991) (51,307) | Balancing account to allow inclusion of
Pension Liability in the Balance Sheet.
Deferred Capital Receipts Capital receipts to be received in future
Reserve 3,479 3,926 | years e.g. from finance lease or mortgage
repayments
Accumulating Compensated Balancing account to allow for differences
Absences Adjustment Account (322) (122) | in statutory requirements and proper
accounting practices for staff leave and
additional hours not taken at the year end
Total Unusable Reserves 300,177 297,473

75




sTATEMENT Page 1304Ts 2020/21

Revaluation Reserve

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

Balance at 1st April 161,284 161,755
Revaluation gains on non-current assets 25,671 6,659
Downward revaluation of assets and impairments (5,395) (3,730)
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not

posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 181,560 164,684
Difference between fair value and historic cost depreciation (3,514) (3,400)
Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (3,514) (3,400)
Balance at 31st March 178,046 161,284

The Revaluation Reserve contains gains arising from increases in the value of Property, Plant and
Equipment, Heritage Assets and Assets Held for Sale arising since 1%t April 2007. Accumulated gains
arising before that date are consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. The balance is reduced
when assets with accumulated gains are re-valued downwards or impaired, depreciated or disposed of.
The balance on the reserve therefore represents the amount by which the current values of non-current
assets carried on the Balance Sheet are greater because they are carried at re-valued amounts rather than
at depreciated historical cost.

Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve

This reserve (formerly the Available-for-Sale Financial Investments Reserve) contains gains arising from
increases in the value of investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or
determinable payments, with the exception of gains and losses on pooled investment funds since 1 April
2018, which are contained in a separate reserve (see below). The balance is reduced when investments
with accumulated gains are revalued downwards and the gains are lost, or when the investments are
disposed of and the gains realised.

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Balance at 15 April 1,099 1,099
Revaluation of investments not charged to the
surplus or deficit on the provision of services:
Downward revaluations (1,607) -
Balance at 315 March (508) 1,099

76




sTATEMENT Page 131yTs 2020121

Pooled Investment Funds Adjustment Account

This reserve contains gains and losses on pooled funds arising from changes in their fair value from 15 April
2018. Such changes are initially charged to the surplus or deficit in the provision of services but reversed

out to this reserve by a statutory override in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Capital Adjustment Account

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Balance at 15t April 185,891 191,494
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
e Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (10,328) (9,954)
e Revaluation gains/(losses) on Property, Plant and Equipment 2,225 (2,100)
e Amortisation of intangible assets (115) (139)
o Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (737) (415)
e Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (1,449) (2,712)
175,487 176,174
Capital receipts received on repayment of long term loans (265) (399)
Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 3,514 3,400
Net amount written out for the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year 178,736 179,175
Capital Financing applied in the year:
o Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 2,578 3,405
o Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 5,126 4,936
e Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing and
application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants Unapplied
Account 3,426 1,289
e Statutory and voluntary provision for the financing of capital investment charged
against the General Fund Balance 407 1,836
e Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against
usable capital receipts 262 396
e Capital expenditure charged against the general fund and HRA balances 7,077 3,370
197,612 194,407
Movements in the market value of Investment properties (charged) or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (1,996) (8,516)
Balance at 31st March 195,616 185,891

The Capital Adjustment Account accumulates the resources that have been set aside to finance capital
expenditure, which are then reduced by the write-down of the historical cost of non-current assets as they
are consumed by depreciation and impairments, or written off on disposal.

The balance thus represents the timing differences between the historical cost of non-current assets that
have been consumed, and the cost financed in accordance with statutory requirements.

The Account also contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment properties that have yet to be
consumed by the council and revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1st

77




STATEMENT Page 132yTs 2020/21

April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Balance at 1st April (1,601) (1,747)
Net Premiums incurred in previous years charged
against the General Fund and HRA Balance 146 146
Balance at 31st March (1,455) (1,601)

This account absorbs the timing differences between the accounting treatment of income and expenses
relating to certain financial instruments, and their statutory provisions.

Where premiums and discounts arising on the early repayment of loans are required to be charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund
Balance to be spread over a number of years. The council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over
the period that was remaining on the loan when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts required to be
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge made against the
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
in the Movements in Reserves Statement.

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

This account reflects the difference between the rate at which collection fund surpluses or deficits are
released to the council’s General Fund Balance according to proper accounting practice, and the rate at
which they are released according to statute. Proper accounting practice requires the surpluses or deficits
generated in the year to be included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year,
whereas statute does not allow these to be released to the general fund balance until the following year.
The balance on this account therefore represents the surplus available to be released to the general fund
balance in the future.

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

Balance at 1st April (647) (419)
Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement is different from that calculated for the year in

accordance with statutory requirements (14,397) (228)
Balance at 31st March (15,044) (647)

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting
for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provision. The council
accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the
benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect
inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on the resources set aside to meet the costs.

78




STATEMENT Page 1334Ts 2020/21

However statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed when the council makes employer’s
contributions, or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the
Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current
employees and the resources the council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will
ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

Balance at 1st April (51,307) (61,920)
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability (9,002) 10,251
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits charged or credited

to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (3,535) (4,615)
Employer’s pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners

payable in the year 4,853 4,977
Balance at 315t March (58,991) (51,307)

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

This comprises capital receipts receivable in future years, for example from finance leases and mortgage
repayments, which are not usable until they are received. The amount at 31 March 2021 includes £3.476
million (£3.921 million at 31 March 2020) for vehicles and plant leased to Ubico Limited under finance

leases.

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Balance at 1st April 3,926 2,952
Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 380 1,605
Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash (827) (631)
Balance at 315 March 3,479 3,926

79




STATEMENT Page 1344Ts 2020121

34. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME

Participation in the pension scheme

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and members, the council makes
contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be
payable until employees retire, the council has a commitment to make the payments that needs to be
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.

Cheltenham Borough Council is a member of the Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund, for which
Gloucestershire County Council is the administering authority. It is contracted out of the State Second
Pension. The scheme is a defined benefit statutory scheme that is administered in accordance with the
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 (as amended).This means that the council and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions’ liabilities
with investment assets.

The principal risks to the authority of the pension scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes
to the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes
to inflation, bond yields and the performance of equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated
to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund and Housing Revenue
Account the amounts required by statute.

Transactions relating to post-employment benefits

The council recognises the costs of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the
council is required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of
retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS).
The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(CIES) and the General Fund Balance via the MIRS during the year:

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES):
Service cost comprising:

Current service cost (2,443) (3,120)

Past service cost - (154)
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:

Net Interest Expense (1,092) (1,446)
Total post-employment benefits charged to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services (3,535) (4,615)
Other post-employment benefits charged to the CIES:

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:

Prior year adjustment re McCloud judgement (458)
Return on assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest expense) 22,314 (9,022)
Changes in demographic assumptions (1,893) 5,245
Changes in financial assumptions (30,951) 11,355
Other experience (1,528) 3,131
Total post-employment benefit charged to CIES (15,593) 5,636
Movement in Reserves Statement:

Reversal of net charges made to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services for post- (3,535) (4,615)
employment benefits in accordance with the Code

Actual amount charged against General Fund Balance for pensions in the year

Employer’s pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners 4,853 4,977

80




STATEMENT Page 1354Ts 2020121

Up-front Payment of Secondary Pension Contributions

On 1 April 2020, the Council made an up-front payment of £8.675m for secondary employer pension
contributions for the three years 2020/21 to 2022/23. This payment covers the discounted cost of the future
employer contribution which will be required for these three periods.

The actuary calculated the Equivalent Discounted annual Lump Sums Certified across the three years as
follows:

o £3.375 million relating to 2020/21;

e £2.882 million relating to 2021/22; and

e £2.418 million relating to 2022/23.

The savings generated by the payment in advance were judged to be greater value than could have been
achieved by investing the balance as part of the Council’s treasury management strategy and represented
good value for money.

2018/19 and 2019/20 Up-Front Payment of Pension Scheme Deficit Contributions

In 2017/18 the Council made an up-front payment of the LGPS deficit contributions for the two years
2018/19 and 2019/20 totalling £7.084 million. The up-front payment took advantage of the independent
actuary’s calculation of the return these contributions could achieve once invested by the Pension Fund.

The discount calculated by the actuary for making the up-front payment rather than the normal method of
monthly payments in arrears over the two year period was £0.389 million, reducing total payments from
£7.473 million to £7.084 million.

The return was judged to be far greater than could have been achieved by investing the amounts as part of
the council’s treasury management strategy, so the decision represented good value for money for the
council.

The actual payment made in 2017/18 was £7.084 million, and the actuary calculated the Equivalent
Discounted annual Lump Sums Certified across the 2 years as follows:

o £3.422 million relating to 2018/19, and

e £3.662 million relating to 2019/20.

The Pension Liability at 31st March 2018 was reduced by the £7.084 million payment, and the full amount
was reflected in the actuarial valuation as at 31st March 2020. The £3.662 million relating to 2019/20 was
charged to the General Fund in 2019/20, with the amounts credited to the Pension Reserve and charged
to the General Fund via the Movement In Reserves Statement.

Pension Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the council’s obligation in respect of its defined
benefit plan is as follows:

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Present value of the defined benefit obligation TBC (140,859)
Fair value of plan assets TBC 89,552

81




STATEMENT Page 1364Ts 2020/21

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

(51,307)

Reconciliation of the present value of the scheme liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)

Funded Liabilities Local
Government Pension Scheme

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

Opening Balance at 1st April (140,859) (158,253)
Current service cost thc (3,015)
Past service cost (including curtailments) - (612)
Interest cost (3,208) (3,792)
Contributions from scheme participants (467) (451)
Remeasurement gain/(loss):

Arising from changes in demographic assumptions (1,893) 5,245
Arising from changes in financial assumptions (30,951) 11,355
Other experience 1,528 3,131
Benefits paid 5,224 5,435
Unfunded benefits paid 100 98
Closing balance at 31st March (173,074) (140,859)
Present value of Funded liabilities TBC (139,499)
Present value of Unfunded liabilities TBC (1,360)
Closing balance 31st March (173,074) (140,859)

T

he Local Government Pension scheme assets at 31 March 2021 comprised:
Fair Value of Scheme Assets
Fair Value of Scheme Assets Re-stated
_ 2020/21 2019/20
Quoted Quoted Quoted Quoted
pricesin  prices not prices in prices not
active in active active in active
Asset Category markets markets Total markets markets Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Debt Securities:
Corporate Bonds - investment grade 13,4435 13,4435 9,937.9 9,937.9
Corporate Bonds - non investment
grade 296.8 296.8 213.9 2139
UK Government 1,524.8 1,524.8 1,640.1 1,640.1
Other 457.1 457.1 247.2 247.2
Private equity:
All 608.5 608.5 295.0 295.0
Real Estate:
UK Property 5,769.7 1,774.5 7,544.2 4,961.6 1,586.2 6,547.8
Overseas property
557.8 557.8 460.9 460.9

82




STATEMENT Page 1374Ts 2020/21

Investment Funds and Unit

Trusts:

Equities 79,075.0 79,075.0 56,810 56,810
Bonds 8,674.8 296.0 8,970.8 7,066.6 7,066.6
Infrastructure 606.1 606.1

Other 2,739.8 2,739.8 4,987 4,987
Derivatives:

Foreign Exchange 29.3 29.3 19.2 19.2
Other 8.5 8.5 9.2 9.2
Cash & Cash equivalents:

All 3,310.8 3,310.8 1,032.7 1,032.7
Totals 33,515 85,653 119,173 25,128 64,319 89,447

The Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories by proportion
of the total assets held:

2020/21 2019/20
% %
Equity investments 78 78
Bonds 13 13
Property 6 8
Cash 3 1
Total 100 100

Reconciliation of movements in the fair value of the scheme (Plan) assets

Funded Assets Local
Government Pension
Scheme
2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 1st April 89,552 99,995
Interest income 2,116 2,346
Remeasurement gain/(loss):
Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net
interest expense) 22,314 (9,022)
Contributions from employees into the scheme 467 451
Contributions from employer 10,053 1,217
Contributions from employer in respect of unfunded benefits 100 98
Unfunded benefits paid (100) (98)
Benefits paid (5,224) (5,435)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 31st March 119,278 89,552

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the
pensions that will be payable in future years dependent upon assumptions about mortality rates, salary

83




STATEMENT Page 1384Ts 2020121

levels, etc.

The Gloucestershire County Council pension fund liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson
LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the fund being based on the latest full valuation of the
scheme as at 1st April 2019. The significant assumptions made in their calculations have been:

Local Government
Pension Scheme
2020/21 2019/20
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners
Men 21.9 years 21.7 years
Women 24.3 years 23.9 years
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners *
Men 22.9 years 22.4 years
Women 26.0 years 25.3 years
Rate of pension increase / inflation (CPI) 2.85% 1.9%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.15% 2.2%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.00% 2.3%

* Future pensioners’ numbers assume members aged 45 as at the last formal valuation date.

Commutation

An allowance is included for future retirements to elect to take 35% of the maximum additional tax-free cash
up to HMRC limits for pre-April 2008 service and 68% of the maximum tax—free cash for post-April 2008
service.

Prior Year Re-statement and Impact of McCloud judgement
The impact of this judgement is included in the 2019/20 re-stated figures, so is included in the liability at 31
March 2020.

Sensitivity analysis

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the
tables above. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the assumptions occurring at the 31 March 2021 and assumes for each change that the assumption
analysed changes whilst all other assumptions remain constant. The methods and types of assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change from those used in the previous financial year.

A . Approximate
. . pprommate o
Change in assumptions at year ended 31 March 2021 % increase to Employer
Employer £000
0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 9% 14,869
0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 1% 1,190
0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 8% 13,390

The above figures have been derived based on the membership profile of the scheme as at the most recent
actuarial valuation, being 31st March 2021.

Impact on the Council’s Cash Flows
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employer’s contributions at as constant a rate as possible.
Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis, with the most recent triennial valuation on 31% March

84




STATEMENT Page 139Ts 2020121

2019.

85




sTATEMENT Page 1404Ts 2020121

35. CASH FLOW STATEMENT — OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2020/21 | 2019/20
£000 £'000
Interest received (681) (762)
Interest paid 3,821 3,986

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash or additional

cash movements:

2020/21 | 2019/20
£000 £000
Depreciation (10,318) (9,954)
Impairment and downward valuations 2,216 (2,100)
Amortisation 117) (139)
Increase (-) / decrease in creditors (20,991) (6,350)
Increase / decrease (-) in debtors (3,928) 7,598
Increase / decrease (-) in inventories (22) 74
Movement in pension liability 6,618 (3,300)
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold or derecognised (1,450) (2,712)
Other non cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit
on the provision of senices (1,550) (9,239)
(29,542) (26,122)

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items that are investing

and financing activities:

2020/21 2019/20
£'000 £000
|Proceeds from the sale of PPE, investment property and intangible assets 2,446 3,462
36. CASH FLOW STATEMENT — INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2020/21 | 2019/20
£'000 £000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets 18,719 58,320
Purchase of Investments 28,500 11,275
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets (2,893) (2,488)
Proceeds from the sale of short and long term investments (35,059) (13,023)
Other receipts from investing activites (265) (399)
Net cash (inflows) / outflows from investing activites 9,002 53,685
37. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
2020/21 | 2019/20
£000 £000
Cash receipts of short and long term borrowing (227,000)| (265,001)
Other receipts/payments for financing activities 24,053 513
Repayments of short and long term borrowing 238,230 200,644
Net cash flows from financing activites 35,283 (63,844)

86




STATEMENT Page 141yTs 2020/21

THE COLLECTION FUND - INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation of billing authorities (such
as Cheltenham) to maintain a separate fund to record the collection and distribution of non-domestic rates

and council tax.

2019/20 Note 2020/21
£'000 £'000
INCOME
75,724  Council Tax @) 78,488
56,869 Non-Domestic Rates (iii) 22,178
Contribution towards previous year's deficit
174  Non-domestic rates 1,231
132,767 Total Income 101,897
EXPENDITURE
75,052 Precepts & Demands from major preceptors and the Authority - Council Tax (ii) 78,673
Non-Domestic Rates (iii)
27,492  Shares paid to county council and the billing authority 28,183
27,492 Payment of central share to government 28,183
560 Transitional protection payments 125
167 Charge payable to General Fund for Costs of Collection 166
Impairment of debts for Council Tax
192  Allowance for Impairment 69
Impairment of debts/appeals for non-domestic rates
1,862 Allowance for Impairment 2,697
Contribution towards previous year's surplus
882  Council Tax 593
133,699 Total Expenditure 138,689
(932)  Surplus/ (Deficit) for the Year (36,792)
(146) Balance of fund at 1st April (1,078)
(1,078) Balance of fund at 31st March (iv) (37,870)

87




STATEMENT Page 142yTs 2020/21

NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND

(i). COUNCIL TAX

Council Tax is a property based tax with various reductions being made for differing circumstances e.qg.
single occupancy (25% discount). The Valuation Office has valued all domestic property in the area as at
1st April 1991 prices and has placed them into one of eight bands. A factor is then applied to each band
of that the tax base can be expressed as a “Band D” equivalent (see below). A Band D council tax for the
council and each preceptor is then calculated by dividing their requirements (their demands and
precepts). by the Tax Base. Council taxes for other bands are then calculated by multiplying the Band D
tax by the relevant proportion shown below.

Estimated Number
of Properties in Band “D”
Band each Band (adjusted Ratio Equivalents
for discounts)

A Disabled 5.0 5/9 2.8

A 8,092.5 6/9 5,395.0

B 11,527.5 7/9 8,965.8

C 12,563.7 8/9 11,167.8

D 8,481.8 1 8,481.8

E 4,727.8 11/9 5,778.4

F 2,490.5 13/9 3,597.4

G 1,920.8 15/9 3,201.3

H 96.2 2 192.5

49,905.8 46,782.8

Less Council Tax support (Band D equivalents) (3,202.5)
Less adjustment for collection rates and for anticipated (435.8)

changes during the year for successful appeals against
valuation bandings, demolitions, disabled persons’ relief,
and exemptions, plus adjustments for new properties and
2"d homes (this amounts to 1% of the tax base)

Council Tax Base for 2020/21 43,144.5

(ii). PRECEPTS & DEMANDS

2020/21 2019/20
£°000 £°000

Gloucestershire County Council 58,043 55,174
Cheltenham Borough Council 9,236 8,917
Gloucestershire Police & Crime Commissioner 11,099 10,683
Charlton Kings Parish Council 122 108
Leckhampton with Warden Hill Parish Council 64 64
Prestbury Parish Council 71 68
Swindon Parish Council 12 12
Up Hatherley Parish Council 26 26

78,673 75,052

In practice the council precepts for its own requirements and for the parishes. The parishes’ requirements
are in turn paid out of the council’s General Fund.

88




STATEMENT Page 1434Ts 2020/21

(iii). NON-DOMESTIC RATES

The council collects non-domestic rates for its area based on business rateable values (as assessed by the
Valuation Office) multiplied by a uniform rate set by the government. Certain reliefs are available and the
figure shown is net of these reliefs. In 2020/21 the government gave additional one-off reliefs to retail
businesses to support them during the Covid-19 pandemic; these amounted to £33.74 million in
Cheltenham, largely contributing to the reduction in non-domestic rates income and the increased deficit in
the year. The council’s share of the increased deficit resulting from these reliefs, to be charged to general
fund in 2021/22, is being fully compensated by government grant receivable in 2020/21.

From 1%t April 2013 the Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced a business rates retention scheme
that enables local authorities’ general funds to retain a proportion of the business rates generated in their
area, subject to their general funds paying a ‘Tariff’ payment to the government if the amount exceeds a
‘baseline funding’ level or receiving of a ‘Top-up’ if it is below the funding level.

Normally district councils such as Cheltenham receive 40%, county councils 10% and central government
50% of business rates collectable, with write offs, provision for impairment of debts and any surplus or
deficit generated being shared in the same proportions. If growth exceeds a certain threshold then the
council’s general fund must pay a ‘levy’ to central government on the extra growth, or if the rates collectable
fall below a certain amount the council receives a ‘safety net’ payment from the government.

The council is, however, a member of the Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool, in which any levy payment
or safety receipt is ‘pooled’ across several authorities. This enables each pool member to benefit from a
lower levy rate payable should the growth in its business rates exceed its levy threshold, whilst receiving
from the pool a safety net payment should its rates fall below its safety net threshold, contributed by the pool
members.

The total non-domestic rateable value at 315 March 2021 was £134.578 million (£134.807 million at 31°

March 2020) and the national non-domestic multipliers for 2020/21 were 51.2p (50.4p in 2019/20) (standard
rate) and 49.9p (49.10p in 2019/20) (small business rate).

(iv). FUND BALANCE

The fund balance for council tax is shared between the council and its major precepting authorities
(Gloucestershire County Council and the Gloucestershire Police & Crime Commissioner), in proportion to
heir precepts. The fund balance for non-domestic rates is shared between the council, Gloucestershire
County Council and central government, in the statutory proportions.

The respective authorities’ share of the balance is as follows:

Borough County Police share Central Total
Council Council Government
share share share
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Council Tax
Balance at 15t April 2020 58 347 68 - 473
Increase/decrease (-) in the year (103) (623) (121) - (847)
Balance at 315t March 2021 (45) (276) (53) - (374)
Business Rates
Balance at 15t April 2020 (705) (494) - (352) (1,551)
Increase/decrease (-) in the year (14,293) (3,256) - (18,396) (35,945)
Balance at 315 March 2021 (14,998) (3,750) - (18,748) (37,496)
Fund Balance at 315t March 2021 (15,043) (4,026) (53) (18,748) (37,870)

89




STATEMENT Page 144yTs 2020/21

GROUP ACCOUNTS
The Group Accounts bring together the council's accounts with its share of those of:

e Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited (CBH), a company limited by guarantee, in which the council
is the sole member, and

¢ Gloucestershire Airport Limited, in which the council has a 50% shareholding (the remaining 50% of
shares are owned by Gloucester City Council).

The purpose of the Group Accounts is to show the full value of the council's investments in companies within
the financial statements, since the council's shareholdings may not fully reflect its actual share of the
companies’ assets and liabilities.

Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited has been categorised as a subsidiary company of Cheltenham
Borough Council and its interests have been consolidated in accordance with IAS 27 and IFRS10, which
require income and expenditure, assets and liabilities to be consolidated with the council’s accounts on a
line-by-line basis, eliminating inter-organisational transactions and balances. The operating income and
expenditure of the company has been included within the local authority housing line in the Group
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, before the net cost of services.

Gloucestershire Airport Limited has been categorised as a Joint Venture as any decisions regarding its
operating and financial policies require the consent of another party in addition to the council (the company
is ‘jointly controlled’). The company’s assets and liabilities have therefore been consolidated with the
council’s in accordance with IAS 28 and IFRS11, which require the Equity Method to be used. Under this
method, the council’'s share of the operating results of the company before tax is reported as a separate
line, after the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services, within the Group Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. Any taxation payable is also disclosed as a separate line.

In the Group Balance Sheet the council’s share of the joint venture’s net assets are included as a long-term
investment, matched by the council’s share of the company’s reserves, eliminating the share capital. There
is no requirement to adjust for transactions incurred and balances held between the council and any joint
venture companies.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

These are set out in note 1.30 on page 35.

90




STATEMENT Page 145yTs 2020/21

GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the cost in the year of providing group services, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; and this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation
position is shown in the Group Movement in Reserves Statement.

2019/20 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
expenditur i expenditur expenditur i expenditur
e income e e income e
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Continuing Operations
2,047 (432) 1,615 Chief Executive 1,703 (29) 1,674
8,775 (1,107) 7,668 Finance and Assets Directorate 7,441 (979) 6,462
27,849 (23,211) 4,638 People and Change Directorate 28,131 (23,499) 4,632
22,051 (13,947) 8,104 Place and Growth Directorate 19,811 (10,650) 9,161
21,028 (20,772) 256 Local Authority housing 18,203 (21,542) (3,339)
81,750 (59,469) 22,281 Cost of Services 75,289 (56,699) 18,590
719 (750) (31) Other operating expenditure 701 (996) (295)
15,786 (5,130) 10,656 Financing and Investment (income) and expenditure 7,558 (4,395) 3,163
19,629 (35,315) (15,686) Taxation and non-specific grant (income) and expenditure 34,460 (57,218) (22,758)
(100,664 (119,308
117,884 ) 17,220 (Surplus) or Deficit on the provision of services 118,008 ) (1,300)
(568) Share of (Surplus) or deficit of Joint Ventures (195)
257 Share of Tax expenses of Joint Ventures 23
16,909 Group (Surplus) or Deficit (1,472)
Items that will not be reclassified to the (Surplus) or Deficit on
the provision of services
(2,930) (Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of non-current assets (note 33) (20,276)
(15,338) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability /(asset) 14,620
Share of other comprehensive income and expenditure of Joint
(136) Ventures (643)
(18,404) Other Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure (6,299)
(1,495) Total Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure (7,771)

91




STATEMENT Page 1464Ts 2020/21

GROUP BALANCE SHEET

This statement shows the value as at the balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
group. The net assets of the group (assets less liabilities) are matched by reserves held. Reserves are
reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves i.e. those reserves that the
group may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any
statutory limitations on their use. The second category of reserves comprises those that the group is not
able to use to provide services. This category includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for
example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the
assets are sold, and reserves that hold timing differences.

92




STATEMENT Page 147yT1s 2020/21

31 March 2020
£'000
414,601 Property, Plant & Equipment
40,748 Heritage Assets
68,068 Investment Property
1,372 Intangible Assets
6,386 Long Term Investments
12,707 Investments in Joint Ventures
4,434 Long Term Debtors
548,316 Long Term Assets

7,110 Short term Investments
60 Assets held for sale
174 Inventories
15,660 Shortterm Debtors
21,420 Cash and cash equivalents
44,424 Current assets

- Bank overdraft
(70,095) Shortterm borrowing
(18,791) Shortterm creditors
(2,287) Grants receipts in advance - capital
- Grants receipts in advance - revenue
(486) Provisions
(91,659) Current Liabilities

(1,000) Provisions
(115,293) Long term borrowing
(225) Grants receipts in advance - capital
(275) Grants receipts in advance - revenue
(58,756) Other long term liabilities
(175,549) Long term liabilities

325,532 Net Assets

(22,274) Usable Reserves
(303,258) Unusable Reserves
(325,532) Total Reserves

Note

44
20
22
24
46
39
46

26
25

41
42

42
26
43
16
16
30

30
26
16
16
45

48
49

31 March 2021
£'000

444,075

41,841

66,438

1,165

7,239

13,310

4,070

578,138

64

48

152
31,635
7,530
39,429

(746)
(60,292)
(35,723)

(2,726)
(1,332)
(821)

(101,640)

(625)
(113,835)
(87)
(295)
(67,782)

(182,624)

333,303

(32,088)

(301,215)
(333,303)

93




STATEMENT (Page 148Ts 2020/21

GROUP STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN RESERVES

This statement shows the movement in the year in the different reserves held by the group, analysed into
‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and unusable
reserves. A breakdown of the Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure line is shown in the Group
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, where the group surplus or deficit line shows the true
economic cost of providing the group’s services.

Balance at 31March 2019

: :

Total comprehensive Income & (Expenditure)

Adjustments between companyreserves (Note 48)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding

basis under regulations (Note 5)

Increase / (decrease) in 2019/20

Balance at 31March 2020

. :

Total comprehensive Income & (Expenditure)

Adjustments between company reserves (Note 48)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding

basis under regulations (Note 5)

Increase / (decrease) in 2020/21

Balance at 31March 2021

Total Authority Authority's share| Total Group |Total Authority Authority's share |Total Group Total
Usable of Usable Usable Unusable of Unusable Unusable Group
Reserves Reserves Reserves Reserves Reserves Reserves Reserves
of subsidiaries of subsidiaries
and Joint and Joint
Ventures Ventures
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
28,712 (1,393) 27,319 292,914 3,804 296,718 324,037
(13,805) (3,104) (16,909) 1,181 5223 18,404 1495
3242 3,242 (3,242) (3,242)
8,622 8,622 (8,622) (8,622)
(5,183) 138 (5,045) 4,559 1,981 6,540 1,495
23,529 (1,255) 22,274 297,473 5,785 303,258 325,532
2221 (749) 1472 9,668 (3,369) 6,299 7,771
1379 1379 (1379) (1379)
6,963 6,963 (6,963) (6,963)
9,184 630 9,814 2,705 (4,748) (2,043) 7,771
32,713 (625) 32,088 300,178 1037 301,215 333,303

94




STATEMENT Page 149i1s 2020/21

GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The cash flow statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the group (excluding those of
the joint venture Gloucestershire Airport Limited) during the reporting period. The statement shows how the
group generates and uses cash by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities.
Cash flows between the council/CBH Limited and the airport are included; cash flows between the council
and CBH Limited are excluded.

2019/20 2020/21
£'000 £'000
15,993 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of senices (1,300)

Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of senices for
(28,971) non-cash movements (note 50) (31,077)

Adjust for items in the net surplus or deficit on the provision

3,462 provision of senices that are investing or financing activities 2,446
(9,516) Cash (inflows) / outflows generated from operating activities (29,931)
54,257 Investing activities (note 51) 10,889

(63,844) Financing activities (note 52) 33,678
(19,103) Net (increase) / decrease in cash and cash equivalents 14,636

2,317 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 21,420
21,420 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (note 42) 6,784
19,103 Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (14,636)

95




STATEMENT [Page 150iTs 2020/21

NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

These notes follow on from those of the council’s single entity accounts above, since many of
these are also applicable to the group accounts. Notes that are unigue to the group accounts are
shown below.

38. Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited

Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited (CBH) is a company limited by guarantee and is governed
by its memorandum and articles of association. The liability in respect of the guarantee is set out
in the memorandum of association and is limited to £1 per member of the company, the sole
member being Cheltenham Borough Council. The company commenced operations on 1st April
2003, with a seven year contract to manage and maintain the council’s social housing stock. The
contract was renewed on 1st April 2010 for a further ten years. This was replaced by a new 30
year contract from 1st April 2015. The registered name of the company is Cheltenham Borough
Homes Limited (Registration No. 04587658).

During 2010/11 the company commenced the construction of new rented housing stock to be
owned and managed by the company. To facilitate this process the company set up a wholly
owned subsidiary during 2009/10, the registered name of which is Cheltenham Borough Homes
Services Limited (CBHS Limited) (Registration No. 07118944). The principal activity of CBHS is
the supply of construction services to CBH.

The audited group accounts for CBH Limited (including CBHS Limited) show net liabilities at 31
March 2021 of £11.875 million (£5.259 million at 315 March 2020) and an after tax deficit of
£0.998 million in the year to 315 March 2021 (£2.188 million in the year to 315 March 2020).

The net liabilities of the company are valued at cost (in accordance with company accounting
rules) and may not therefore reflect their market value. The accounts of the company show a
contingent liability of £38,039 at 315 March 2021 (£38,039 at 31st March 2020).

Since CBH’s accounts show non-current assets at historic cost, the company’s dwellings were
re-valued at 315t March 2020 at Current value to bring them into line with the council’s accounting
policies. The Current value was assessed by internal and external valuers using the existing use
value for social housing (EUV-SH) appropriate to the dwellings’ tenure as affordable homes.
There were no significant operational additions or disposals during the year, however a number
of apartments were purchased for refurbishment and future letting. If CBH charged depreciation
on the Current value of the dwellings, instead of their historic cost, the charge would be around
£90,000 less.

The full accounts of Cheltenham Borough Homes Limited and Cheltenham Borough Homes
Services Limited for the year ending 31t March 2021 can be obtained from the Company
Secretary at the company’s registered office — Cheltenham House, Clarence Street, Cheltenham,
Gloucestershire, GL50 3JR.

39. Gloucestershire Airport Limited

Gloucestershire Airport Limited is a wholly owned local authority airport company which was
voluntarily established during 1992/93 by Cheltenham Borough Council and Gloucester City
Council, using powers available to them under the Airports Act 1986. This replaced the previous
joint committee arrangements. The shares allotted were divided equally between the two councils.
The market value of the shares is unknown as they are not listed, however their current fair value

96




STATEMENT Page 151i7s 2020/21

has been estimated and is included in the council’s single entity accounts under long term
investments: financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The registered name of the airport company is Gloucestershire Airport Limited (Registration No.
02774189). The draft accounts of the company show net assets at 31 March 2021 of £26.619
million (restated £25.200 million at 31 March 2020), and an after tax profit of £0.345 million for

the year to 31t March 2021 (restated £0.410 million to 31%' March 2020).
commitment to meet losses is limited to the shares that it holds.

The council’s

The following table discloses the council’s share of the airport’s results and net assets.

Gloucester- | Council’s | Gloucester- | Council’s

shire Airport share shire Airport share

Limited Limited

2020/21 2020/21 2019/20 2019/20
Restated Restated

£000 £000 £°000 £000
Turnover 3,454 1,727 4,730 2,365
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 391 196 1,136 568
Less tax on profit on ordinary activities 46 23 726 363
Profit for the financial year after taxation 345 173 410 205
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2021 2021 2020 2020
Restated Restated

£000 £000 £°000 £000
Non-current Assets 36,008 18,004 34,751 17,375
Current Assets 1,169 585 820 410
Liabilities due within one year (3,085) (1,543) (2,466) (1,233)
Liabilities due after one year (excluding pensions) (2,003) (1,002) (1,407) (703)
Net Pension Liability * - - (1,326) (663)
Deferred tax liabilities (5,470) (2,735) (5,172) (2,586)

*The company ceased participation in the Local Government Pension Scheme with effect from 1°
April 2020.

The airport did not pay any dividends in the year to 315 March 2021 (nil to 315 March 2020).

During 2011/12 the council loaned £1.190 million to the airport towards the cost of the runway
safety project, of which £0.063 million was outstanding at 31 March 2021. Further loans of
£0.165 million were advanced in 2020/21 towards capital items. In addition the council provided
the company with a temporary overdraft during 2020/21 of £1.050 million, which remained at 31
March 2021.

The Airport’s accounts for the year ended 31%' March 2021 can be obtained from the Managing

Director at the company’s registered office - The Terminal Building, Staverton, Cheltenham,
Gloucestershire, GL51 6SR.

40. Publica Group (Support) Limited

The council has a significant interest in this company, the results for which are not included in the
Group Accounts on the basis of immateriality. During 2020/21 the company generated a surplus
of £Nil (£16,124 in 2019/20) and had net assets at 315 March 2021 of £120,932 (£120,932 at 31t
March 2020), of which the council’s share is £30,233 in both years.

97




STATEMENT [Page 152/1s 2020/21

41. Short term debtors

These are as stated in note 27 to the single entity statements, with the addition of CBH debtors
(excluding those with the council), which are sundry debtors.

42. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31st March 2021

31st March 2020

£000 £000
Cash held by the council and subsidiaries 2 6
Bank current accounts of the council and subsidiaries 588 2,419
Short term deposits and money market funds 6,940 18,995
Cash and cash equivalent assets 7,530 21,420
Cash and cash equivalent liabilities - bank overdraft (746) -
Net Cash and cash equivalents per Cash flow Statement 6,784 21,420

43. Short term Creditors

31st March 2021

31st March 2020

98

£000 £000
Central Government Bodies 26,714 4,297
Other Local Authorities 699 1,153
Public corporations and trading funds - 20
Other entities and individuals-
- Council Taxpayers 139 123
- Business Ratepayers 2,004 1,833
- Ubico Limited - 46
- Housing Rents 526 442
- Sundry Creditors 5,641 8,217
35,723 16,131




STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21

44. Group Property, Plant & Equipment

2019/20 2020/21
Dwellings Other Vehicles, Infra- Community Surplus Assets Total Dwellings Other Vehicles, Infra- Community Surplus Assets Total
Land and Plant and structure assets assets under Land and Plant and structure assets assets under
buildings equipment assets construction buildings equipment assets construction
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation
217,473 137,810 6,692 14,004 148 5,312 1,251 382,690 At 1 April 219,736 142,733 6,753 14,222 148 42,407 3,580 429,579
12,668 97 2,263 218 - 39,600 1,800 56,646 Additions 10,436 169 438 114 - 8 8,738 19,903
Revaluation increases / (decreases)
(8,104) 4,960 - - - 146 - (2,998) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 7,412 (4,257) - - - 576 - 3,731
Revaluation increases / (decreases)
recognised in the surplus / deficit on
(1,153) (74) - - - (2,100) - (3,327) the provision of services - 825 - - - 1,096 - 1.921
(1,107) - (1,605) - - - - (2,712) Derecognition - disposals (1,070) - (380) - - - - ( -U)
- - - - - - - Derecognition - other - - - - - - (8 -
- (60) - - - - - (60) | Assets reclassified to/from held for resale - (48) - - - 60 - (‘D 2
(41) - (597) - (551) 529 (660) Other Reclassifications 1,767 (1,190) - - - - (577) H - |
219,736 142,733 6,753 14,222 148 42,407 3,580 429,579 At 31 March 238,281 138,232 6,811 14,336 148 44,147 11,741 4 U']S_
Accumulated Depreciation and w
Impairment
6) (4,470) (2,850) (3,256) - (143) (33) (10,758) | At1 April (13) (7,536) (3,409) (3,783) - (204) (33) (14,978)
(4,613) (4,339) (559) (527) - (61) - (10,099) | Depreciation charge (4,796) (4,438) (566) (525) - (66) - (10,391)
Depreciation written out to the
4,606 1,273 - - - - 5,879 Revaluation Reserve 4,809 10,422 - - - 223 - 15,454
Depreciation written out to the surplus/
- - - - - - - - deficit on the provision of services - 278 - - - 25 - 303
- - - - - - - Impairments - - - - - (9) 9)
(13) (7,536) (3,409) (3,783) - (204) (33) (14,978) | At 31 March - (1,274) (3,975) (4,308) - (22) (42) (9,621)
219,723 135,197 3,344 10,439 148 42,203 3,547 414,601 | Net Book Value at 31 March 238,281 136,958 2,836 10,028 148 44,125 11,699 444,075

99




STATEMENT Page 154iTs 2019/20

45. Other Long term liabilities

These comprise the group pension fund liabilities of Cheltenham Borough Council and Cheltenham
Borough Homes Limited (CBH). Further details of the council’s liabilities are included in note 34 on
pages 82 - 87 and for CBH in their accounts. These show a pension liability at 31 March 2021 of
£14.091 million (£7.449 million at 31 March 2020).

46. Long term investments and Long term debtors

Long term investments differ from note 26 in the single entity accounts by the fair value of the shares
in Gloucestershire Airport Limited, which is replaced in the group accounts by a long term investment
in the Airport equivalent to a 50% share of the company’s net assets, shown immediately below long
term investments.

Long term debtors differ from note 26 in the single entity accounts by the elimination on consolidation
of the loans to CBH Limited of £7.759 million.

47. Usable Reserves

These are detailed in the Group Movement in Reserves Statement.

48. Group Movements in the Movement in Reserves Statement

Adjustments are required between group usable and unusable reserves:

o for the receipt by CBH of social housing capital grants, which in the company accounts
remain in the Income and Expenditure Reserve but in the group accounts are reversed out

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 100




STATEMENT Page 155/Ts 2020/21

to the Capital Adjustment Account, as they have been used to finance newly constructed
properties

o for the value of land donated to CBH by the council, which in the company accounts has
been credited to Income and Expenditure Reserve but in the group accounts are eliminated
as inter-organisational transactions within the Capital Adjustment Account

¢ for revaluation gains or losses arising from the difference between the cost of CBH properties
shown in the company accounts and their existing use for social housing value (EU-SH)
included in the Group Balance Sheet.

49. Unusable Reserves

31st March 31st March
2021 2020
£°000 £°000

Revaluation Reserve 185,707 168,945
Capital Adjustment Account 202,743 192,729
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (1,455) (1,601)
Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve (167) (166)
Pooled Funds Adjustment Account (644) (1,050)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account (15,044) (647)
Pensions Reserve (73,082) (58,756)
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 3,479 3,926
Accumulating Compensated Absences

Adjustment Account (322) (122)
Total Unusable Reserves 301,215 303,258

50. Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities
The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:
2020/21 2019/20
£'000 £'000
Interest received (421) (513)
Interest paid 3,891 3,986

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash

movements:
2020/21 2019/20
£'000 £'000

Depreciation (10,593) (10,297)
Impairment and dow nw ard valuations 2,216 (2,100)
Amortisations (211) (200)
Increase (-) / decrease in creditors (20,897) (7,001)
Increase / decrease (-) in debtors (4,307) 7,612
Increase / decrease (-) in inventories (stock) (22) 74
Movement in pensions 5,595 (4,902)
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold or derecognised (1,450) (2,712)

Other non cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit -
on the provision of services (1,408) (9,445)
(31,077) (28,971)

51. Cash Flow Statement — Investing Activities

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL




STATEMENT (Page 156/Ts 2020/21

2020/21 2019/20
£'000 £'000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets 20,484 58,457
Purchase of Investments 28,500 11,604
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets (2,893) (2,488)
Proceeds formthe sale of short and long term investments (35,059) (13,023)
Other receipts from investing activites (143) (293)
Net cashflows from investing activites 10,889 54,257
52. Cash Flow Statement — Financing activities
2020/21 2019/20
£'000 £'000
Cash receipts of short and long term borrow ing (228,605) (265,001)
Other receipts for financing activities 24,053 513
Repayments of short and long term borrow ing 238,230 200,644
Net cash flows from financing activites 33,678 (63,844)

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

102




STATEMENT Page 157iTs 2020/21

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) reflects a statutory obligation to keep a separate revenue
account for the provision and maintenance of council owned houses and flats. The HRA Income and
Expenditure Statement shows the cost in the year of providing these housing services.

2020/21 2019/20
£'000 £'000

Expenditure
Repairs and Maintenance 3,816 3,989
Supervision and Management 8,011 7,531
Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges 89 60
Depreciation and Impairment of Non-current Assets 4,391 5,576
Debt Management Costs 86 85
Movement in Bad Debts 69 157
Total Expenditure 16,462 17,398
Income
Dwelling Rents (18,960) (18,506)
Non-dwelling Rents 477) (499)
Charges for services and facilities (591) (558)
Contributions towards expenditure (486) (603)
Revaluation gains on Non-current Assets = =
Other Income - (2)
Total Income (20,514) (20,168)
Net cost of HRA services as included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (4,052) (2,770)
HRA share of Corporate and Democratic core 160 155
Net cost of HRA Services (3,892) (2,615)
HRA Share of the operating income and expenditure included
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Gain on sale of HRA Non-current Assets (947) (734)
Interest Payable and Similar Charges 1,797 1,748
Interest and Investment Income (76) (207)
Capital Grants and Contributions Receivable (2,490) (675)
Surplus for the Year on HRA Services (5,608) (2,383)

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 103




STATEMENT (Page 158iTs 2020/21

MOVEMENT ON THE HRA STATEMENT

This statement shows how the surplus or deficit on the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement
reconciles to the movement in the Housing Revenue Account Balance, which is governed by statute.

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous year 7,069 8,825
Surplus for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure 5,608 2,383
Statement
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under (12,177) (4,139)
statute (note 1)
Increase/(decrease) in the HRA (5,569) (1,755)
Balance on the HRA at the end of the current year 1,500 7,069

NOTES TO THE HRA STATEMENTS

1. Adjustments between accounting and funding basis under the legislative framework

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Items included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but excluded
from the Movement in the HRA Balance
Capital contributions applied (2,489) (675)
(Gain)/loss on sale of HRA non-current assets (947) (734)
Revaluation adjustments — non-current assets - -
Movements in the fair value of non-current assets (735) 640
(4,171) (769)
Iltems not included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but
included in the Movement in the HRA Balance
Capital expenditure funded by the HRA (7,006) (3,370)
Net adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under the
regulations (12,177) (4,139)
2. Housing Stock
An analysis of the number and types of dwellings is detailed below:
Type Total at 1 April Additions Sales Total at 31
2020 March 2021
Houses and Bungalows 2,097 14 8 2,103
Flats 2,369 22 8 2,383
Shared Ownership (flats)* 15 - 2 13
Shared Ownership (houses)* - 1 - 1
Total Stock 4,481 37 18 4,500
*Council share of shared ownership properties.
CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 104




STATEMENT (Page 1591Ts 2020/21

3. HRA Non-Current Assets

The non-current assets included in the Balance Sheet that relate to the HRA are shown below:

1 April Revaluations/ | Additions | Reclass- | Disposals | Depreci- | 31 March
2020 Impairments ifications ation 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Dwellings 213,060 12,205 10,437 1,767 (1,070) (4,791) | 231,608
Assets under
construction 3,388 (8) 6,518 (1,767) - - 8,130
Garages* 2,267 - 16 - - (34) 2,249
Other land and
Buildings** 2,145 (14) - - - (26) 2,105
Infrastructure 5,403 - 158 - - (261) 5,300
Surplus assets 12,705 357 8 - - 9) 13,061
Investment property 1,896 391 - - - - 2,287
Equipment 19 - - - - 3) 16
Intangible Assets 11 (2) - - - - 9
Total non-current 240,894 12,929 17,137 - (1,070) (5,124) | 264,765
assets

*Garages are included in Other Land & Buildings on the Balance Sheet.

4. Impairment and Revaluation of Non-Current Assets

HRA dwellings are revalued every five years (the last revaluation was undertaken as at 31st March
2020). In interim years the dwelling valuation is updated by the movement in the house price index
for Cheltenham published by the Land Registry. The valuation is at Existing Use Value for Social
Housing (EUV-SH) or market value (MV) adjusted by a factor to reflect the fact that the properties
are socially rented. The adjustment factor is published by the Department for Communities and
Local Government and is set regionally. The south-west adjustment factor is currently 35% of Market
Value.

5. Dwellings Valuation

The vacant possession value of dwellings within the HRA (i.e. their value without secure tenants)
at 1st April 2021 was £661,736,947.

The difference between the vacant possession value and the lower Balance Sheet valuation
(existing use value for social housing (EUH-SH)) measures the economic cost of providing council
housing at less than open market rents.

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 105




STATEMENT (Page 160iTs 2020/21

6. Major Repairs Reserve

An analysis of the movements on the reserve during the year is shown below:

£000
Balance 1 April 2020 -
Transfer to reserve 5,124
Financing of HRA capital expenditure (5,124)
Balance 31 March 2021 -

7. HRA Capital Expenditure

A summary of HRA capital expenditure and sources of finance for 2020/21 is shown below:

Category Total Sources of Finance
Expenditure
Major Capital Capital | Revenue | Grants | Loans | Commuted
Repairs | Receipts | Contribs | Contribs Sums
Reserve
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
New Build 6,518 - (1) - 3,465 2,038 | 1,016 -
Acquisitions 4,066 - 1,161 - 2,708 - - 197
Major repairs &
improvements 6,371 5,110 339 254 668 - - -
Garages 16 16 - - - - - -
Infrastructure 158 - - 1 157 - -
Land 8 - - - 8 - - -
Total 17,137 5,126 1,499 255 7,006 2,038 | 1,016 197
8. HRA Capital Receipts
An analysis of HRA capital receipts realised during the year is shown below:
2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

Sales of Dwellings 1,884 1,709
Sales of Land - -
Sales of Investment Property -
Mortgage Principal 2 2
Sale of Shared Ownership Flats 152 149
Total 2,038 1,860

9. Rent Arrears

Rent arrears at 31st March 2021 amounted to £775,569 (£824,906 as at 31st March 2020)
and the Balance Sheet includes a bad debt provision of £344,000 relating to those arrears
(£402,000 as at 31st March 2020).

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

106




STATEMENT (Page 161iTs 2020/21

10. Interest and Investment Income

This includes £76,268 interest from notional cash balances and mortgage interest of £116 (£106,865
and £170 respectively in 2019/20).

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 107




STATEMENT (Page 1621Ts 2020/21

GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS

Accounting Code of Although the preparation and control of accounting is regulated, there is no statutory

Practice

Accounting Period

Accounts

Accounting Policies

Accruals

Actual

Actuarial Basis

Amortised cost

Audit of Accounts

Balances

Billing Authority

Budget

Budget Strategy

basis for accounting entries. Instead, Local Authorities have to comply with the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local authority accounting in the United
Kingdom (The Code).

The period of time covered by the accounts, normally a period of twelve months
commencing on 1t April for local authority accounts. The end of the accounting
period is the balance sheet date.

A generic term for statements setting out details of income and expenditure or
assets and liabilities or both, in a structured manner. Accounts may be categorised
either by the type of transactions they record, e.g. revenue account, capital account
or by the purpose they serve, e.g. management accounts, final accounts, balance
sheets.

The principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an organisation
that specify how the effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected in
its financial statements.

Sums included in the final accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to
the accounting period but for which payment has not been made/received at the
balance sheet date.

Actual, as opposed to budget, expenditure and income directly attributable to an
accounting period.

The estimation technigue applied when estimating the liabilities to be recognised for
defined benefit pension schemes in the financial statements of an organisation.

Financial instruments are shown on the balance sheet at amortised cost, being the
principal amount of the loan plus or minus the balance of any premium or discount
associated with that loan, plus any interest accrued at the balance sheet date.

An audit is an examination by an independent expert of an organisation’s financial
affairs to check that the relevant legal obligations and codes of practice have been
followed.

Working balances are reserves needed to finance expenditure in advance of income
from debtors, precepts and grants. Any excess may be applied, at the discretion of
the council, to reduce future demands on the Collection Fund or to meet unexpected
costs during the year. Balances on holding accounts and provisions are available
to meet expenditure in future years without having adverse effect on revenue
expenditure.

The authority that sets council tax and collects it from council tax payers.
A financial plan that expresses an organisation’s service delivery plans and capital
programmes in monetary terms.

A document setting out how an organisation is going to meet its policies and
priorities, taking into account the resources available to the organisation. This will

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 108




STATEMENT (Page 163iTs 2020/21

Capital Expenditure

Capital Financing

Capital Financing
Requirement

Capital Grants

Capital Programme

Capital Receipt

Cash & Cash
equivalents

CIPFA

Collection Fund

Consistency

Contingent Asset

Contingent Liability

Council Tax

include proposals for efficiency savings and possible service changes or reductions,
which may free up resources for use on other policies or priorities.

This is expenditure on items providing benefits to the organisation over more than
one year, such as land, buildings or vehicles.

The raising of money to finance capital expenditure. In the past the cost of capital
assets was usually met by borrowing, but capital expenditure may also be financed
by other means such as contributions from revenue accounts, the proceeds from
the sale of capital assets, and capital grants and contributions from developers or
others.

The capital financing requirement measures the council’s underlying need to borrow
for capital purposes.

Grants received towards capital expenditure on a specific service or project.

This is a financial plan of the capital expenditure projects that the organisation
intends to carry out over a specified time period.

This is income resulting from the sale of assets such as land or property. The
Government decides what proportion of each capital receipt can be used by the
council to finance new capital expenditure. Capital receipts cannot be used to fund
revenue expenditure.

Cash in hand plus deposits in banks or building societies, repayable on demand or
within 24 hours, and deposits maturing within 3 months of the date taken out.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. This is the professional
body for accountants working in local government and other public bodies. The
Institute provides financial and statistical information services for local government
and advises central Government and other bodies on local government and public
finance matters.

This is a statutory fund kept separate from the main accounts of the council. It
records all income due from Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates and
shows how that income was shared between central government, the County
Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner.

One of the fundamental accounting concepts, it requires accountants to treat similar
items of income and expenditure in the same way both within an accounting period
and from one accounting period to the next.

An asset which exists at the balance sheet date where the outcome will be confirmed
only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events,
for example a claim for compensation that a council is pursuing through the due
legal process, where the outcome will only be decided by the decision of the courts.

A liability which exists at the balance sheet date where the outcome will be
confirmed only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events, for example, the default by a borrower on a loan from a third party for which
the council has given a guarantee.

A local tax levied on dwellings within the local authority area. The level of taxation
is based on the capital value of the property, which is categorised into one of eight
bands from A to H, and the number of people living in the dwelling.

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 109




STATEMENT (Page 164iTs 2020/21

Creditors

Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Debtors

Depreciation

Employee Costs

Estimates

Final Accounts

Finance Lease

Financial Year

Government Grants

Impairment

Interest

Amounts owed by the council for work done, goods received or services rendered
within the accounting period, but for which payment was not made at the balance
sheet date.

Assets which can be expected to be consumed or realised during the next
accounting period.

Amounts which will become due or could be called upon during the next accounting
period.

An amount due to an organisation within the accounting period not received at the
balance sheet date.

A charge made to the revenue account each year that reflects the reduction in value
of assets used to deliver services. This is the loss in value of an asset, owing to age,
wear and tear, deterioration, or obsolescence.

These include salaries, wages and employers’ national insurance and pension
contributions, together with training expenses and charges relating to the index-
linking of pensions of former employees.

Original estimate: the estimate for the new year approved before the start of the
financial year, usually at the previous November’s price levels.

Revised estimate: the original estimate for the year updated by price changes since
it was prepared and by supplementary estimates and virements.

Accounts prepared for an accounting period, usually in a summarised form. They
include a statement showing the net surplus (profit) or deficit (loss) on the provision
of services and a balance sheet. They are produced as a record of steward-ship for
interested parties. Local authorities are required by the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 1993 (as amended) to publish a Statement of Accounts at the end of
each financial year.

A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a
non-current asset to the lessee (the person or organisation leasing the asset).

The local authority financial year commences on 1t April and finishes on 315 March
in the following year.

Grants made by the Government towards either revenue or capital expenditure to
help with the cost of providing services and capital projects. Some Government
grants have restrictions on how they may be used, whilst others are general
purpose.

Impairment of an asset is caused by a consumption of economic benefits (e.g.
physical damage such as an office fire) or a deterioration in the quality of service
provided by the asset (e.g. an industrial unit closing and becoming a storage facility),
or by a general fall in prices of that particular asset or class of assets.

An amount received or paid for the use of a sum of money when it is invested or
borrowed.

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 110




STATEMENT (Page 1651Ts 2020/21

International
Financial
Standards (IFRS)

Inventories

Joint Venture

Materiality

Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP)

National Non
Domestic Rates
(NNDR)

Non-Current Asset

Operating Lease

Precepts

Provision

Revenue
Expenditure

Revenue
Expenditure funded
from capital under
statute (REFCUS)

Revenue Support
Grant

Subsidiary

Reporting

Provide the required accounting treatment and disclosure of transactions so that an
organisation’s financial statements present fairly the financial position of the
organisation.

Items of raw materials and stores a council has purchased to use on a continuing
basis but which have not yet been used.

An entity in which the reporting authority has an interest on a long-term basis and is
jointly controlled by the reporting authority and one or more entities under a
contractual or other binding agreement.

One of the main accounting concepts, it ensures that the statement of accounts
includes all the transactions that, if omitted, would lead to a significant distortion of
the financial position at the end of the accounting period.

The minimum amount which must be charged to a council’s revenue account as a
contribution towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement. The amount
represents that which the council considers to be prudent, taking into account the
period over which the borrowing was taken, which is usually equivalent to the life of
the asset.

An NNDR rate (multiplier) is set annually by central government and is applied to
the rateable value of a business to calculate the non-domestic rates collected by
Billing Authorities. The rates collected are shared between central government,
district and county councils in statutory proportions.

Assets which can be expected to be of use or benefit to the council for more than
one accounting period.

A lease under which the ownership of the asset remains with the lessor (the person
or organisation leasing the asset) and is equivalent to contract hiring.

The levy made by a precepting authority (County Council, Police Authority, Parish
Council) on the billing authority, requiring it to collect income from Council
Taxpayers on their behalf.

A sum of money set aside in the accounts for liabilities or losses that are due but
where the amount due or the timing of the payment is not know with certainty.

Expenditure on the day to day running costs of the council such as wages and
salaries, utility costs, repairs and maintenance.

Expenditure which can by law be financed from capital resources (e.g. capital
receipts) but which does not result in a non-current asset for the authority e.g.
renovation grants.

A general grant paid by central Government to local authorities to provide the
services that it is responsible for delivering.

An entity is a subsidiary of the reporting council if the council is able to exercise
control over the operating and financial policies of the entity, and is able to gain
benefits from the entity or is exposed to the risk of potential losses arising from this
control.

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 111




STATEMENT (Page 166iTs 2020/21

AS4

& 0 I

CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annual Governance Statement
2020/21

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

112




STATEMENT (Page 1671Ts 2020/21

Section 1 - Scope of Responsibility

Section 2 - Purpose of Governance Framework
Section 3 - Governance Environment

Section 4 — Impact of COVID19

Section 5 - Principles

Section 6 - Review of Effectiveness

Section 7 - Significant Governance Issues during 2019/2020

Section 8 - Significant Governance Issues during 2020/2021

Section 9 - Approval of Leader and Chief Executive

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 113




STATEMENT (Page 168iTs 2020/21

1 Scope of Responsibility

Cheltenham Borough Authority (“the authority”) is responsible for ensuring that:

Its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards;

Public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for

Public money is used economically, efficiently and effectively; and

There is a sound system of governance, incorporating the system of internal control and risk
management

The authority has a Best Value duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination
of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging these responsibilities, the authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements
for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, and including
arrangements for the management of risk.

The authority has developed and approved a code of corporate governance, which is consistent with the
core principles and sub-principles as set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE “Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government: Framework (2016)” (‘the Framework’). This statement explains how the authority has
complied with the code and also meets the requirements of Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 (England) which requires the authority to conduct a review at least once a year on the
effectiveness of its system of internal control and include a statement reporting on the review with any
published Statement of Accounts.

In addition to this, CIPFA issued its “Statement on the Role of the Chief Finance Officer in Local
Government (2015)”. The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) reflects compliance with that Statement
for reporting purposes. The Executive Director Finance and Assets is the Statutory Section 151 Officer
(5151 Officer) for Cheltenham Borough Council.

In February 2021 CIPFA published Bulletin 06, the Application of the Good Governance Framework 2020/21,
which contains guidance concerning the impact of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic on governance in local
government bodies and the requirements of the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government
Framework 2016 CIPFA and Solace (the Framework). It also takes into account the introduction of the CIPFA
Financial Management Code 2019 (FM Code) during 2020/21. This AGS has been prepared taking into
account this latest guidance.

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 114




STATEMENT (Page 169iTs 2020/21

2. Purpose of Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values, by which the authority is
directed and controlled including activities through which it is held accountable by, engages with and leads its
communities. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to
consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of the governance framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an on-going process designed to:

Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the authority’s policies, aims and objectives;
Evaluate the likelihood of those risks occurring;

Assess the impact should those risks occur; and

Manage the risks efficiently, effectively and economically

The governance framework has been in place at the authority for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up
to the date of approval of the Annual Statement of Accounts. It should be noted that any changes to CBC
arrangements due to COVID19 and the impact on our governance are recorded in this document.

3. Governance Environment

The key elements of the authority’s governance arrangements are outlined in the Local Code of Corporate
Governance. The governance framework includes arrangements for:

e Identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose and intended outcomes for citizens
and service users;

e Reviewing the authority’s vision and its implications for the authority’s governance arrangements;

o Measuring the quality of services for users, ensuing that they are delivered in accordance with the
authority’s objectives and ensuring that they represent the best use of resources;

e Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive (Cabinet), non- executive,
scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective
communication;

e Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of behaviour for
members and staff;

e Reviewing and updating Financial Rules, Contract Rules, Constitution, Scheme of Delegation and
supporting procedure notes / manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and the processes
and controls required to manage risks;

e Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are developed and maintained;

e Ensuring the authority’s financial management arrangements meet the governance requirements of
the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2015);

e Undertaking the core functions of an Audit Committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit Committees:
Practical Guidance for Local Authorities;

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 115




STATEMENT (Page 170iTs 2020/21

e Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and that
expenditure is lawful;

e Whistleblowing referrals and for receiving and investigating complaints from the public;

¢ Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to their strategic roles,
supported by the appropriate training;

e Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and other
stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation; and

e Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships, including shared services and
other joint working and reflecting these in the authority’s overall governance arrangements.

4, Impact of COVID19

COVID19 has had a significant impact on the way we worked during 2020/21. Reduced capacity due to
redeployment of resources and those shielding, constraints resulting from home working, social distancing
and the financial impact of the pandemic has led to changes in the way CBC operated.

Whilst these changes were significant to the way we operated within a very short space of time CBC put
in place a number of measures to ensure there was minimal impact on the governance of the organisation.

From a financial perspective to monitor the impact of COVID19 CBC provided the Ministry for Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) monthly financial information through the online reporting
system DELTA.

Despite the impact of COVID19, CBC was able to effectively maintain services through its business
continuity arrangements, support the emergency response efforts in conjunction with the Local Resilience
Forum and lead recovery efforts into 2021.

As a result of CBC’s efforts during 2020/2021, the Council won two national awards; the Royal Town
Planning Institute (RTPI) award for Planning Heroes in a Pandemic and the iESE Transformation Award in
the Working Together category. CBC was one of the first Councils in the UK to publish its Recovery
Strategy back in May 2020.

2020/2021 was a hugely challenging year and a significant test of our business continuity arrangements,
emergency response and recovery efforts. As part of our commitment to continuous improvement SWAP
Audit undertook a review of CBC’s Response to COVID-19 which resulted in a ‘substantial’ audit assurance
opinion.

Changes made during 2020/21 as a result of COVID19 and their impact/effectiveness are listed underneath
each of the principles.

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 116




STATEMENT Page 171iTs 2020/21

5. Principles

The main areas of the authority’s governance framework, and the key evidence of delivery, are set out
over the next pages under the headings of the core principles and sub-principles from the CIPFA/SOLACE
“Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016).

Principle A

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values,
and respecting the rule of law

e The roles and responsibilities of Members and all holders of an office are set out in the authority’s
Constitution. The Constitution also sets out how decisions are made and the procedures that are
followed to ensure these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. The Constitution is
supported and underpinned by a Code of Conduct for Members’, Code of Conduct for Employees and a
Protocol for Member/Officer Relations.

e On 23 March 2020 CBC full council agreed, in advance of anticipated emergency Government legislation,
to make arrangements for continuity of decision making by temporarily making changes to the Council’s
Constitution.

e These proposed changes, documented in the council report, were necessary to enable decisions to be
taken on non-executive and regulatory functions via temporary changes to the scheme of delegation.

e The alternative arrangements put in place did not override the requirement for decisions to be made
within the legal framework of the Local Government Act 1972 and other legislation.

e Throughout this period officers continued to seek legal advice prior to making any decisions and the
process and procedures for recording decisions still applied to ensure open and transparent decision
making. CBC continued to publish decisions taken and those decisions were still subject to the call-in
process and on 15 June 2020 a report went to council outlining urgent decisions which had been taken
during the emergency.

e Within 6 weeks from the start of lockdown all members were rapidly given laptops to enable CBC council
and committee meetings to continue online with the first virtual meeting taking place on Thursday 14
May. This enabled the democratic process and decision making to be rapidly restored. The Public have
the ability to access all meetings on the CBC YouTube channel.

e New rules were introduced for online meetings with members having to be seen on camera at all times
to ensure meetings were quorate, they had to be shown for all parts of the debate prior to voting
for/against recommendations with each member canvassed individually for their vote.

e The Code of Conduct for Members’ requires declarations at meetings to be made by Members where
necessary and these declarations are recorded in the minutes of the meeting. This has continued to
happen as part of our online meetings with any declarations made and recorded in the minutes.

e The authority has a Standards Committee to maintain and promote high standards of conduct by

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 117




STATEMENT (Page 1721Ts 2020/21

observing and monitoring the operation of the Code of Conduct for Members’. Any concerns about
conduct raised throughout the year 2020/21 continued to be dealt with through online meetings and
email.

Statutory Officers’ responsibilities are defined in the Constitution and are employed in accordance with
statutory guidance.

The Executive Director Finance and Assets leads the promotion and delivery of good financial
management through the Executive Leadership Team, attendance at Council, Cabinet and Committee
meetings and organises specialist workshops/training for officers and Members as appropriate and as
part of the member induction programme following borough elections every 2 years. Induction is open
to all members.

Due to the financial impact of COVID19 a revised budget was presented and approved by full Council in
November 2020 by the Executive Director of Finance and Assets.

Registers of interest are completed by Members and officers and a register of gifts and hospitality is
maintained. Declarations of interest are declared and recorded at meetings.

The Monitoring Officer and Executive Director Finance and Assets are members of the authority’s
Executive Leadership Team and meet with the Chief Executive to discuss any matters relevant to their
statutory functions.

Internal audit reviews are designed to ensure services are complying with internal and external policies
and procedures / statutory legislation. Where non-compliance is identified, this is reported to
management and to Members via the Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee.

Whistleblowing Policies are in place.

We work with a Gloucestershire wide Counter Fraud unit to help prevent and detect fraud and corrupt
practices, including abuse of position. The service reports to Audit, Compliance and Governance
Committee twice a year. Throughout 2020/21 the Counter Fraud unit have been working closely with
our Revenues and Benefits team to ensure that all discretionary grant schemes put in place as a result
of COVID19 have sufficient pre and post payment checks and controls in place to give assurance that the
COVID19 business grants were paid to eligible business.

During the COVID19 pandemic CBC recognised the leadership role it had in the community. As well as
providing emergency support to people and communities through the ‘Community Support Hub’ the
communication team recognised they had a role to play to ensure people upheld COVID regulations. As
well as passing on key Government and County Council messages where appropriate an on street
presence was established to remind and support CBC businesses and residents on rules around COVID19
safety and social distancing measures.

During the pandemic CBC launched a number of new communication campaigns designed to not only
remind people of key COVID19 messages but also to recognise the effort their residents had been making
to comply with COVID19 regulations. The Council’s external communications were recognised as
examples of best practice by CommsHero and Commscreatives, two leading edge communications
companies.

Principle B

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 118




STATEMENT (Page 1731Ts 2020/21

The annual accounts are published in a timely manner and in accordance with specified timescales so that
the financial position and performance of the authority is open to public scrutiny. COVID19 changed
reporting timescales during 2020/21 but CBC continued to meet all deadlines and requirements.
Committee meetings, agendas and minutes are published in accordance with the Forward Plan and
publication of agendas is done in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972. Where statutory
timescales are not met then the appropriate consultation takes place with the Chair of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee with regard to call-in. Council, Cabinet and Committee reports clearly outline their
purpose, so the public can understand what the decision is aiming to achieve. Reports also address
financial, legal, equalities, risk and sustainability implications to aid Members in their decisions making.
Members and the public are able to ask questions at Council, Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. Public questions can be asked at other committee meetings, e.g. Audit, Licensing and Planning.
All meetings are held in public unless exempt business is under discussion. This continued during 2020/21
and COVID19 although the public had to watch all proceeding via the CBC YouTube channel.

Members of the public are able to speak at Planning Committee although during 2020/21 this was via an
online link sent to them via the CBC democratic services team.

Overview and Scrutiny committee promotes open and transparent decision-making, democratic
accountability and holds the Cabinet to account for its decisions.

Following the independent review undertaken in 2019-20 of the Overview and Scrutiny committee
implementation of the action plan continued throughout the year with all actions now being completed.
At the start of the pandemic all partner stakeholders Publica, Ubico, The Cheltenham Trust and Cheltenham
Borough homes were involved in all of our Business Continuity meetings to ensure they were supported
and we consulted on the best way to continue providing services.

As part of the budget setting process consultation takes place through the authority’s website and by
attendance at meetings of the parish councils and business community by the Executive Director Finance
and Assets and Cabinet Member Finance / Leader of the Council. During 2020/21 all such interactions were
all undertaken online and through telephone calls.

Engagement with staff happens in a number of ways; whole authority staff sessions, directorate team
meetings, monthly managers meetings and one-to-one meetings. During 2020/21 the impact of COVID19
meant all of these interactions continued but were undertaken via our WebEx system. As well all of the
meetings above during the first eight months of the pandemic weekly information bulletins were sent to
all staff, members and partners updating them on the latest CBC news as well the latest pandemic
information for our Borough.

Outside the budget process, engagement and consultation with the public is undertaken through public
meetings, surveys and other mechanisms as required throughout the year or around specific topics, e.g.
Cheltenham Plan. During the initial stages of the pandemic no consultations were undertaken other than
online however, as restrictions eased appointments were made so individuals could come to the municipal
offices to view plans etc.

A Statement on Community Involvement is approved which sets out the opportunities by which the public and
organisations can engage with the planning system, including the procedures and methods used to consult
on planning applications.

Performance against the corporate plan is monitored via Overview and Scrutiny and reported on an annual

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 119




STATEMENT Page 174iTs 2020/21

basis to Cabinet.

e During 2020/21 additional meetings (every two weeks) with the Leader and Lead Member for Finance were
undertaken to ensure the financial impact of COVID19 was monitored, discussed and managed.

e Transparency data is published on the website and includes supplier payments, senior management
structure charts, annual pay policy statement, and our gender pay gap report for the previous financial year.
Where data is not available in the published data sets, instructions are available on how to make a Freedom
of Information Request and the procedure that will be followed to answer the request.

e In November, the Local Government Association (LGA) took part in a mini form of peer review through a
Renewal and Recovery Panel to provide feedback on the Council’s emergency response and recovery
efforts. This report was published and is available on the Council’s website.

Principle C

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits

e The vision for Cheltenham is articulated in the Cheltenham Place Vision document. The vision sets out
the ambitions, aspirations and actions that the authority, together with its key partners, will take to bring
about a thriving town in terms of businesses and their workforces, culture and creativity, people and
communities. During COVID19 our Marketing Cheltenham team supported CBC through the delivery of
key COVID19 messages as well as supporting businesses as rules were relaxed.

e Our Corporate Plan sets out the authority’s purpose, principles and priorities for the future. Guided by
an agreed set of principles the priorities in the plan were developed to make the biggest difference to
Cheltenham’s communities, businesses and residents, in line with Cheltenham’s place vision. This plan
is now supported by our COVID19 recovery strategy (see below).

e As with all areas of the world COVID19 has had a substantial impact on our town and visitor economy.
In May 2020 the Cabinet put in place a new recovery strategy for CBC. This strategy does not replace
our Place Vision or Corporate Plan but compliments these strategic documents by defining our priorities
and a ‘Local New Deal’ for Cheltenham.

e In response to the initial lockdown during 2020 to ensure the most vulnerable were supported, we
rapidly established a community ‘help-hub’. Working with Gloucestershire County Council, supported
by Cheltenham Borough Homes and The Cheltenham Trust (TCT) we re-deployed staff to support
hundreds of vulnerable residents to ensure they had the essentials of food, their prescriptions, as well
as to hear a friendly voice. With our well-established community connections and Councillor insight, we
gathered intelligence from across the town, swiftly realising that local food banks were struggling to
meet demand. Therefore, the Mayor’s Foodbank fund was established and raised thousands of pounds.
Combining our community grant funding with additional funding from Gloucestershire County Council
we were able to give funding grants to those charities/community groups that were providing essential
support for the most vulnerable.

e The Borough has a statutory development plan in place made up of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (adopted 2017) and The Cheltenham Plan (adopted 2020), together
these plans make provision for the long term growth of our area delivering sustainable, social and

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 120




STATEMENT Page 175Ts 2020/21

environment benefits across the Borough. A review of the JCS is underway and Cheltenham continues
to work collaboratively with its partners Tewkesbury Borough and Gloucester City on development plan
formulation and its delivery. We await guidance from government arising from the recent White Paper
that will drive fundamental reforms of the planning system; this guidance is expected later this year.
Following the Council’s Cabinet formally declaring a climate emergency in July 2019 in 2020/21 specific
funding was made in the budget to start work on both CBC and Cheltenham becoming carbon neutral
by 2030. Changes were made to Cabinet portfolios with the Leader assigning two new posts, one
covering economy and development and, the other covering climate and communities.

Principle D

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes

A mixed economy approach to service delivery is in place. In order to continue to deliver the priority
outcomes of Members, and to operate within a more constrained financial cost base, the authority has
over a number of years created a number of new organisations to deliver once in-house provided
services.

Each partner service is assigned a client officer who undertakes frequent and direct liaison with the
service provider and monitors the contract performance and delivery. Each member of the Executive
Leadership Team holds accountability for one of these services and provides the strategic guidance and
support to the client officers. Executive Leadership Team and client officers keep relevant Cabinet
members apprised of commissioned service performance as well as Cabinet Members being engaged
directly in performance meetings with commissioned service providers.

During 2020/21 a number of services provided for CBC by The Cheltenham Trust were either unable to
operate due to the COVID19 restrictions or able to operate in a limited capacity. During this period the
Executive, Client officers, Members and leadership of the Cheltenham Trust worked together to
maximise income (through changed operations and grant funding), minimise redundancies (through
furloughing of employees), to ensure that these services were sustained at a level to enable them to
restart and continue operating following the pandemic.

We also worked with our Partners, Cheltenham Borough Homes and The Cheltenham Trust, to provide
support to our communities through our Community Help Hub providing food, shopping, general
wellbeing support and a prescription collection service.

We continue to work on achieving the aims of our commercial strategy that sets out the authority’s
ambition to be an enterprising and commercially focused authority. This will be even more important in
the future following COVID19. By continuing to drive down the Council’s net costs and increase income
via a commercial mind-set with the aim to hold down council tax as far as possible, now and in the longer

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 121




STATEMENT (Page 1761Ts 2020/21

term helps the Authority protect frontline services from cuts which is exceptionally important following
CovID19.

The drive towards financial sustainability includes identifying new opportunities to generate income and
investment in projects that provide good financial returns. The authority’s commercial strategy aligns
closely with other key strategies including place-making, economic growth, digital transformation,
workforce and skills development, investment and asset management. Whilst the pandemic has caused
financial challenges it also has the potential to create an opportunity for the future in a review of the
way we work as a Council. The Director of Finance and Assets oversees all commercial work to ensure
it fits with our role as a council and within our financial framework.

The authority’s budgets are prepared annually in accordance with objectives, strategies and the MTFS is
finalised following consultation with Members, customers, stakeholders and officers.

Financial stewardship in respect of both capital and revenue proposals is reviewed and challenged by
the Budget Scrutiny Working Group and considered regularly by the Executive Leadership Team.

The MTFS is a live document and is updated as necessary, to respond to the changing environment and
in such circumstances would be discussed by the Executive Leadership Team to determine any necessary
mitigating actions that would then be discussed with the Cabinet. Due to the financial impact of COVID19
a revised budget was presented and approved by full Council in September 2020 by the Executive
Director of Finance and Assets.

Processes are in place to identify and respond to external changes, for example: changes to legislation
and regulation, emerging risks and opportunities, risk management, development and delivery of the
corporate strategy, performance management, mediumterm financial planning, budget monitoring are
designed to capture and incorporate external factors and to enable the authority to respond
appropriately.

Corporate risks are considered by the Executive Leadership Team (ELT) on a monthly basis. Operational
risks are monitored and managed at Manager level. Any strategic risks scoring 16 or more are escalated
to the corporate risk register. CBC now has two senior officers qualified in risk management (MOR).

In previous years ELT met on a weekly basis to deal with matters of urgency, items require strategic
consideration or to make decisions. During the 2020/21 COVID19 pandemic ELT met daily to assess the
situation and deal with the consequences of the pandemic. This enabled consistent, coordinated yet
rapid decision making leading to CBC being able play a lead role in the Borough supporting businesses,
the community and our own staff ensuring that all government advice was acted upon promptly and our
vulnerable people had the necessary support.

Initially during the pandemic a number of projects, e.g. townscape were halted to ensure we adhered to
government guidance on the safety of the workforce etc. This also meant we were able to quickly
redeploy resource to the more urgent needs such as getting food, prescriptions and support to those in

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 122




STATEMENT Page 1771Ts 2020/21

need.

Principle E

Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it

During 2020/.21 we continued to work on our organisational change programme, although with a reduced
level of resource, focusing on the development of a range of leadership programmes for our people
designed to give them behaviours and skills for the future.

Throughout the pandemic we utilised our Learning and Management System to offer our people a range
of wellbeing courses designed to support them through the difficulties being experienced as a result of
COVID19. As well as learning through our LMS managers undertook training on ‘managing remotely’ to
ensure they had the relevant skills to both deliver services and support their teams remotely.

e Publica support services continue to work with CBC in the areas of Human Resources, Finance and ICT.
Specifically important during 2020/21 has been the support received by CBC from Publica in the area of
Health and Safety and ICT. To ensure that we adopted safe working practices that adhered to the changing
government guidance throughout the pandemic a new health and safety group was formed. This group
which initially met twice a week was responsible for advising managers and reviewing risk assessments to
ensure our staff were safe in their workspaces (both home and office), safe in the delivery of services and
had all the relevant personal protective equipment. Publica ICT acted swiftly ensuring that within a very
short space of time all staff and members had laptops with the relevant technology enabling them work
from home. The Council’s previous investment in smart working technology was a key reason why CBC
was able to become a virtual Council in a short space of time, as well as being able to continue to maintain
data security.

¢ All new employees take part in an induction programme, online during the pandemic, and ongoing staff
development needs are identified through the appraisal process and 1:1’s. The launch of our new online
one to one process has been delayed due to COVID19 but will be rolled out in the first quarter 2021/22.
The Chief Executive is appraised by the Group Leaders.

e The introduction of regular all manager, all employee and member WebEx meetings enabled information
to be easily and consistently cascaded.

o All new Members undertake a comprehensive Members induction programme that is delivered after each
borough election (i.e. every 2 years). New Members are matched with a senior officer under a “buddy”
system to provide practical support as they develop into their roles. Training is provided for Members on
an ongoing basis as appropriate and necessary. Members on certain committees (e.g. Planning and
Licensing) are required to undertake initial and ongoing “top up” training in order to take their place on
the committee. The authority is a member of the Local Government Association who provide individual
mentoring and support to Members and officers as necessary or requested.

e During the last year Members have undertaken learning and development in a number of areas including

Planning Reform, Equalities and Diversity, the NHS and City Fibre.

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 123




STATEMENT (Page 178iTs 2020/21

Principle F

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial
management

e A corporate governance group meets on a quarterly basis, is chaired by the Executive Director of
People and Change, and its attendees are the other statutory officers, plus internal audit, counter
fraud, risk manager and HR.

e Officers are required to maintain Service / Operational Risk Registers and the ELT reviews the corporate
risk register on a monthly basis that is then provided to informal cabinet.

e Any service level risks that score 16 or above are incorporated in the corporate risk register.

e The MTFS is reviewed and updated on a regular basis so that Members and ELT are aware of the
financial standing of the authority in terms of delivering against cost reduction or revenue raising
targets. Performance against budget is reported to Cabinet and any significant variances explained.
During 2020/21 additional meetings were held with the Leader and Lead Member for Finance to
monitor the impact of COVID19.

e During 2020/21 the decision was taken to bring the finance function, being undertaken by Publica,
back in house. A Head of Finance was externally recruited with the successful candidate starting in
January 2020.

e The Statement of Accounts is produced and published annually in accordance with statutory legislation
— these statutory dates were adjusted for the 2020/21 year due to COVID19. Aligned with this is the
production of this Annual Governance Statement that identifies how the authority has met its
governance reporting obligations.

e External Audit recommendations are reported to Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee
following the completion of their annual audit process with follow-ups of recommendations also
reported. Any recommendations are incorporated into the planning for the next years Audit.

e Internal Audit is delivered through SWAP Internal Audit Services(SWAP) and processes ensure
compliance with Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards. Internal Audit agreed actions are followed
up and reported to Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee with further follow up being
reported where agreed actions have not been implemented in full. During 2020/21 SWAP continued
to undertake scheduled audits wherever possible.

e Copies of all Internal Audit reports are provided to the Executive Director Finance and Assets who
ensures that other relevant Executive Directors are made aware of any significant issues or
recommendations.

¢ The Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee reviews and approves the Risk Management Policy
on an annual basis. Risks are identified when undertaking Internal Audit reviews and reported when
necessary.

e A risk-based Audit Plan is drafted annually following consultation with Officers, Members and the
Executive Director Finance and Assets. The Audit Plan is approved at Audit, Compliance and
Governance Committee prior to the financial year.

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 124




STATEMENT (Page 1791Ts 2020/21

Audit reports, once completed are discussed with the service manager. Executive summaries, including
findings, and progress on the Annual Plan are reported to Audit, Compliance and Governance
Committee, on a quarterly basis.

Agreed Actions made in audit reports are followed up 6 months after the completion of the audit and
findings reported to Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee.

The authority’s services are delivered through a mix of direct service delivery and delivery through
other standalone organisations, e.g., Cheltenham Borough Homes delivers housing; Ubico deliver
environmental services including waste management, street cleansing and grounds maintenance; The
Cheltenham Trust is responsible for the authority’s town hall, Pittville Pump Room, The Wilson,
Leisure@ and Prince of Wales Stadium. Contracts and agreements are in place with each of these
organisations that include performance management and reporting arrangements. Client officers
monitor contractual requirements and performance measures. During 2020/21 CBC have been
working with all of these organisations to understand the impact of COVD19, work with and support
these organisations to ensure the continued delivery of services wherever possible.

Organisational performance against the authority’s corporate plan objectives is reviewed by the
Executive Leadership Team to ensure key programmes of work remain on track to achieve CBC goals
and objectives.

A Counter Fraud Unit supports all the Gloucestershire Local Authorities, West Oxfordshire District
Council and other third parties. Where investigations identify possible improvements to the internal
control framework, the Counter Fraud Unit will liaise with the Internal Audit Team to ensure the
improvements are followed up and implemented by Management. During COVID19 the Counter Fraud
team have been working with CBC to ensure that COVID19 grant payments are only made to qualifying
organisations and to reduce the risk fraud.

Our Data Protection Policy provides a framework for all other Information security and Information
Management Polices all of which are available to all data users on the Councils intranet. It also provides
the responsibilities and accountabilities for the roles of the Data Protection Officer, Senior Information
Risk Officer (SIRO) and the Single Point of Contact (SPoC).

A range of training documentation is produced to support the training on Data Protection.
Documentation is regularly reviewed and used to deliver an agreed annual training programme that
includes induction for elected Members and employees.

The authority is part of the Gloucestershire Information Sharing Partnership. This will enable data to
be shared when necessary.

Audit reviews ensure data is held securely whether electronic or hard-copy.

Principle G

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective
accountability

The authority publishes its performance in achieving delivery of its corporate plan objectives on an

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 125




STATEMENT (Page 180iTs 2020/21

annual basis. Performance monitoring reports considered by Overview and Scrutiny are published on
the authority’s website in accordance with publication standards and guidelines.

e Datain respect of transparency is published on the authority’s website.

e The Council’'s Audit, Governance & Compliance Committee review the Local Code of Corporate
Governance

e The Statement of Accounts is produced and published annually in accordance with statutory legislation.
Aligned with this is the production of the Annual Governance Statement which identifies how the
authority has met it’s governance reporting obligations

e External Audit recommendations are reported to Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee,
following the completion of their annual audit process, follow-ups of recommendations are also
reported

e Internal Audit processes ensure compliance with Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards. Internal
Audit agreed actions are followed-up and reported to Audit Committee, further follow-up is planned if
agreed actions have not been implemented in full.

6. Review of Effectiveness

The authority has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed
by the work of the senior managers, the annual opinion from the Head of Internal Audit, the officer
Corporate Governance Groups and comments made by the external auditors, other review agencies and
inspectorates.

The authority’s process for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework has
included the following:

e Directors complete an Annual Assurance Statement at the end of each financial year. These
governance declarations provide appropriate management assurance that key elements of the system
of internal control are in place and are working effectively and help to identify areas for improvement.

e Annual Assurance Statements are also completed by Client Officers in respect of external service
providers, The Cheltenham Trust, One Legal, Publica, Ubico and CBH.

e Where the assurance review highlights elements that do not fully or partially meet the systems of
internal control then the Directors and Client officers explain what action needs to be taken within an
agreed timeframe.

e ELT review the Corporate Risk Register on a monthly basis and service risk registers are managed by
each manager.

e The SWAP Assistant Director (Head of Internal Audit) provides the Audit, Compliance and Governance
Committee, as the Committee charged with governance, with an Annual Opinion on the control
environment of the authority, which includes its governance arrangements.

e Investigation of, and decisions on, allegations of failure to comply with Members Code of Conduct are
considered and determined through processes involving the Monitoring Officer/Independent
Person(s)/Standards Committee/Sub-Committee as set out in the Constitution.

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 126




STATEMENT (Page 181iTs 2020/21

A full induction programme is delivered for newly elected members.

The Executive Director Finance and Assets ensures training and awareness sessions are carried out for the
Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee periodically.

The External Auditors (Grant Thornton) present progress reports to the Audit, Compliance and
Governance Committee. The Chief Executive and Executive Director Finance and Assets attend audit
liaison meetings with the external auditors on a regular basis.

The External Auditor’s Annual Audit Letter and follow-up of management responses to issues raised in
the Letter or other reports are overseen by the Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee.

Performance with regard to achievement of corporate priorities, budgets and risk are reported and
monitored as outlined in this statement.

The Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee review the Annual Governance Statement.

The Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee review the Annual Statement of Accounts and
reports from both Internal Audit (SWAP) and External Audit (Grant Thornton), including quarterly
progress reports.

Council approves the annual budget, reviews and approves the Treasury Management Strategy.

Internal Audit monitors the quality and effectiveness of systems of internal control. Audit reports
include an opinion that provides management with an independent judgement on the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls. Reports including agreed actions for improvement are detailed in an
action plan agreed with the relevant Executive Director/Service Manager.

On the balance of our 2020/21 audit work for Cheltenham Borough Council, enhanced by the work of
external agencies, | am able to offer a Low Substantial Assurance opinion in respect of the areas reviewed
during the year.

Significant Governance Issues During 2019/2020

In preparing the 2019/2020 statement and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance arrangements a
number of areas were identified where the Council needs to focus attention and improve arrangements over
the next financial year. These areas of work were to strengthen the control framework. These actions and
outcomes are set out in the table below.

No Key Area of Focus Planned Actions Lead officer | Outcome

1 Clearview Focus on full implementation of | Darren Knight | Progress
Risk, Organisational delayed and
Performance and Project rollout ongoing
Management modules into 2021/2022

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 127




STATEMENT (Page 182iTs 2020/21

2 Procurement Ensure there is capacity to | Gill Morris Not completed
undertake all procurements ongoing review.
required by CBC

3 Financial Rules Training | Develop module for Learning | Gemma Bell | Not completed
Management System due to COVID19
rollover to 2021-
22 action plan

4 Availability of Training | Consolidate training budgets and | Darren Knight | Completed and

Budgets ensure they are available to |/ PaulJones ready for
support training requirements 2021/2022
5 The Cheltenham Trust | Processes to be reviewed. Paul Jones Completed
manual financial

processes as per audit
recommendations

6 Impact of COVID19 Recovery Strategy ELT / Darren | Completed and
Knight lead Recovery
Strategy
approved by
Cabinet

Significant Governance Issues During 2020/2021

There were no significant governance issues identified during 2020/2021.

9. Approval of Leader and Chief Executive

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance
framework by the Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee, and that the arrangements continue to
be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework.

Signed on behalf of Cheltenham Borough Council:

Rowena Hay Gareth Edmundson
Leader of the Authority Chief Executive
Date: XX XXX 2021 Date: XX XXXX 2021

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 128




Agenda Iltem 8
Page 183

Cheltenham Borough Council

Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee — 22" September

2021
Internal Audit Progress Report

Accountable member
Accountable officer

Ward(s) affected

Cabinet Member Finance and Assets, Councillor Peter Jeffries
Paul Jones, Executive Director — Finance and Assets

All

Key/Significant
Decision

No

Executive summary

Recommendations

The Council must ensure that it has sound systems of internal control that
facilitate the effective management of all the Council’s functions. The work
delivered by SWAP Internal Audit Services (SWAP), the Council’s internal
audit service, is one of the control assurance sources available to the Audit,
Compliance and Governance Committee, the Executive Leadership Team
and Corporate Management Team and supports the work of the external
auditor.

The Annual Internal Audit Opinion presented to the Audit, Compliance and
Governance Committee provides an overall assurance opinion at the end of
the financial year. This Internal Audit Progress Report, however, is designed
to give the Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee the opportunity to
comment on the work completed by the partnership and

provide ‘through the year’ comment and assurances on the control

environment.

The Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee considers the
progress report and makes comment on its content as necessary

Financial implications

There are no financial implications arising from the report

Contact officer: Gemma Bell, Head of Finance (Deputy Section 151
Officer)

Gemma.Bell@cheltenham.gov.uk, 07341 780601

Legal implications

None specific arising from the report recommendation

Contact officer: One Legal
legal.services@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272012

HR implications
(including learning and
organisational
development)

There are no specific HR implications arising from the content of the
report. The HR Team continue to work closely with CBC and SWAP to
ensure that any HR related recommendations from audits are actioned.

Contact officer: Georgie Tweddell, HR Business Partner
Georgie.tweddell@publicagroup.uk, 01285 623110

Key risks

That weaknesses in the control framework, identified by the audit activity,
continue to threaten organisational objectives, if recommendations are not

$lphibz5y.docx

Page 1 of 4 Last updated 13 September 2021



mailto:Gemma.Bell@cheltenham.gov.uk

Page 184

implemented.

Corporate and
community plan
Implications

“Internal Auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.” (Chartered Institute of
Internal Auditing UK and Ireland).

Therefore, the internal audit activity impacts on corporate and community

plans.

Environmental and
climate change

Relevant to particular audit assignments and will be identified within
individual reports.

implications
Property/Asset There are no specific Property/Asset Implications arising from the content
Implications of the report

Contact officers: Paul Jones, Executive Director — Finance and
Assets

Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264365

$lphibz5y.docx

Page 2 of 4 Last updated 13 September 2021



mailto:Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk

11

1.2

13

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

Page 185

Background

The Audit Plan for 2021/22 was approved by this Committee on 21%* April 2021. The role and
responsibilities of Internal Audit reflect that it is there to help the organisation to achieve its
objectives, part of the plan has been aligned to elements of this strategy. However, to inform the
audit plan we have also reviewed other key documents, such as the Medium-Term Financial
Strategy, change programme agendas and updates to the business plan, many of which contain
risk assessments

In order to satisfy the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and to
reflect changes within the Council, SWAP needs to focus upon areas where the organisation now
requires assurance. This reinforces the requirement for Internal Audit to follow a more flexible and
risk-based plan.

There is also a benefit to supporting the work of the External Auditor (Grant Thornton). This is in
the form of financial and governance audits to support such activities as value for money.

Reasons for recommendations

This report highlights the work completed by Internal Audit and provides comment on the
assurances provided by this work.

Internal Audit Output

The Internal Audit Service is provided to this Council through SWAP Internal Audit Services
(SWAP). SWAP is a locally authority-controlled company.

The SWAP report attached at Appendix ‘A’, sets out the work undertaken by SWAP for the Council
since the Committee’s last meeting. It follows the risk-based auditing principles, and, therefore, this
is an opportunity for the Committee to be aware of emerging issues which have resulted in SWAP
involvement.

Officers from SWAP will be in attendance at the Committee meeting and will be available to address
Members’ questions.

Report author Lucy Cater, Assistant Director, SWAP Internal Audit Services

lucy.cater@swapaudit.co.uk

01285 623340

Appendices 1. Internal Audit Progress Report

$lphibz5y.docx Page 3 of 4 Last updated 13 September 2021




Page 186

$lphibz5y.docx Page 4 of 4 Last updated 13 September 2021



SWAP

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
Assuring = Improving = Protecting

Cheltenham Borough Council
Report of Internal Audit Activity

September 2021

Internal Audit = Risk = Special Investigations ® Consultancy

Unrestricted



The contacts at SWAP in
connection with this report are:

David Hill

Chief Executive
Tel: 01935 848540 Appendix A — Internal Audit Definitions

david.hill@swapaudit.co.uk

° Appendices:

Appendix B — Audit Plan Progress

Lucy Cater Appendix C— Summary of Audit Assignments

Assistant Director

Appendix D — High Priority Findings and Agreed.Actions
Tel: 01285 623340 s 5 Y = g

lucy.cater@swapaudit.co.uk Appendix E — Summary of Agre%ﬁgﬁ'g'
et o
Q
(@)
@D
[ERY
0]
: oo
L}
SWAP SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided by interpretation

imerovig —Prom provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.


mailto:david.hill@swapaudit.co.uk
mailto:lucy.cater@swapaudit.co.uk

Internal Audit Definitions APPENDIX A

At the conclusion of audit
assignment work each review is
awarded a “Control Assurance
Definition”;

Audit Framework Definitions

Control Assurance Definitions

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-
compliance identified. The system of governance, risk management and control is
inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area

e No
e Limited No
e Reasonable

K audited.
e Substantial L X X . X
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is
Limited required to the system of governance, risk management and control to effectively

manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in
Reasonable | place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified which
may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal
Substantial | controls operating effectively and being consistently applied to support the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Non-Opinion — In addition to our opinion based work we will provide consultancy services. The “advice”
offered by Internal Audit in its consultancy role may include risk analysis and evaluation, developing
potential solutions to problems and providing controls assurance. Consultancy services from Internal
Audit offer management the added benefit of being delivered by people with a good understanding of
the overall risk, control and governance concerns and priorities of the organisation.

SWAP SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided by interpretation
cing  bmercing - Pt provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.

68T abed



Audit Plan Progress

APPENDIX B

Recommendations are prioritised
from 1 to 3 on how important they are
to the service/area audited. These are
not necessarily how important they
are to the organisation at a corporate
level.

Each audit covers key risks. For each
audit a risk assessment is undertaken
whereby with management risks for
the review are assessed at the
Corporate inherent level (the risk of
exposure with no controls in place)
and then once the audit is complete
the Auditors assessment of the risk
exposure at Corporate level after the
control environment has been tested.
All assessments are made against the
risk appetite agreed by the SWAP
Management Board.

Audit Framework Definitions

Categorisation of Recommendations
When making recommendations to Management it is important that they know how important the
recommendation is to their service. There should be a clear distinction between how we evaluate the risks
identified for the service but scored at a corporate level and the priority assigned to the recommendation. No
timeframes have been applied to each Priority as implementation will depend on several factors; however, the
definitions imply the importance.

Categorisation of Recommendations

Findings that are fundamental to the integrity of the service’s business processes and require

Priority 1 . . .

the immediate attention of management.
Priority 2 Important findings that need to be resolved by management
Priority 3  Finding that requires attention.

Definitions of Risk

Risk Reporting Implications
High Issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of both senior management and the
& Audit Committee.
Medium  Issues which should be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility.
Low Issues of a minor nature or best practice where some improvement can be made.

06T abed

Page 6



Audit Plan Progress APPENDIX B

No
. . - Comments
Audit Type Audit Area Status Opinion of Priority
Rec 1 2 3
2020/21 Audits in Draft / In Progress at Annual Opinion
Key Financial Control Payroll Final Report Low 0 See Appendix C
Y y P Substantial PP
. . Medium Due to the sensitive nature of the
IcT Systems Admin Final Report Reasonable 2 2 audit the report is not published
- . Low Due to the sensitive nature of the
ICT Data Recovery Capabilities Final Report Substantial 1 1 audit the report is not published
SWAP SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided by interpretation

provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.

T6T abed



Audit Plan Progress APPENDIX B

No
Comments
Audit Type Audit Area Status Opinion of Priority
Rec 2
2021/22 Audit Plan
. terl i f t
Operational Accounts Payable In Progress Quarterly review of payments
made
G fP d . High .
Governance ov.ernance ot Frogrammes an Final Report '8 2 2 See Appendix C
Projects Reasonable
. S
Operational Procurement Cards cope
Agreed
Operational Election Expenses — Treatment of Scope
P VAT Agreed
Follow-Up Planning Enforcement In Progress
Operational Procurement (Contract In Progress
P Management and Monitoring) &
. . . Audit Brief
Operational Publica Performance Information uart sre
drafted
Governance Risk Management In Progress
Key Financial Control Revenues and Benefits
e Council Tax and National Non- Scope
Domestic Rates Agreed
e Housing and Council Tax Scope
Benefits Agreed
Key Financial Control Core Financials
e Accounts Payable
e Main Accounting and Audit Brief
Accounts Receivable Drafted

26T abed

Page 8



Audit Plan Progress APPENDIX B

and Client Support

No
Comments
Audit Type Audit Area Status Opinion of Priority
Rec 2
¢ Payroll Scope Agreed
e Treasury Management and
e In Progress
Bank Reconciliation
Key Financial Control Human Resources
Other Support Service provided
Publi
Key Financial Control by Publica .
e Procurement (Compliance
with Strategy)
Grant Certification Disabled Facilities Grants
Grant Certification Restart Grants In Progress
Follow-Ups of Recommendations
Follow-Up made in Substantial and On Going
Reasonable Audits
Other Audit Involvement \L/JVnc:;klng with the Counter Fraud On Going
Other Audit Involvement Management of the IA Function On Going

Other Audit Involvement

Contingency — Provision for New
Work based on emerging risks

€6T abed

Page 9



Summary of Audit Findings APPENDIX C

The following information provides a brief summary of each audit review finalised since the last
Committee update

SWAP SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided by interpretation
""""""""""""""""""" provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.

v6T obed



Payroll — Final Report — June 2021

To provide assurance key controls within Payroll are operating effectively to ensure that payments are accurate, appropriately authorised and made in a

Audit Objective . : S
timely manner, also that the risks of fraudulent payments are minimised.

Assurance Opinion Number of Agreed Actions Risks Reviewed Assessment

) Priority Number
A sound system of governance, risk

management and control exist, with Priority 1 0
internal controls operating effectively
and being consistently applied to

support the achievement of objectives . 0
n in the area audited. riority

Salary payments are made incorrectly or
fraudulently resulting in financial loss and
reputational damage.

Total 0

Key Findings Audit Scope
Payroll processes have not changed because of home working. Basic payroll process notes were The areas reviewed are as follows:
supplied for review along with the monthly payroll checklist. Review of the checklist found some items
were not completed; Publica have agreed changes will be made to the checklist going forward to ensure e Key Controls — Reconciliation of payroll to the general Q)
the correct tasks and reports are included, and process notes will also be updated to state when they ledger, production and independent review of exception «Q
were last reviewed. reports, payroll authorisation process. ®
One recommendation from 2018/19 has been implemented. One recommendation from 2019/20 is e Follow up of recommendations made in previous audits. B
still outstanding. Two previously outstanding recommendations now have compensating controls in e Sample testing of permanent and temporary contract (1
place. variations processed between April 20 — February 2021.

Reconciliation of payroll to the general ledger is not undertaken, but a year-end reconciliation of the

payroll control account is completed, and this is operating effectively. Discussions were held with the Publica HR Manager -

o ] ; . Recruitment, Business Centre & Payroll.
One of the variations in our sample was processed before home working was introduced and

supporting paperwork is physically in the offices, so we have been unable to assess if it has been
correctly authorised and entered onto the system. We received satisfactory responses to the rest of
our testing queries to support permanent and temporary contract variations were processed in
accordance with guidance.

Monthly variance reports are produced to investigate exceptions, and these are reviewed by a senior
officer. Appropriate payroll authorisation controls are in place.

Other Relevant Information

Due to Covid-19, payroll officers are working from home unless essential they need to be in the office. Documentation required for new starters, leavers and variations to contracts is
the same as before the pandemic but supplied via email.

Unrestricted



Audit Objective

Assurance Opinion

Key Findings

Clearview

Governance of Programmes and Projects — Final Report — August 2021

governance of programmes and projects has been adopted.

Number of Agreed Actions

Priority Number

There is a generally sound system of
governance, risk management and
control in place. Some issues, non-
compliance or scope for improvement 2
were identified which may put at risk

the achievement of objectives in the 0
area audited. Total 2

:

The Project Management Guide on the CBC intranet contains old content and outdated project
template documents, as well as the current guidance, so the council’s approach is not clear.

Benefits realisation processes are inconsistent. The Business Change Team Leader advised the tracking,
monitoring and evaluation of benefits realisation is a service area responsibility. The officer explained
that Clearview system features will be utilised to address this. While new processes are being
embedded service area responsibilities must be clearly stated in guidance. It would be helpful for ELT
to have an ongoing oversight of projects and any benefits realised.

Current guidance confirms all projects must have a PID (project initiation document) and business case.
This sets out the scope, estimated costs, anticipated outcomes and roles and responsibilities. ELT
(Executive Leadership Team) and cabinet portfolio member approval is required before starting a
project

Projects and programmes are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee and ELT. Projects are
ratified by the Technical Design Authority and Commercial Services Board. Project risks scoring 16+ are
considered by ELT for inclusion on the corporate risk register.

The objective of the audit is to review the methodology and documentation used by the Council to ensure an efficient and effective approach to the

Risks Reviewed Assessment

If there is an ineffective Programme and
Project Management framework, then the
Council may not deliver the anticipated
outcomes and their associated benefits
within timescale or budget, potentially
leading to non-delivery of corporate aims and
objectives, financial loss or reputational
damage.

Audit Scope

A high-level review of Cheltenham’s approach to programme
and project governance was undertaken in June 2021.
Discussions were held with the Executive Director of People &
Change and the Business Change Team Leader. The
methodology and documentation relating to the areas below
were reviewed.

e Planning and approval processes

e  Reporting and monitoring arrangements.

e Roles and responsibilities

e  Review of outcomes and the achievement of
objectives.

CBC are in the process of implementing Clearview across the organisation which will help to manage programmes and projects. Clearview will be used as a central system to hold all
project documentation, track project progress and monitor project risks. Once embedded it is hoped it will rectify process inconsistencies and provide management oversight of all CBC
projects and programmes. It is important the system is administered effectively and monitored by senior management regularly as it will only be as good as the information input by

officers.

Unrestricted

96T abed



APPENDIX D

High Priority Findings and Agreed Actions

/6T abed

Audit Name Priority | Finding Agreed Action Due Date | Update September 2021
Systems 2 Previous Recommendations not Jan 2022
Admin implemented
45115
Systems 2 Some controls not as robust as expected Jan 2022
Admin
45236
Governance of 2 The Corporate Project Management | ¢  We will review the intranet and | Oct 2021
Programmes Guidelines Document (2016) and old remove old content from the
and Projects template documentation from 2016 are project management guide.
45523 in the project management guide. We | ¢  We will review and update

were advised the guide was updated in project template

2020, but old content has not yet been documentation.

removed. The Business Change Team

Leader confirmed the resource that

would action this has been involved with

the response to the pandemic and

elections.
Governance of 2 Benefits realisation processes are e We will update principle 4 on | Oct 2021
Programmes currently inconsistent. The Business the project management guide
and Projects Change Team Leader advised Clearview to state benefits realisation is
45523 will be used going forward to inform the responsibility of the service

managers when this needs to be area.

completed. The officer advised service e ELT will ensure there is

areas should have ownership of tracking ongoing oversight of projects

outcomes and user experiences; and programmes in Clearview.

however, this is not clearly stated in the

project management guide.
Accounts 2 Amendments to supplier accounts | We will contact Publica Business Sept
Payable cannot be monitored. World On System Support & 2021
45450 Maintenance to investigate how we

can monitor amendments made to
supplier accounts, and we will
monitor account amendments
weekly.

Unrestricted



High Priority Recommendation Follow-Up APPENDIX D

86T abed

requirements to ensure a structured
recovery in the event of a disruption to
service. Business applications have been
grouped together and documented in the
ICT BCP plans, however there are some
inconsistencies between the criticality of
Service area’s tolerable downtime, and
the potential restoration of those
services by the ICT team. There are also
inconsistences within the plan itself
whereby it is stated Business
Applications will be restored within 48
hours, but then also state recovery will
be within 1 week to 10 days.

2. Arevised BCM & Emergency
Plans template is being
introduced by CBC DEPLO / ICT
Audit & Compliance Manager.

Audit Name Priority | Finding Agreed Action Due Date | Update September 2021
Human 2 The Action Plan, which underpins CBC’s | In line with the People Strategy and | Jun 2021 | Awaiting update response from the Service Manager.
Resources People Strategy, does not include | the Council's aspirations and
(Learning and timeframes, target dates or key | objectives, a
Development) deliverables. It would benefit from more | formalised/documented work plan
45225 frequent review and update to ensure | will be produced annually to detail
that actions are delivered on time and in | the work required of the Learning
line with requirements. The Action Plan | and Development Team by
or equivalent revised document should | Cheltenham Borough Council. This
be shared with CBC ELT on a regular basis | work plan will include an outline of
to provide oversight and ensure actions | the project or work required, key
meet the objectives set out in the CBC | deliverables and timeframes.
People Strategy. Quarterly progress reports will be
produced for the Executive
Leadership Team (ELT). At the end
of the year, a summary of work
delivered will also be produced
based on the work plan and shared
with ELT.
ICT Business 2 It is important the ICT Service have a full | 1. Work on the Asset Inventory Dec 2021 | Asset inventory work is in progress and ongoing. Hardware
Continuity understanding of each Service Area and has already commenced and is and Software inventory Audits are due to be undertaken in
44817 the wider organisation’s business to be completed. this year’s Audit plan.

Unrestricted



High Priority Recommendation Follow-Up APPENDIX D

Audit Name Priority | Finding Agreed Action Due Date | Update September 2021
Asset 2 Reconciliation between the Uniform | Work with finance to implement a May Action is progressing but had been delayed due to Covid-19.
Management system and the Council’s finance system | process whereby income recorded 2021 A meeting has been arranged in August with a software
44678 is not completed as per the Financial | in Uniform is reconciled with the developer to support the integration of both systems.
Rules. Business World system in
accordance with the financial rules. An extension until the 31.10.2021 was agreed.
ICT Incident 2 As part of the Information Security | ICT Audit and Compliance Manager April The refresh and update of all ICT Policies is in progress,
Management framework of policies, the Incident | will review and update all ICT 2021 however the new target date for completion and issue of
44560 Management Policy is out of date and | Security Policies following the draft Policies for review/input, is 30 September 2021.
requires review, update, and approval. | completion of the Cyber Security
Update of the policies has been impacted | audit report. The aim to have
by the Covid-19 pandemic, and the need | drafted policies by April 2021 for
for a review is recognised by the ICT Audit | circulation to all network users.
& Compliance Manager.
ICT Incident 2 There is a lack of detailed standard | We have now commenced with Jan 2022 | Ongoing
Management operating procedural documentation. | documenting our cyber incident
44562 Incident management investigation is | and investigation managements The ICT Audit and Compliance Manager is working with the
currently based on a high-level process | procedures Security Engineer on an incident playbook that define the
flow-chart denoted in the Incident procedures and steps to be taken during an incident
Management policy; however, this lacks investigation. On target for completion by January 2022.
detailed information on how to conduct
an incident investigation.

66T abed

Unrestricted



High Priority Recommendation Follow-Up APPENDIX D

00z abed

Audit Name Priority | Finding Agreed Action Due Date | Update September 2021

Payroll 2 We recommend that all new starters are | A piece of work has been carried Sep 2020 | We were advised that the current HR Pre-employment

43699 subject to a BPSS (or similar) check out to re-write the pre- screening procedures are based on ‘types of job’ and
regardless of the role to which they are employment check process. The HR ‘appointments’ whereby risk assessments are conducted to
being recruited. This will ensure that and Recruitment Teams are also set the screening requirements for different types of jobs.
consistent checks of right to work, working towards the They also ensure BPSS checks are performed on all
employment history and basic criminal implementation of an Application employees who have access to sensitive information.
record checks are carried out on all Tracking System (ATS), subject to

employees. approval at Publica and the Agreed Action Completed.

Councils, which would help to

mitigate the risks identified. The

ATS would not allow for

progression in the recruitment and

onboarding process without

specific criteria being fulfilled first

(e.g. obtaining references, ID

checks etc).
Procurement 2 Assurance is sought from Publica that | Agreed Sep 2020 | Procurement considerations are identified in CBC's Social
and Contract the  Procurement and  Contract Value Policy, which is published on the website. Thereis a
Management Management Strategy is reviewed and new Investment Policy and a Capital Policy which also feeds
42974 updated to ensure it meets the needs of into the overall aims/objectives.

Publica and the partner Councils. Internally, a Procurement Protocol for Property Services is
available on the intranet and guidance held within the online
procurement system.

Recommendation Closed.
Safer 2 We recommend that HR policies relating | These policies will be reviewed to Aug 2020 | Policies have been updated and are available on CBC Intranet
Recruitment to DBS issues and recruitment of ex- | assess whether they are still
43184 offenders are reviewed to ensure they | relevant and necessary, and Recommendation Closed
are still relevant and are updated in line | updates made accordingly.
with current procedure and legislation.

Unrestricted



High Priority Recommendation Follow-Up APPENDIX D

Audit Name Priority | Finding Agreed Action Due Date | Update September 2021
Accounts 2 Duplicate subscriptions should be | All subscriptions will be corrected | Aug 2020 | Finding has been actioned.
Receivable reviewed, and appropriate corrections | where applicable. Will discuss with
43752 made. Any duplicate payments should | teamtoensure that prior to setting Agreed Action Completed
be returned to the debtor. up new subscriptions a search for
existing subscriptions is
performed. If any queries arise the
AR officer will refer to the service
area for clarification.
Responsible Officer — AR Team
Leader
Integrity of 2 We recommend that precise work Work has commenced to gather, Mar 2020 | Follow-up delayed due to Covid-19.
Data instructions to complete Ml reports are store and utilise Ml data centrally.
41980 documented so that personnel The work is being overseen by the Awaiting update response from the Service Manager.
responsible for producing Ml reports, Contract Manager.
are able to gather and report on the
information in a consistent and accurate
manner, especially as the process is only
undertaken once every three months.
We also recommend that, peer review is
completed on management information
to verify its accuracy.

TOg abed

Unrestricted



High Priority Recommendation Follow-Up APPENDIX D

20z abed

of Contractors
42872

Services team, return any invoice that
does not contain detailed information
on the works completed, including
materials and labour costs and ensure
only sufficiently detailed invoices are
approved for payment.

and requested that a breakdown of
invoices are provided in all cases.
All staff have been instructed to
return invoice if they are not
adequately broken down.

Audit Name Priority | Finding Agreed Action Due Date | Update September 2021
Integrity of 2 As stated by Publica HR, we recommend | We will commence work to update | Mar 2020 | This work was temporarily parked due to the pandemic. It
Data that a project be initiated to review and | the emergency contact data for has been picked up again now and is likely for phase 1 to be
41849 bring up to date CBC employee's CBC employees by end of Feb completed by the end of July 2021.

personal data. HR Processes should also | 2020.

ensure that required data is captured We have shared the data that we All CBC employee data has been collated and will be updated

and recorded accurately. could collect with CBC and we are to the BW system by the end of September.

investigating with ICT how we can

CBC should work with the HR service to develop self-service so that Recommendation Closed.

determine the information they require | employees can view and update

to be collected as part of the refresh their personal information — we

project and ongoing collection. will provide a plan on how this

could be undertaken this by 31st

Availability of Self-Service functionality March 2020

to empower employees to view and

update their own personal information

should be investigated.

Personal data collection and use should

be completed in line with the Data

Protection legislation, including the

deletion of records that are no longer

necessary.
Property Use 2 We recommend that the Property We have contacted the contractors | Mar 2020 | Follow-Up audit complete and recommendation actioned.

Recommendation Closed.

Unrestricted



High Priority Recommendation Follow-Up APPENDIX D

Audit Name

Priority

Finding

Agreed Action

Due Date

Update September 2021

Property Use
of Contractors
42062

2

We recommend

i that the frequency of budget
monitoring and reconciliation between
the Council’s financial system and the
Uniform system is undertaken in
accordance with the Financial Rules so
that any issues related to budgets and
expenditure are identified at an early
stage. Regular management information
reporting should be implemented to
ensure transparency of the situation.

ii. Consideration should be given to
investigating whether the Uniform and
Business World systems can be linked to
aid budget monitoring processes.

Publica Finance has now appointed
an accountant to liaise with and we
will reconcile the Uniform and
Agresso figures quarterly. Reviews
are set up to feed into the financial
reporting cycle.

A brainstorming session has been
set up to review the way Uniform
and Agresso are used and explore
what functionality and data can to
be shared across systems. Once
this is determined, we will liaise
with Publica IT to progress further.

Mar 2020

Follow-Up audit complete and recommendation actioned.

Recommendation Closed.

Property Use
of Contractors
42058

We recommend

i that process documents and
associated procedures, aligned with
CBC’s Contract and Financial Rules, are
documented and put in place so that a
consistent approach to tasks can be
followed and undertaken within the
team as soon as possible.

ii. A review of the service design
should be undertaken to ensure that
appropriate and effective processes and
structures are in place.

Develop flow charts and sub
processes to be agreed and signed
off by section 151 officer.

Started and talked already with
Director and Publica Procurement
to produce report on options going
forward for strategic procurement
of building related needs.

Mar 2020

We issued a follow up report in April 21, confirming this
action had been partially implemented.

But due to staff departures, the remaining elements have not
been completed.

Further follow up required.

€0¢ abed

Unrestricted



High Priority Recommendation Follow-Up APPENDIX D

Leavers' is developed and documented
and that complies with the
requirements set out in the Information
Security and Access Control Policy. The
overarching process should apply to and
embrace all systems that may not be
included within the standard ICT team
scope and should be available for all
employees to view and follow.

System administrators should then
document or update local processes and
procedures that should be in alignment
with the overarching policy and process
requirements. and documented on a
quarterly basis as per the requirements
of the Risk Management Policy

process for joiners, Movers and
Leavers. A change control process
will be introduced that will
document significant changes to
the ICT infrastructure which will
also align to our ICT User Policies
and guidance.

Audit Name Priority | Finding Agreed Action Due Date | Update September 2021
Property Use 2 We recommend: Now using only framework | Mar 2020 | We issued a follow up report in April 21, confirming attempts
of Contractors i that unless specialist skills are | contractors or obtaining waivers had been made to implement this action.
42057 required to complete specific works, | for non-specialist works.

only approved framework contractors But due to staff departures, the action is ongoing.

are used for general building works. Additional frameworks are being

pursued though One Legal for use Further follow up required.

ii. that the progress of updating | of the GCC framework and Publica

the contractor framework is pursued | Procurement for additional

and if necessary escalated through | frameworks.

Publica/One Legal Client Officers and

Senior Management to ensure focus on

this requirement is maintained.
Systems 2 We recommend a principal Identity and | Our team ICT Administrators are Mar 2020 | Flowcharts have been produced for the starters / leavers /
Admin Access Management process detailing | now updating and documenting variation processes.
41204 requirements for 'Joiners, Movers and | our Access Management system The ICT Audit and Compliance Manager will refresh the ICT

Policies following the completion of the Cyber Security audit
report. He is aiming to have drafted policies by March 2020
for circulation / consultation at CGG and JMT.

Further follow-up has been included in the 2020/21 audit
plan

Revised implementation date to 31/12/20 due to Covid-19.
Annual audit is in progress

The original recommendation related to an Identity & Access
Management Process, which is in place.

Recommendation closed.

0¢ obed

Unrestricted



High Priority Recommendation Follow-Up APPENDIX D

G0z abed

Audit Name Priority | Finding Agreed Action Due Date | Update September 2021
Procurement 2 Budget Holders should regularly | Agreed Dec 2019 | No evidence has been provided of actions carried out by
41029 undertake monitoring of expected responsible officers to support implementation of this
contract spend to actual contract spend recommendation at the time of follow-up.
as part of contract monitoring, to ensure
contracts are managed in accordance As part of the 2020/21 Audit Plan, an audit of the
with strategy, and inform Procurement Management and Monitoring Contracts will be carried out.
of any changes to contract values to The scope of this audit will include budget monitoring
ensure the values recorded on the arrangements in relation to contract spend and will therefore
Contract Register are correct. inform the follow-up of this recommendation.
Revised implementation date to 31/12/20 due to Covid-19
An audit on Contract Management and Monitoring is in
progress, this recommendation will be reviewed as part of
the new audit.
Recommendation Closed
Business 2 Consideration should be given to the An independent review of the CBC Jun 2019 | CBC are currently undertaking a review of BCM
Continuity clarity of the existing template and its BCPs has been agreed with the Civil arrangements which may result in changes to the format of
Management ability to guide an officer in difficult and | Protection Team this will the plan.
39756 stressful times, and adopting an existing | commence after April 2019 when
template, to better meet the authority's | resources become available. The We will pick this up in the 2021/22 Emergency Planning
responsibilities. Corporate BCP will be identified as audit.
the first plan to be reviewed.
Recommendation Closed

Unrestricted



Agreed Actions APPENDIX E

Summary of all Agreed Actions from April 2020 and Progress against them

BCO Priority

1 2 3|Total
TOTAL in Audit Period
(From 4/20) 0 6 5 11
Open and current 3 2 5
Open and Outstanding/Overdue
Subject to follow up 0 3 3 6
Open with date extended 0 0 0 0
Closed 0 0 0 0
Priority

1 2 3|Total
TOTAL in Audit Period
(From 4/20) 0 5 6 11
Open and current 0 4 5 9
Open and Outstanding/Overdue
Subject to follow up 0 1 1 2
Open with date extended 0 0 0
Closed 0 0 0 0

Overall

CBC and Publica Actions Progress

Total 14 8 0
> 3 7 4 0
S
B 2 7 1 0
10
0 5 10 15 20 25

Open and current ® Open and Outstanding/Overdue = Open with date extended M Closed
Subject to follow up

Unrestricted

90¢ abed



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972. Page 207

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972. Page 209

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9
Page 211

Cheltenham Borough Council

Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee — 22 September 2021

Counter Fraud Unit Report

Accountable Member

Cabinet Member Finance and Assets, Councillor Peter Jeffries

Accountable Officer

Paul Jones
Executive Director Finance and Assets
Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected

All indirectly

Key/Significant
Decision

No

Executive summary

The purpose of the report is to provide the Audit, Compliance and Governance
Committee with assurance over the counter fraud activities of the Council. The
Counter Fraud Unit will continue to provide Audit, Compliance and Governance
Committee with direct updates biannually.

Work plans are presented detailing progress and results for consideration and
comment as the body charged with governance in this area.

Recommendations

That the Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee:

a) Notes the report and the work plan at Appendix 2 and makes
comment as necessary.

Financial implications

The report details financial savings generated by the Counter Fraud Unit.

Contact Officer: Paul Jones, Executive Director Finance and Assets
Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk

Legal implications

In general terms, the existence and application of an effective fraud risk
management regime assists the Council in effective financial governance which
is less susceptible to legal challenge.

Contact officer: One Legal

Legalservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk

HR implications
(including learning and
organisational
development)

The HR team continue to work closely with the Counter Fraud Unit on all internal
investigations.

The promotion of effective counter fraud controls and a zero tolerance approach
to internal misconduct promotes a positive work environment.

Contact officer: Clare Jones, , HR Business Partner
Clare.Jones @publicagroup.uk 01242 264355



mailto:Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk
mailto:Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk
mailto:Legalservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk
mailto:Clare.Jones%20@publicagroup.uk

Key risks The Council is reqip

a' e 212’ve|y tackle fraudulent activity in relation to the
abuse of public funa.. g..\, <Zunter Fraud Unit provides assurance in this
area.

Failure to undertake such activity would accordingly not be compliant and
expose the authority to greater risk of fraud and/or corruption.

If the Council does not have effective counter fraud and corruption controls it
risks both assets and reputation.

Corporate and
community plan corruption, whether it is attempted by someone outside or within the Council

Implications such as another organisation, a resident, an employee or Councillor.

In administering its responsibilities; this Council has a duty to prevent fraud and

The Council is committed to an effective counter fraud and corruption culture,
by promoting high ethical standards and encouraging the prevention and
detection of fraudulent activities, thus supporting corporate and community

plans.
Environmental and N/A
climate change
implications
Property/Asset There are no property implications associated with this report.
Implications

Contact officer: Gemma Bell, Head of Finance and Property

Gemma.Bell@cheltenham.gov.uk

1.2.

1.3.
1.4.

1.5.

COUNTER FRAUD UNIT REPORT

The Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee oversees the Council’s counter fraud
arrangements and it is therefore appropriate for the Committee to be updated in relation to such
activity.

Work plans have been agreed with the Executive Director Finance and Assets and the
Council's Management. The Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee, as the body
charged with governance in this area, is presented with a copy of the work plan for information.

Attached at Appendix 2 is a copy of the work plan for 2021/2022.

The Counter Fraud Unit (CFU) has been supporting work streams created as a consequence of
the pandemic by providing advice relating to fraud risk and abuse, most significantly in relation
to the Business Grant Schemes. The CFU have assisted with the application and verification
processes of all schemes to date, the team has received 75 referrals to review resulting in the
following:

e 28 cases that were confirmed as eligible and the grants were paid.

e 18 cases of loss prevention, in that the grant monies were not paid, totalling £205,668 (2
classed as fraudulent attempt).

e 12 cases of post payment recovery totalling £96,098 (5 classed as fraud) have been identified
and invoices have been raised. Of this £96,098, £69,764 has been repaid.

e 17 cases have been referred back to the team with recommendations for service area
decisions.

¢ In addition, 4 cases have been opened as active fraud investigations.

All Local Authorities participate in the Cabinet Office’s National Fraud Initiative, which is a data
matching exercise to help prevent and detect fraud nationwide. The use of data by the Cabinet
Office in a data matching exercise is carried out with statutory authority under Part 6 of the Local



mailto:Gemma.Bell@cheltenham.gov.uk

Audit and Accountability Act 2014. It (I'Da e' 213're the consent of the individuals concerned
under Data Protection Legislation. g

69 matches have been received via the Cabinet Office’s National Fraud Initiative which
has collated and compared business grant data nationwide in relation to the original
schemes paid during the first lockdown. These matches have been reviewed by the CFU:
55 required no further action and 14 cases relating to duplicate payment anomalies
require further investigation.

The team have reviewed 1,621 matches relating to single person discount anomalies.
310 accounts have been identified as requiring further enquiries.

The team have reviewed 191 matches relating to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and
Housing Benefit claims.

1.6. In addition to the work carried out under the annual work plan attached at Appendix 2, as a
dedicated investigatory support service, the CFU undertakes a wide range of enforcement work
according to the requirements of each Council. This includes criminal investigation and
prosecution support for enforcement teams, investigations into stafffmember fraud and
corruption, or tenancy and housing fraud investigation work.

1.7. Since 1 April 2021:

The team has received 12 referrals from across the Council and closed 8 cases. This
excludes any Council Tax Reduction Scheme referrals.

Single Point of Contact for Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) referrals - 8 Local
Authority Information Exchange Forms have been received and 6 cases have been
referred to DWP for action.

Undertaking the investigation of alleged fraud and abuse in relation to the Council Tax
Reduction Scheme (Council Tax Support). 16 cases have been referred and 8 cases
were closed. This resulted in 1 Criminal Sanction (Penalty £482) and £2,201 of
recoverable Council Tax Support being calculated.

2 disciplinary investigations were referred by the HR Team, in both cases, the employees
resigned prior to the conclusion of the investigation.

Work with Cheltenham Borough Homes 2021/2022:

o 77 referrals received requesting checks for homelessness, right to buy,
succession or housing applications. In relation to right to buy applications,
additional checks have been introduced to ensure that any resultant benefit issues
are addressed.

o 17 referrals have been made relating to housing and tenancy fraud such as
abandonment, illegal succession, subletting, false housing applications, right to
buy fraud.

o One case of Housing Application Fraud was successfully prosecuted in absence.
The defendant received a Fine of £180 and was ordered to pay costs of £30. In
addition, a Caution was issued to a member of the family for assisting with the
fraudulent.

o 1 case resulting in the termination of tenancy and return of the property, 1 case
resulting in the withdrawal of a right to buy application and 1 case resulting in the
withdrawal of a housing application. Loss avoidance figure £223,000.

Report author

Emma Cathcart
Counter Fraud Unit Manager
01285 623356

Emma.Cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk

Appendices

1. Risk Assessment

2. Work Plan 2021/2022



mailto:Emma.Cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk

Risk Assessment Appendix 1
The risk Original risk score Managing risk
(impact x likelihood)
Risk | Risk description Risk Date raised Impact | Likeli- | Score Control Action Deadline Responsible | Transferred
ref. Owner 1-5 hood officer to risk
1-6 register
1 The authority suffers Executive | December 3 3 9 Reduce Maintain a Counter Ongoing | Chief
material loss and Director 2014 Fraud Team to Finance
reputational damage due Finance reduce the likelihood Officer
to fraud and of the risk
Assets materialising and
also to help recover
losses, thus reducing
the impact.
2 Without dedicated Executive | September | 3 4 12 Retain a specialist Ongoing | Chief
specialist staff in place, the | Director 2016 Counter Fraud Unit to Financial
Council may be unable to Finance tackle the misuse of Officer
take effective and efficient | and public funds on
measures to counter fraud, | Assets behalf of the Council. T
potentially resulting in Q
authority suffering material Q
losses due to fraud and @
error N
Explanatory notes l.;
Impact — an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical)
Likelihood — how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant, 5 high and 6 a very high probability)
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close




Cheltenham Borough Council 2021/2022

Appendix 2

Department / Contact Task

Governance Delivery of two reports for Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee
Governance Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally - Checklist Compliance
Governance Government Functional Standard 013: Counter Fraud - Compliance

Policy Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy

Policy Corporate Enforcement Policy

Policy CTAX, CTRS & HB Penalty and Prosecution Policy

Policy Proceeds of Crime & Anti-Money Laundering Policy

Policy Whistle-Blowing Policy

Policy RIPA (Surveillance & CHIS)

Policy IPA (Acquisition of Communications Data)

Policy Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and Enforcement

Bribery and Corruption

Assessment Template Review

GT¢ obed

Bribery and Corruption

Policy and Procedure: Staff Declarations of Interest / Conflicts of Interest

Bribery and Corruption

Review of the Gifts and Hospitality Policy and Procedure

Serious and Organised Crime

Checklist Review

Serious and Organised Crime

Proactive Fraud Drive - transient / cash businesses

Statutory / Regulatory

Collation and Publication of Fraud Transparency Data

Statutory / Regulatory

RIPA / IPA - Annual Report to Members / Advisory / Inspection SPoC

Strategy : Detection

Housing Waiting List review

Strategy : Detection

National Fraud Initiative Match Reviews - Revenues / Benefits

Strategy : Detection

Procurement - Supplier Payment Review




Department / Contact Task

Strategy : Detection Business Grants - Assurance and Enforcement Activities

Strategy : Detection NNDR Empty Premises / CTAX LTE Property Visits

Strategy : Detection SMI Review (sample 20)

Strategy : Detection Holiday / Airbnb Review

Strategy : Prevention Development / Review of Fraud Response Plan

Strategy : Prevention Development of Fraud Awareness Literature (staff)

Strategy : Prevention Development of Right to Buy Debt Recovery Process

Strategy : Prevention Development of Service Specific Fraud Risk Register

Strategy : Prevention Tra?n!ng Members / Staff - Fraud Awareness / RIPA & IPA / CPIA, PACE, Disclosure
Training

Strategy : Prevention Review of HR Recruitment and Vetting Policy and Procedures

RIPA = Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
IPA = Investigatory Powers Act 2016
CPIA = Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act 1996

PACE = Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984

9T¢ abed



Agenda Item 10
Page 217

Cheltenham Borough Council

Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee — 22 September 2021

Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and

Enforcement Policy

Accountable Member

Leader of the Council, Councillor Rowena Hay

Accountable Officer

Paul Jones
Executive Director Finance and Assets
Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected

All indirectly

Key/Significant
Decision

No

Executive summary

To present the Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee with a new Use
of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and Enforcement Policy for
comment.

Recommendations

That the Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee considers the
Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and Enforcement
Policy and provides comment to Cabinet.

Financial implications

The adoption and approval of this Policy will support the Council’s objectives in
reducing crime and financial loss.

Contact Officer: Paul Jones, Executive Director Finance and Assets
Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk

Legal implications

The Council is required to ensure that it complies with the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000, the Investigatory Powers Act 2016 and any other
relevant/statutory legislation regarding investigations as well as current Data
Protection legislation. Any authorisations for directed/covert surveillance or the
acquisition of communications data undertaken should be recorded
appropriately in the Central Register.

The Council has a statutory obligation for enforcing a wide range of legislation,
where it is necessary and proportionate to do so. Human Rights implications are
a consideration of this type of activity and this is included within the Policies.

The adoption of the policy is, under the Policy Framework, a matter for Cabinet.

Contact officer: One Legal
Legalservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk

HR implications
(including learning and
organisational
development)

Council staff with enforcement responsibilities will be made aware of this Policy.

Contact officer: Clare Jones, , HR Business Partner
Clare.Jones @publicagroup.uk 01242 264355

Key risks

The RIPA and IPA Policies demonstrate the Council’s consideration of
necessity, proportionality and public interest when deciding on surveillance
activity or the decision to obtain personal communication data. The application
of the Policies and Procedures, to govern surveillance and the obtaining of
personal communications data, minimises the risk that an individual’s human



mailto:Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk
mailto:Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk
mailto:Legalservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk
mailto:Clare.Jones%20@publicagroup.uk

rights will be breaclpag_e 2'18|ore it protects the Council from allegations of

the same.

Corporate and In administering its responsibilities; the Council has a duty to enforce the law

community plan and prevent wrongdoing, whether it is attempted by someone outside or within

Implications the Council such as another organisation, a resident, an employee or
Councillor, thus supporting corporate priorities and community plans.

Environmental and N/A

climate change

implications

Property/Asset There are no property implications associated with this report.

Implications Contact officer: Gemma Bell, Head of Finance and Property
Gemma.Bell@cheltenham.gov.uk

1.1. The Counter Fraud Unit was tasked with reviewing and developing the Council’'s Policy and

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

procedures on accessing the internet and social media for investigations and enforcement
purposes.

The Council’s Policies are based on the legislative requirements of the Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) and the Investigatory Powers Act 2016 (IPA) and the Codes of Practice
relating to directed surveillance and the acquisition of communications data.

Whilst there has been a general decline in the use of covert surveillance activity, Councils have
come under increased scrutiny in this area by Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO)
during inspections and there are a number of recommendations in their annual reports,
procedures and guidance.

IPCO confirms that, where inspections reveal activity - particularly with regard to intelligence
gathering through the use of the internet and social media - evidence should demonstrate that
consideration has been given to whether the activity could be considered surveillance and the
appropriate authorisation sought.

Existing arrangements have been reviewed and the Policy for ensuring compliance has been
developed, attached at Appendix 2. The Policy is generic and broad to ensure that the integrity
of investigations and methods of detection are not revealed.

The procedure that derives from this Policy is a confidential document available to members of
staff involved in investigation work only who are authorised to undertake research and
investigation using open source internet applications (as investigative tools) or other civil or
criminal enforcement and recovery work.

The Council takes responsibility for ensuring its procedures relating to surveillance and the
acquisition of communications data are continuously improved and all activity is recorded.

Report author Emma Cathcart

Counter Fraud Unit Manager
01285 623356

Emma.Cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment

2. Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and
Enforcement Policy

Background Information | Cabinet Report — February 2020 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act

2000 Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence Source Policy /
Investigatory Powers Act 2016 Acquisition of Communications Data Policy



mailto:Gemma.Bell@cheltenham.gov.uk
mailto:Emma.Cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk

Risk Assessment Appendix 1

The risk Original risk score Managing risk
(impact x likelihood)
Risk | Risk description Risk Date raised Impact | Likeli- | Score Control Action Deadline Responsible | Transferre
ref. Owner 1-5 hood officer d to risk
1-6 register

1 If the Local Authority fails to Chief January 4 2 8 Put in place effective | Ongoing Chief

put in place adequate policy Executiv | 2020 management and Executive

and process covering the use | e guidance.

of RIPA / IPA powers then it Promote the

risks damage to its guidance with

reputation and financial loss mangers and

enforcement officers

Explanatory notes

Impact — an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical)
Likelihood — how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6

(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant, 5 high and 6 a very high probability)

Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close

6T¢ obed



This page is intentionally left blank



Use of the Internet and Social MediePage 22 litions and Enforcement Policy

Version Control

Document Name: Use of the Internet and Social Media for Investigations
and Enforcement Policy

Version: 1

Responsible Officer: | Emma Cathcart, Counter Fraud Unit

Approved by: Cabinet / Executive Committee
Date First
Approved: TBC

Next Review Date

Retention Period: N/A

Revision History

Revision date Version Description

Consultees

Internal

External

Enforcement Lead Officers

Governance Group

Legal Services

Corporate Management

Audit / Audit and General Purposes / Audit and
Governance / Audit, Compliance and Governance
Committee

Distribution

Name

Enforcement Officers

Use of the Internet and Social Media for Investigations and Enforcement Policy

Copyright PHF Training, Licensed to CFU Version 1

May 2020
Page 1 of 5




Use of the Internet and Social MediePage 222itions and Enforcement Policy

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION .....cotiiiiiiiiieeceiie e eanns 3
2. SCOPE OF POLICY ...ttt e e e e eennes 3
3. RIS K 4
4. NECESSITY / JUSTIFICATION ..ottt 4
5. PROPORTIONALITY L.ttt e e e 4
6. PRIVATE INFORMATION .....ooiiiiiiii e 5
7. REVIEWING THE ACTIVITY .ot 5
8. USE OF MATERIAL ...t 5

Use of the Internet and Social Media for Investigations and Enforcement Policy May 2020
Copyright PHF Training, Licensed to CFU Version 1 Page 2 of 5



Use of the Internet and Social MediePage 223itions and Enforcement Policy

11

1.2

1.3

14

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

INTRODUCTION

Online open source research is widely regarded as the collection, evaluation and
analysis of material from online sources available to the public, whether by payment
or otherwise, to use as intelligence and evidence.

The use of online open source Internet and Social Media research is a method of
obtaining information to assist the Council with its regulatory and enforcement
functions. It can also assist with service delivery issues. However, the use of the
Internet and Social Media is constantly evolving and with it the risks, particularly
regarding breaches of privacy under Article 8 of the Human Rights Act (HRA) 1998
and other operational risks.

The Council is a Public Authority in law under the HRA, and as such, the staff of
the Authority must always work within this legislation. This applies to research on
the Internet.

Researching, recording, storing, and using open source information regarding a
person or group of people must be both necessary and proportionate and take
account of the level of intrusion against any person. The activity may also require
authorisation and approval by a Magistrate under the Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act (RIPA) 2000. To ensure that any resultant interference with a person’s
Article 8 Right (respect for private and family life) is lawful, the material must be
retained and processed in accordance with the principles of the General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR) 2016 and Data Protection legislation.

SCOPE OF POLICY

This Policy and associated Procedure establishes the Council’s approach to
ensuring that all online research and investigations are conducted lawfully and
ethically to reduce risk. It provides guidance to all staff within the Council, about
legislative framework and implications associated with online Internet and Social
Media research, when engaged in their official capacity. It will also ensure that the
activity undertaken, and any evidence obtained, will withstand scrutiny.

This Policy takes account of the HRA, RIPA, Criminal Procedures and
Investigations Act (CPIA) 1996, Data Protection legislation and regulations and
National Police Chiefs Council (NPCC) Guidance on Open Source
Investigation/Research.

This Policy and associated Procedure will be followed at all times and should be
read, where required, with the RIPA Codes of Practice and any other legislation
and relevant policies mentioned in this document. Should there be any queries
advice can be sought from the RIPA Coordinator within the Counter Fraud Unit.

This Policy should not be exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information
Act 2000.

Use of the Internet and Social Media for Investigations and Enforcement Policy May 2020
Copyright PHF Training, Licensed to CFU Version 1 Page 3 of 5



Use of the Internet and Social MediePage 224tions and Enforcement Policy

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

51

5.2

5.3

54

RISK

Staff must be aware that any activity carried out using the Internet leaves a trace
or footprint which can identify the device used, and, in some circumstances, the
individual carrying out the activity. This may pose a legal and reputational risk to
the Council if they are challenged by the subject of the research for breaching
Article 8.1 of the HRA which states “Everyone has the right to respect for his private
and family life, his home and his correspondence”.

Article 8.2 states “There shall be no interference by a public authority with the
exercise of this right except such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary
in a democratic society in the interests of national security, public safety or the
economic well-being of the country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the
protection of health or morals or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of
others”. Itis therefore important that the Council can demonstrate that such activity
was necessary and proportionate.

Monitoring of an individual’s social media or other open source information on a
repeated or continuous basis could constitute surveillance by a Public Authority and
fall with the realms of RIPA.

Breach of an individual’s rights under the HRA leaves the Council open to claims
for financial compensation and the consequential reputational damage.

Failure to implement and follow a policy could risk compromising the integrity of
evidence and any associated investigation.

NECESSITY / JUSTIFICATION

To justify the intrusion and interference with an individual’s privacy there must be a
clear and lawful reason for the activity. Therefore the necessity for the research
such as the criminal conduct that it is aimed to prevent or detect must be identified
and clearly described. This should be documented with clear objectives. Should
the research fall within RIPA activity, the RIPA authorisation will deal with the
criteria for it to be lawful intrusion.

PROPORTIONALITY

Proportionality involves balancing the level of intrusion of the research on the
subject and other innocent third parties who might be affected by it (collateral
intrusion) against the need for the activity in operational terms.

The Officer must consider and document the benefit to carrying out the activity and
how the benefit will outweigh the intrusion.

The activity will not be proportionate if it is excessive in the circumstances of the
case or if the information which is sought could reasonably be obtained by other
less intrusive means.

All such activity should be carefully managed to meet the objective in question and
must not be arbitrary or unfair.

Use of the Internet and Social Media for Investigations and Enforcement Policy May 2020
Copyright PHF Training, Licensed to CFU Version 1 Page 4 of 5



Use of the Internet and Social MediePage 225itions and Enforcement Policy

6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6.

7.1

8.1

8.2

PRIVATE INFORMATION

Private information is defined in the RIPA Codes of Practice and states it “includes
any information relating to a person’s private or family life. Private information
should be taken generally to include any aspect of a person’s private or personal
relationship with others, including family and professional or business
relationships.”

Prior to, and during, any research Staff must take into account the privacy issues
of any person associated with the research.

There are three broad categories of private information applicable here:

Category 1 - Viewing publically available postings or websites where the person
viewing does not have to register a profile, answer a question, or enter any
significant correspondence in order to view. For example, a typical trader’s
website.

Category 2 - Viewing postings on social networks where the viewer has had to
register a profile but otherwise there is no other restriction on access. This would
include Facebook where there is no need to be accepted as a “friend” to view. For
example a trader has a “shop window” on Facebook advertising a business and
products.

Category 3 - Viewing postings on social networks which require a “friend” or similar
status to view.

REVIEWING THE ACTIVITY

During the course of conducting the Internet open source research, the nature of
the online activity may evolve. It is important that Staff continually assess and
review their activity to ensure it remains lawful and compliant. Where it evolves
into RIPA activity, the RIPA procedure should be followed. If in doubt, Staff should
seek advice from the RIPA Coordinator within the Counter Fraud Unit.

USE OF MATERIAL

The material obtained from conducting open source Internet and Social Media
research may be used as intelligence or evidence.

Any material gathered from the Internet during the course of a criminal investigation
must be retained in compliance with the Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act
(CPIA) Codes of Practice and all material stored in line with the General Data
Protection Regulations (GDPR) data retention policies.

Use of the Internet and Social Media for Investigations and Enforcement Policy May 2020
Copyright PHF Training, Licensed to CFU Version 1 Page 5 of 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee 2021-22 work plan

Item

Author

12 January 2022 (Report deadline : Fri 24 Dec)

IT Security update

John Chorlton/Tony Oladejo

Audit committee update

Grant Thornton

Annual Auditors report (for previous year)

Grant Thornton

Internal audit monitoring report

Internal Audit

Annual governance statement — significant issues action plan

Ann Wolstencroft

Member Development and Training

Darren Knight

Business Continuity Provision in the event of a cyber attack (inc review of databases and

data sources). Exempt report

Darren Knight

Annual Review of Risk Management Policy

Ann Wolstencroft

20 April 2022
Audit progress report and sector updates Grant Thornton
External audit plan (for the current year) Grant Thornton
External Audit Fee Letter (for previous year) Grant Thornton
Annual plan (for the upcoming year) Internal Audit
Internal audit monitoring report Internal Audit
Counter Fraud Unit report (inc. RIPA / IPA update) Counter Fraud Unit
Annual review of Code of Corporate Governance Darren Knight
Annual Governance Statement Darren Knight
Annual Review of Risk Management Policy Ann Wolstencroft

13 July 2022

Internal audit opinion (for the previous year)

Internal Audit

Auditing Standards — communicating with the Audit Committee

Paul Jones/Chair

Statement of Accounts (previous year) (inc. letter of representation)

Finance Team

Annual update on FOI and EIR

Judy Hibbert/Beth Cordingley

September 2022

Audit Findings Report - ISA260 (for the previous year)

Grant Thornton

Internal audit monitoring report

Internal Audit

Counter Fraud update and future work provision

Counter Fraud Unit

/2c abed

TT Wal| epusby



Audit, Compliance and Governance Committee 2021-22 work plan

Item

Author

ANNUAL ITEMS (standing items to be added to the work plan each year)

January

IT Security update

John Chorlton/Tony Oladejo

Audit committee update

Grant Thornton

Annual Auditors report (for previous year)

Grant Thornton

Internal audit monitoring report

Internal Audit

Annual governance statement — significant issues action plan

Ann Wolstencroft

April

Audit progress report and sector updates

Grant Thornton

External audit plan (for the current year)

Grant Thornton

External Audit Fee Letter (for previous year)

Grant Thornton

Annual plan (for the upcoming year)

Internal Audit

Internal audit monitoring report

Internal Audit

Counter Fraud Unit report (inc. RIPA / IPA update)

Counter Fraud Unit

Annual review of Code of Corporate Governance (if CIPFA guidance has changed)

Darren Knight

Annual Governance Statement

Darren Knight

Annual Review of Risk Management Policy

Ann Wolstencroft

July

Internal audit opinion (for the previous year)

Internal Audit

Auditing Standards — communicating with the Audit Committee

Paul Jones/Chair

Statement of Accounts (previous year) (inc. letter of representation)

Finance Team

Annual update on FOI and EIR

Judy Hibbert/Beth Cordingley

September

Audit Findings Report - ISA260 (for the previous year)

Grant Thornton

Internal audit monitoring report

Internal Audit

Counter Fraud update and future work provision

Counter Fraud Unit

8¢e¢ abed



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	5 Business Grant Schemes
	6 Grant Thornton Audit Findings for Cheltenham Borough Council
	7 Draft Statement of Accounts 2020/21
	2021_09_22_AUD_Statement_of_Accounts

	8 Internal Audit Progress Report
	2021_09_22_AUD_Int_Audit_Progress_Report_Appendix_A
	2021_01_27_AUD_Internal_Audit_Progress_Report_ICT_Data_Recovery_exempt
	2021_01_27_AUD_Internal_Audit_Progress_Report_Systems_Admin_exempt

	9 Counter Fraud Update
	10 Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and Enforcement
	2021_09_22_AUD_Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and Enforcement Policy

	11 Work Programme

